
Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

February 21, 2025

NOTICE
The Board of Directors of the Kaweah Delta Health Care District will meet in the City of Visalia City Council 
Chambers {707 W. Acequia, Visalia, CA} on Wednesday, February 26, 2025:  

4:00PM Open meeting to approve the closed agenda.

4:01PM Closed meeting pursuant to Government Code 54956.8, Government Code 54956.9(d)(1), 
Government Code 54956.9(d)(2), Health and Safety Code 1461 and 32155.

4:30PM Open meeting.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, 
please contact the Board Clerk (559) 624-2330. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to 
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors 
meeting.

All Kaweah Delta Health Care District regular board meeting and committee meeting notices and agendas are posted 
72 hours prior to meetings (special meetings are posted 24 hours prior to meetings) in the Kaweah Health Medical 
Center, Mineral King Wing near the Mineral King entrance.  

The disclosable public records related to agendas can be obtained by contacting the Board Clerk at Kaweah Health 
Medical Center – Acequia Wing, Executive Offices (Administration Department/Executive Offices) {1st floor}, 400 
West Mineral King Avenue, Visalia, CA via phone 559-624-2330 or email: kedavis@kaweahhealth.org, or on the
Kaweah Delta Health Care District web page http://www.kaweahhealth.org.

KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
David Francis, Secretary/Treasurer

Kelsie Davis 
Board Clerk / Executive Assistant to CEO

DISTRIBUTION:
Governing Board, Legal Counsel, Executive Team, Chief of Staff, www.kaweahhealth.org

1/368



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

City of Visalia – City Council Chambers
707 W. Acequia, Visalia, CA

Wednesday February 26, 2025 {Regular Meeting}

OPEN MEETING AGENDA {4:00PM}
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – Members of the public may comment on agenda items before 

action is taken and after it is discussed by the Board. Each speaker will be allowed five 
minutes. Members of the public wishing to address the Board concerning items not on the 
agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Board are requested to identify themselves at this 
time.

4. APPROVAL OF THE CLOSED AGENDA – 4:01PM
Public Participation – Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action is
taken and after the item has been discussed by the Board.
Action Requested – Approval of the February 26, 2025, closed meeting agenda.

5. ADJOURN

CLOSED MEETING AGENDA {4:01PM}

1. CALL TO ORDER

2.

2/368



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Pursuant to Government 
Code 54956.9(d)(1). 

A. Mar nez (San llian) v KDHCD Case # VCU279163
B. Franks v KDHCD Case #VCU290542
C. Burns-Nunez v KDHCD Case # VCU293107
D. Oney v KDHCD Case # VCU293813
E. Parnell v Kaweah Health Case # VCU292139
F. Newport v KDHCD Case # 1:23-CV-01752-NODJ-SAB
G. M. Vasquez v KDHCD Case # VCU297964
H. Apkarian-Souza v KDHCD Case # VCU303650
I. Pendleton v KDHCD Case #VCU305571
J. Rhodes v KDHCD Case # VCU306460
K. Negrete v KDHCD Case #VCU309437
L. LaRumbe-Torres v KDHCD Case #VCU313564
M. Smithson v KDHCD Case #VCU313258
N. Maxey v KDHCD Case #VCU314996
O. Medina v KDHCD Case #VCU316413
P. Richardson v KDHCD Case #VCU311369
Q. Burger v. KDHCD Case #VCU312863
R. Andrade v. KDHCD Case #VCU317338

Evelyn McEntire, Director of Risk Management and Rachele Berglund, Legal Counsel

4.

5. CREDENTIALING - Medical Executive Committee (MEC) requests that the appointment,
reappointment and other credentialing activity regarding clinical privileges and staff
membership recommended by the respective department chiefs, the credentials 

3/368



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

committee and the MEC be reviewed for approval pursuant to Health and Safety Code
1461 and 32155. 
Daniel Hightower, MD, Chief of Staff

6. QUALITY ASSURANCE pursuant to Health and Safety Code 32155 and 1461, report of 
quality assurance committee.
Daniel Hightower, MD Chief of Staff

7. APPROVAL OF THE CLOSED MEETING MINUTES – January 22, 2025, closed meeting 
minutes.

8. ADJOURN

OPEN MEETING AGENDA {4:30PM} 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL 
3. FLAG SALUTE- DIRECTOR LEVITAN
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – Members of the public may comment on agenda items before 
action is taken and after it is discussed by the Board. Each speaker will be allowed five 
minutes. Members of the public wishing to address the Board concerning items not on the 
agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Board are requested to identify themselves at this 
time.

6. CLOSED SESSION ACTION TAKEN – Report on action(s) taken in closed session.

7. OPEN MINUTES – Request approval of the January 22, 2025, open minutes.

Public Participation – Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action
is taken and after the item has been discussed by the Board.
Action Requested – Approval of the January 22, 2025, open minutes.

4/368



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

8. RECOGNITIONS

8.1. Presentation of Resolution 2250 to Angel Pena in recognition as the Kaweah Health 
World Class Employee of the month – February 2025 – Director Levitan 

8.2. Presentation of Resolution 2251 to Margaret Galvin in recognition of her service and 
retirement at Kaweah Health. – Director Levitan

8.3. Presentation of Resolution 2252 to Leslie Kline in recognition of her service and 
retirement at Kaweah Health. – Director Levitan

8.4. Team of the Month –Staffing Facilitator Team

9. INTRODUCTIONS  
9.1. New Director – Rhonda Quinones
9.2. New Interim Chief - Schlene Peet 

10. CREDENTIALS - Medical Executive Committee requests that the appointment, 
reappointment and other credentialing activity regarding clinical privileges and staff 
membership recommended by the respective department chiefs, the credentials 
committee and the Medical Executive Committee be reviewed for approval.
Daniel Hightower, MD, Chief of Staff
Public Participation – Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action
is taken and after the item has been discussed by the Board.
Action Requested – Approval of the February 26, 2025, medical staff credentials report.

11. CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT – Report relative to current Medical Staff events and issues.
Daniel Hightower, MD, Chief of Staff  

12. CONSENT CALENDAR - All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one 
motion, unless a Board member requests separate action on a specific item.

Public Participation – Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action
is taken and after the item has been discussed by the Board.
Action Requested – Approval of the February 26, 2025, Consent Calendar.

5/368



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

12.1. REPORTS
A. Physician Recruitment
B. Strategic Plan
C. Throughput
D. Compliance Quarterly Report
E. Hospice/Open Arms House

12.2.  POLICIES
A.  Administrative Policies
      A.1. AP41- Quality Improvement Plan- Reviewed

A.2. AP175- Patient Safety Plan- Reviewed
B. Environment of Care 
      B.1. EOC 3000- Security Management Plan - Revised

B.2. EOC 4007- Compressed Gas and Oxygen Use – Revised 
B.3. EOC 6001- Medical Equipment Management Policy – Revised 
B.4. EOC 6003- Medical Equipment Health Care Device Modification Policy-

Reviewed
B.5. EOC 6015- Hospital Electrical Safety Policy for Personal Use – Revised
B.6. EOC 7001- Utilities Management Plan- Revised
B.7. EOC 7401- Utilities Management Program- Revised
B.8. DM 2225- Lockdown Security of Entry Doors- Revised

12.3.  LEGAL
A. Priscilla Wilson Claim for Damages – rejection of Claim on its merits

13. STRATEGIC PLANNING INITATIVE – Physician Alignment – Detailed review of Strategic Plan 
Initiative. 
Ryan Gates, Chief Ambulatory Officer & JC Palermo, Director of Physician Recruitment

14. FINANCIALS –   Review of the most current fiscal year financial results.  
Malinda Tupper – Chief Financial Officer   

6/368



Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

15.    REPORTS  
15.1. Chief Executive Officer Report - Report on current events and issues.  
            Gary Herbst, Chief Executive Officer
15.2. Board President - Report on current events and issues.  

Mike Olmos, Board President

CLOSED MEETING AGENDA
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE OPEN SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. CEO EVALUATION – Discussion with the Board and the Chief Executive Officer relative to 

the evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1).
Gary Herbst, Chief Executive Officer and Rachele Berglund, Legal Counsel

3. ADJOURN

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, please contact the Board 
Clerk (559) 624-2330. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to the Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors meeting.

All Kaweah Delta Health Care District regular board meeting and committee meeting notices and agendas are posted 72 hours prior to 
meetings (special meetings are posted 24 hours prior to meetings) in the Kaweah Health Medical Center, Mineral King Wing near the Mineral 
King entrance.  The disclosable public records related to agendas can be obtained by contacting the Board Clerk at Kaweah Health Medical 
Center – Acequia Wing, Executive Offices (Administration Department/Executive Offices) {1st floor}, 400 West Mineral King Avenue, Visalia, 
CA via phone 559-624-2330 or email: kedavis@kaweahhealth.org, or on the Kaweah Delta Health Care District web page 
http://www.kaweahhealth.org.

7/368



Agenda item intentionally omitted

[8-80]/368



Separator Page

1.22.2025 OPEN Minutes

81/368



MINUTES OF THE OPEN MEETING OF THE KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS HELD WEDNESDAY JANUARY 22, 2025, AT 4:00PM IN THE CITY OF VISALIA CITY 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 707 W. ACEQUIA, VISALIA, CA. 
 
PRESENT: Directors Olmos, Francis, Levitan, Havard Mirviss & Murrieta; G. Herbst, CEO; D. 

Hightower, Chief of Staff; M. Tupper, CFO; J. Batth, Chief Operating Officer; B. Cripps, 
Chief Compliance Officer; D. Cox, Chief Human Resource Officer; P. Stefanacci, Chief 
Medical & Quality Officer; R. Gates; Chief Population Health Officer; M. Mertz, Chief 
Strategy Officer; R. Berglund, Legal Counsel; and K. Davis, recording  

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 PM by Director Olmos.  

Director Olmos asked for approval of the agenda. 
MMSC (Francis/Havard Mirviss) to approve the open agenda.  This was supported unanimously 
by those present.  Vote:  Yes - Havard Mirviss, Murrieta, Levitan, Olmos and Francis    

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION –None.  
MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Armando) to approve the closed agenda.  This was supported 
unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes - Havard Mirviss, Murrieta, Levitan, Olmos and Francis    

ADJOURN - Meeting was adjourned at 4:00PM  

Mike Olmos, President  
Kaweah Delta Health Care District and the Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
David Francis, Secretary/Treasurer 
Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors 
 

82/368



MINUTES OF THE OPEN MEETING OF THE KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS HELD WEDNESDAY JANUARY 22, 2025, AT 4:45PM IN THE CITY OF VISALIA CITY 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 707 W. ACEQUIA, VISALIA, CA. 
 
PRESENT: Directors Olmos, Francis, Havard Mirviss, Murrieta & Levitan; G. Herbst, CEO; D. 

Hightower, Chief of Staff; M. Tupper, CFO; J. Batth, Chief Operating Officer; B. Cripps, 
Chief Compliance Officer; D. Cox, Chief Human Resource Officer; P. Stefanacci, Chief 
Medical & Quality Officer; R. Gates; Chief Population Health Officer; M. Mertz, Chief 
Strategy Officer; K. Noeske, Chief Nursing Officer; R. Berglund, Legal Counsel; and K. 
Davis, recording 

The meeting was called to order at 4:45 PM by Director Olmos.  

ROLL CALL- Director Olmos, Havard Mirviss, Levitan, Francis, and Murrieta were all present and 
accounted for. 
FLAG SALUTE- Director Olmos lead the flag salute.  
Director Olmos asked for approval of the agenda. 
MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Levitan) to approve the open agenda.  This was supported unanimously 
by those present.  Vote:  Yes - Havard Mirviss, Levitan, Murrieta, Olmos and Francis    

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None.       
CLOSED SESSION ACTION TAKEN: approval of the closed meeting minutes from December 18, 
2024.  

OPEN MINUTES – Requested approval of the open meeting minutes from December 18, 2024. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None.  
MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Francis) to approve the open minutes from December 18, 2024. 

This was supported unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes – Olmos, Havard Mirviss, Francis, 
Levitan and Murrieta.       

RECOGNITIONS- Resolution 2246, 2248, and 2249. New Directors, Melany Gambini and Brooke 
Carmen. Team of the Month: Outpatient Behavioral Therapist Team.  
CREDENTIALING – Medical Executive Committee requests that the appointment, reappointment 
and other credentialing activity regarding clinical privileges and staff membership recommended 
by the respective department chiefs, the credentials committee and the Medical Executive 
Committee be reviewed for approval. 
CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT – Report relative to current Medical Staff events and issues – Daniel 
Hightower, Chief of Staff  

 No report.  
Public Participation – None. 

Director Olmos requested a motion for the approval of the January 22, 2025, Medical executive 
committee report as presented.  

MMSC (Havard Mirviss/Murrieta) Whereas a thorough review of all required information and 
supporting documentation necessary for the consideration of initial applications, 

83/368



Board of Directors Meeting – Open 4:45PM 1.22.25 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

reappointments, request for additional privileges, advance from provisional status and release 
from proctoring and resignations (pursuant to the Medical Staff bylaws) has been completed by 
the Directors of the clinical services, the Credentials Committee, and the Executive Committee of 
the Medical Staff, for all of the medical staff scheduled for reappointment,  Whereas the basis for 
the recommendations now before the Board of Trustees regarding initial applications, 
reappointments, request for additional privileges, advance from provisional status and release 
from proctoring and resignations has been predicated upon the required reviews, including all 
supporting documentation, to the organized medical staff of Kaweah Delta Health Care District 
for a two year period unless otherwise specified, with physician-specific privileges granted as 
recommended by the Chief of Service, the Credentials Committee, and the Executive Committee 
of the Medical Staff and as will be documented on each medical staff member’s letter of initial 
application approval and reappointment from the Board of Trustees and within their individual 
credentials files .  This was supported unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes – Olmos, Havard 
Mirviss, Levitan, Murrieta and Francis    
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Director Olmos entertained a motion to approve the January 22, 2025, 
consent calendar.   
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None.   
MMSC (Francis/Havard Mirviss)  to approve the January 22, 2025, consent calendar.  This was 
supported unanimously by those present.  Vote:  Yes – Olmos, Havard Mirviss, Levitan, Murrieta 
and Francis. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN- OUTSTANDING HEALTH OUTCOMES – A detailed review of strategic plan 
initiative. Copy attached to the original of the minutes and to be considered a part thereof. 
 

FINANCIALS – Review of the most current fiscal year financial results. Copy attached to the 
original of these minutes and considered a part thereof.  

REPORTS 
Chief Executive Officer Report – None – Gary Herbst, CEO 
Board President- None – Mike Olmos, Board President 

 
ADJOURN - Meeting was adjourned at 7:00PM  

Mike Olmos, President  
Kaweah Delta Health Care District and the Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
David Francis, Secretary/Treasurer 
Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors 
 

84/368



Separator Page

R2250 EOM Angel Pena

85/368



RESOLUTION 2250

WHEREAS, the Department Heads of the KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT dba KAWEAH HEALTH are recognizing Angel Pena with the 
World Class Service Excellence Award for the Month of February 2025, for 
consistent outstanding performance, and,

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT is aware of his excellence in caring and service,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT on behalf of themselves, the 
hospital staff, and the community they represent, hereby extend their 
congratulaƟons to Angel Pena for this honor and in recogniƟon thereof, 
have caused this resoluƟon to be spread upon the minutes of the meeƟng.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 26th day of February 2025 by a 
unanimous vote of those present.    

      

                                             President, Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

Secretary/Treasurer
Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

86/368



Separator Page

R2251 Retirement Margaret Galvin

87/368



RESOLUTION 2251

WHEREAS, Margaret Galvin, is reƟring from duty at Kaweah Delta 
Health Care District dba Kaweah Health aŌer 17 years of service; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Kaweah Delta Health Care 
District is aware of her loyal service and devoƟon to duty; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Kaweah Delta Health Care 
District is aware of her excellence in caring and service, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of 
the Kaweah Delta Health Care District, on behalf of themselves, the 
hospital staff, and the community they represent, hereby extend their 
appreciaƟon to Margaret Galvin for 17 years of faithful service and, in 
recogniƟon thereof, have caused this resoluƟon to be spread upon the 
minutes of this meeƟng. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 26th day of February 2025 by a 
unanimous vote of those present.    

      

                                             President, Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

Secretary/Treasurer
Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

88/368



Separator Page

R2252 Retirement Leslie Kline

89/368



RESOLUTION 2252

WHEREAS, Leslie Kline, is reƟring from duty at Kaweah Delta Health 
Care District dba Kaweah Health aŌer 24 years of service; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Kaweah Delta Health Care 
District is aware of her loyal service and devoƟon to duty; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Kaweah Delta Health Care 
District is aware of her excellence in caring and service, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of 
the Kaweah Delta Health Care District, on behalf of themselves, the 
hospital staff, and the community they represent, hereby extend their 
appreciaƟon to Leslie Kline for 24 years of faithful service and, in 
recogniƟon thereof, have caused this resoluƟon to be spread upon the 
minutes of this meeƟng. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 26th day of February 2025 by a 
unanimous vote of those present.    

      

                                             President, Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

Secretary/Treasurer
Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

90/368



Se
pa

ra
to

r P
ag

e

Ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t R
ep

or
t -

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

25

91
/3

68



92
/3

68



Page 1 of 2Exported on February 12, 2025 11:56:21 AM PST
93/368



Page 2 of 2Exported on February 12, 2025 11:56:21 AM PST
94/368



Se
pa

ra
to

r P
ag

e

FY
25

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 F

eb
 F

in
al

95
/3

68



F
Y

 2
0

2
5

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

M
on

th
ly

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
t

Fe
b

 2
6

, 2
0

2
5

96
/3

68



Ka
w

ea
h 

H
ea

lth
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
FY

20
25

 O
ve

rv
ie

w

St
at

us
es

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

8
(5

%
)

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
98

(6
6%

)
O

ff
 T

ra
ck

15
(1

0%
)

At
 R

is
k

20
(1

3%
)

Ac
hi

ev
ed

8
(5

%
)

Du
e 

Da
te

s

N
ot

 P
as

t D
ue

13
2

(9
9%

)
Pa

st
 D

ue
2

(1
%

)

Pr
og

re
ss

 U
pd

at
es

Up
-to

-D
at

e
10

8
(7

6%
)

La
te

35
(2

4%
)

Pe
nd

in
g

0
(0

%
)

O
ur

 M
is

si
on

H
ea

lth
 is

 o
ur

 p
as

si
on

.

Ex
ce

lle
nc

e 
is

 o
ur

 fo
cu

s.

Co
m

pa
ss

io
n 

is
 o

ur
 p

ro
m

is
e.

O
ur

 V
is

io
n

To
 b

e 
yo

ur
 w

or
ld

-c
la

ss
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 c
ho

ic
e,

 fo
r l

ife
.

O
ur

 P
ill

ar
s

Ac
hi

ev
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 h

ea
lth

.

De
liv

er
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

.

Pr
ov

id
e 

an
 id

ea
l w

or
k 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.

Em
po

w
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

ed
uc

at
io

n.

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

tre
ng

th
.

O
ur

 F
iv

e 
In

iti
at

iv
es

Id
ea

l E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

St
ra

te
gi

c 
G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 In

no
va

tio
n

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 H
ea

lth
 O

ut
co

m
es

Pa
tie

nt
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t

Ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
Al

ig
nm

en
t

Ka
w

ea
h 

H
ea

lth
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n:
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 2
02

5

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Cu

st
om

 D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t

20
25

-0
2-

19
 - 

10
:3

2:
32

AM
 P

ST
1 

of
 6

97
/3

68



Id
ea

l E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 - 
Id

ea
l E

nv
iro

nm
en

t S
tra

te
gi

es

#
N

am
e

De
sc

rip
tio

n
St

at
us

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
To

La
st

 C
om

m
en

t

1.
1

In
te

gr
at

e 
Ka

w
ea

h
Ca

re
 C

ul
tu

re
In

te
gr

at
e 

Ka
w

ea
h 

Ca
re

 c
ul

tu
re

 in
to

 th
e

va
rio

us
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n.
O

n 
Tr

ac
k

Di
an

ne
 C

ox
Th

e 
Ka

w
ea

h 
Ca

re
 S

te
er

in
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 it

s 
su

bc
om

m
itt

ee
s 

ar
e 

de
di

ca
te

d 
to

 e
m

be
dd

in
g 

th
e 

Ka
w

ea
h 

Ca
re

 c
ul

tu
re

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n.

Em
pl

oy
ee

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e:
 W

e 
ha

ve
 p

la
nn

ed
 a

 y
ea

r-r
ou

nd
 c

al
en

da
r o

f e
xc

iti
ng

 e
ve

nt
s 

to
 b

oo
st

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t
an

d 
sy

ne
rg

y, 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 re
co

gn
iz

in
g 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

St
ar

lig
ht

 a
w

ar
ds

 a
nd

 T
ea

m
 P

yr
am

id
 a

w
ar

ds
.

Id
ea

l P
ra

ct
ic

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
: O

ur
 fo

cu
s 

is
 o

n 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

by
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

sy
st

em
s,

an
d 

ov
er

al
l c

ul
tu

re
.

Pa
tie

nt
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
: W

e 
w

or
k 

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

co
ve

ry
, p

at
ie

nt
 n

av
ig

at
io

n,
 m

an
ag

in
g 

lo
st

 b
el

on
gi

ng
s,

im
pr

ov
in

g 
cu

st
om

er
 s

er
vi

ce
, e

nh
an

ci
ng

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

en
su

rin
g 

tim
el

y 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
tra

ns
iti

on
s.

1.
2

Id
ea

l P
ra

ct
ic

e
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t
En

su
re

 a
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t t

ha
t i

s
fr

ie
nd

ly
 a

nd
 e

ng
ag

in
g 

fo
r p

ro
vi

de
rs

, f
re

e 
of

pr
ac

tic
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Di

an
ne

 C
ox

W
e 

ha
ve

 in
iti

at
ed

 s
ev

er
al

 e
ff

or
ts

 a
im

ed
 a

t e
nh

an
ci

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
r e

xp
er

ie
nc

e:

Te
am

 R
ou

nd
in

g:
 B

rie
f t

ea
m

 ro
un

di
ng

 (6
0-

90
 s

ec
on

ds
 p

er
 ro

om
) i

nv
ol

vi
ng

 a
 p

hy
si

ci
an

, R
N

, a
nd

 c
as

e 
m

an
ag

er
 to

 s
tre

am
lin

e
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
pa

tie
nt

 c
ar

e.

De
di

ca
te

d 
W

or
ks

pa
ce

s:
 W

ill
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 w

or
ks

ta
tio

ns
 in

 k
ey

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
5T

, t
he

 li
br

ar
y, 

an
d 

va
rio

us
 h

os
pi

ta
l a

re
as

.  
Re

st
or

at
io

n/
re

m
od

el
in

g 
of

 th
e 

M
ed

ic
al

 S
ta

ff
 lo

un
ge

, f
em

al
e 

lo
ck

er
 ro

om
, a

nd
 s

ur
ge

ry
 s

pa
ce

s 
to

 b
et

te
r s

up
po

rt
 p

ro
vi

de
r n

ee
ds

.

1.
3

G
ro

w
th

 in
 N

ur
si

ng
Sc

ho
ol

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

po
ol

 o
f l

oc
al

 R
N

 c
an

di
da

te
s

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l s
ch

oo
ls

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 R

N
co

ho
rt

 s
ea

ts
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r K
aw

ea
h

H
ea

lth
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Di

an
ne

 C
ox

W
e 

ha
ve

 fo
rm

ed
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l h
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
ar

ee
r T

ec
hn

ic
al

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 V
is

al
ia

 U
ni

fie
d,

 C
ut

le
r,

O
ro

si
, H

an
fo

rd
 W

es
t, 

Tu
la

re
 J

oi
nt

 U
ni

on
, a

nd
 L

in
ds

ay
.

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, w

e 
ar

e 
ro

lli
ng

 o
ut

 s
ev

er
al

 in
iti

at
iv

es
: a

 L
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

Ac
ad

em
y, 

an
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 L
ea

de
rs

 P
ro

gr
am

, C
ha

rg
e 

N
ur

se
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t,

an
d 

M
en

to
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
si

on
 P

la
nn

in
g.

 A
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 c
al

en
da

r h
as

 b
ee

n 
cr

ea
te

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
al

l u
pc

om
in

g
le

ar
ni

ng
 e

ve
nt

s.

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
: F

os
te

r a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 h
ea

lt
hy

 a
nd

 d
es

ir
ab

le
 w

or
ki

ng
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
ts

 fo
r o

ur
 K

aw
ea

h 
H

ea
lth

 T
ea

m
s

Ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
an

d 
AP

P 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t S
ur

ve
y 

Sc
or

e 
G

re
at

er
Th

an
 3

.9
5%

3.
65

3..
65

3.
65

3.
65

3..
65

3.
65

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

09/3
0/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

3.
54

3.
91

3.
95

De
cr

ea
se

 O
ve

ra
ll 

Tu
rn

ov
er

 R
at

e 
(<

 1
5%

)

15
%

15
%

15
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

14
%

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

09/3
0/2

024

10/3
1/2

024

11/3
0/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

0%10
%

15
%

Em
pl

oy
ee

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t S

ur
ve

y 
Sc

or
e 

G
re

at
er

 T
ha

n
4.

2%

4.
18

%
4..

18
%

4.
18

%

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

4%

4.
25

%
4.

16
%

4.
22

%

Ch
am

pi
on

s:
 D

ia
nn

e 
Co

x 
an

d 
H

an
na

h 
M

itc
he

ll

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Cu

st
om

 D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t

20
25

-0
2-

19
 - 

10
:3

2:
32

AM
 P

ST
2 

of
 6

98
/3

68



St
ra

te
gi

c 
G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 In

no
va

tio
n

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 - 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

G
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 In
no

va
tio

n 
St

ra
te

gi
es

#
N

am
e

De
sc

rip
tio

n
St

at
us

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
To

La
st

 C
om

m
en

t

2.
1

G
ro

w
 T

ar
ge

te
d

Su
rg

er
y/

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e
Vo

lu
m

es

G
ro

w
 v

ol
um

es
 in

 k
ey

 s
er

vi
ce

 li
ne

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

O
rt

ho
pe

di
cs

, E
nd

os
co

py
, U

ro
lo

gy
an

d 
Ca

rd
io

 T
ho

ra
ci

c 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

O
ff

 T
ra

ck
Ke

vi
n 

Ba
rt

el
O

nl
y 

1 
of

 th
e 

4 
su

rg
ic

al
 v

ol
um

e 
go

al
s 

(o
rt

ho
pe

di
c)

 w
as

 m
et

 fo
r J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
5.

  A
ll 

ot
he

rs
w

er
e 

of
f t

ra
ck

 d
ue

 fo
r v

ar
yi

ng
 re

as
on

s.
  U

ro
lo

gy
  i

s 
st

ill
 li

m
ite

d 
pr

im
ar

ily
 b

y 
la

ck
 o

f c
on

si
st

en
t

US
C 

su
bs

pe
ci

al
is

t p
re

se
nc

e 
(o

ne
 s

ub
sp

ec
ia

lis
t c

as
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

), 
pr

ov
id

er
 P

RO
 in

Ja
nu

ar
y 

(li
m

ite
d 

to
ta

l c
al

l c
ov

er
ag

e 
an

d 
el

ec
tiv

e 
ca

se
s)

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
lim

ite
d 

on
-c

al
l

co
ve

ra
ge

 o
ve

ra
ll 

fo
r t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
.  

Ca
rd

io
th

or
ac

ic
 s

ur
ge

rie
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 s

ee
 a

 d
ra

m
at

ic
de

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
le

ct
iv

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
pr

im
ar

ily
 d

riv
en

 b
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

lin
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
to

 c
ha

ng
e 

af
fil

ia
te

d
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
, w

ith
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t o
ng

oi
ng

 to
 b

ac
kf

ill
 fo

r C
TS

 s
ur

ge
on

s.

2.
2

Ex
pa

nd
 C

lin
ic

N
et

w
or

k
St

ra
te

gi
ca

lly
 e

xp
an

d 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
cl

in
ic

 n
et

w
or

k 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
cc

es
s

at
 c

on
ve

ni
en

t l
oc

at
io

ns
 fo

r t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Iv

an
 J

ar
a

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

an
d 

pu
rs

ue
 g

ro
w

th
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t, 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
s,

ne
w

 lo
ca

tio
ns

, q
ua

lit
y 

in
iti

at
iv

es
, s

ta
te

/f
ed

er
al

 p
ro

gr
am

s,
 a

nd
 a

 te
am

-b
as

ed
 c

ar
e 

m
od

el
. A

ll
ar

ea
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 h
av

e 
ac

tiv
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 th
e 

cl
in

ic
 n

et
w

or
k.

 

2.
3

In
no

va
tio

n
Im

pl
em

en
t a

nd
 o

pt
im

iz
e 

ne
w

 to
ol

s 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

pa
tie

nt
ex

pe
rie

nc
e,

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 o
ut

co
m

es
.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Ja

g 
Ba

tth
Ke

y 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

op
tim

iz
in

g 
te

le
he

al
th

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
(in

pa
tie

nt
-N

eu
ro

lo
gy

 fo
cu

s)
, i

nt
eg

ra
tin

g
re

fe
rra

l a
nd

 a
ut

ho
riz

at
io

n 
so

ft
w

ar
e,

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

on
lin

e 
sc

he
du

lin
g 

to
ol

s 
(c

lin
ic

al
 la

b)
, a

ll
on

 tr
ac

k.
 W

e 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 e
xp

lo
re

 a
n 

ad
va

nc
ed

 c
ar

e 
at

-h
om

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 w

ith
 K

ey
 M

ed
ic

al
G

ro
up

.  
Th

e 
ce

nt
ra

liz
ed

 n
av

ig
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ill

 in
vo

lv
e 

ke
y 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 to
 h

el
p

de
te

rm
in

e 
ne

xt
 s

te
ps

.

2.
4

En
ha

nc
e 

H
ea

lth
 P

la
n

Pr
og

ra
m

s
Im

pr
ov

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 h

ea
lth

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 lo
ca

l/s
ta

te
/f

ed
er

al
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

an
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
im

pr
ov

e 
ov

er
al

l o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
So

ni
a 

Du
ra

n-
Ag

ui
la

r
M

on
th

ly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 M

CP
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 C

al
AI

M
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
re

m
ai

n 
un

de
rw

ay
. A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
So

ni
a 

Du
ra

n-
Ag

ui
la

r h
as

 b
ee

n 
as

ke
d 

to
 s

pe
ak

 a
nd

 p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

Ca
lA

IM
 a

t S
ta

te
w

id
e

Co
lla

bo
ra

tiv
e 

an
d 

Pr
ov

id
er

 F
or

um
s 

to
 s

ha
re

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

w
ith

 C
al

AI
M

 a
nd

 P
AT

H
 C

IT
ED

 R
ou

nd
2 

an
d 

3 
fu

nd
in

g 
aw

ar
ds

. W
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
PA

TH
 C

IT
ED

 R
ou

nd
 4

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

du
e

M
ay

 7
th

 2
02

5 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 c

lo
se

ly
 w

ith
 M

CP
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ou

r a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

al
ig

ns
 w

ith
 g

ap
s

no
te

d 
in

 T
ul

ar
e 

Co
un

ty
 C

al
AI

M
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

an
d 

Po
pu

la
tio

ns
 o

f F
oc

us
. .

2.
5

Ex
pl

or
e

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l

Af
fil

ia
tio

ns
 a

nd
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps

Pu
rs

ue
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l a
ff

ili
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s.
O

n 
Tr

ac
k

M
ar

c 
M

er
tz

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

an
d 

ne
w

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
as

 a
 w

ay
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
ca

re
.

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
: G

ro
w

 in
te

lli
ge

nt
ly

 b
y 

ex
pa

nd
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
, a

dd
in

g 
ne

w
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ng

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. F
in

d 
ne

w
 w

ay
s 

to
 d

o 
th

in
gs

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s.

Ch
am

pi
on

s:
 J

ag
 B

at
th

 a
nd

 K
ev

in
 B

ar
te

l

In
cr

ea
se

 E
nr

ol
lm

en
t t

o 
72

0 
Li

ve
s 

in
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ca
re

M
an

ag
em

en
t

33
4

33
4

33
4

39
8

39
8

39
8

41
9

41
9

41
9

48
6

48
6

48
6

48
6

48
6

48
6

44
8

44
8

44
8

47
7

47
7

47
7

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

09/3
0/2

024

10/3
1/2

024

11/3
0/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

01/3
1/2

025

50
0 0

45
5

72
0

Pe
rf

or
m

 6
36

 E
nd

os
co

py
 C

as
es

 P
er

 M
on

th

59
3

59
3

59
3

50
8

50
8

50
8

55
0

55
0

55
0

64
5

64
5

64
5

52
8

52
8

52
8

47
1

47
1

47
1

52
4

52
4

52
4

60
4

60
4

60
4

60
4

60
4

60
4

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et
St

re
tc

h
G

oa
l

07/3
1/2

024 08/3
1/2

024 09/3
0/2

024 10/3
1/2

024 11/3
0/2

024 12/3
1/2

024 01/3
1/2

025

50
0

Pe
rf

or
m

 2
15

 O
rt

ho
pe

di
c 

Su
rg

er
y 

Ca
se

s 
Pe

r M
on

th

21
5

21
5

21
5

21
9

21
9

21
9

21
7

21
7

21
7

24
9

24
9

24
9

22
1

22
1

22
1

24
6

24
6

24
6

23
7

23
7

23
7

20
4

20
4

20
4

20
4

20
4

20
4

21
5

21
5

21
5

21
5

21
5

21
5

22
6

22
6

22
6

22
6

22
6

22
6

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et
St

re
tc

h
G

oa
l

07/3
1/2

024 08/3
1/2

024 09/3
0/2

024 10/3
1/2

024 11/3
0/2

024 12/3
1/2

024 01/3
1/2

025

20
0

25
0

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Cu

st
om

 D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t

20
25

-0
2-

19
 - 

10
:3

2:
32

AM
 P

ST
3 

of
 6

99
/3

68



O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 H
ea

lth
 O

ut
co

m
es

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 - 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 H

ea
lth

 O
ut

co
m

es
 S

tra
te

gi
es

#
N

am
e

De
sc

rip
tio

n
St

at
us

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
To

La
st

 C
om

m
en

t

3.
1

St
an

da
rd

iz
ed

In
fe

ct
io

n 
Ra

tio
(S

IR
)

Re
du

ce
 th

e 
H

os
pi

ta
l A

cq
ui

re
d 

In
fe

ct
io

ns
 (H

AI
s)

 to
 th

e
na

tio
na

l 7
0t

h 
pe

rc
en

til
e 

in
 F

YT
D2

4 
as

 re
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

th
e

Ce
nt

er
s 

fo
r M

ed
ic

ar
e 

an
d 

M
ed

ic
ai

d 
Se

rv
ic

es

At
 R

is
k

Sa
nd

y 
Vo

lc
hk

o
Ke

y 
Ac

tio
ns

: 
- R

ed
uc

e 
lin

e 
ut

ili
za

tio
n;

 le
ss

 li
ne

s 
le

ss
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 fo

r i
nf

ec
tio

ns
 to

 o
cc

ur
- I

m
pr

ov
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l c
le

an
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

fo
r h

ig
h 

ris
k 

ar
ea

s
- M

RS
A 

na
sa

l  
an

d 
sk

in
 d

ec
ol

on
iz

at
io

n 
fo

r p
at

ie
nt

 w
ith

 li
ne

s
- I

m
pr

ov
e 

ha
nd

 h
yg

ie
ne

3.
2

Se
ps

is
 B

un
dl

e
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
(S

EP
-1

)

In
cr

ea
se

 S
EP

-1
 b

un
dl

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
to

 o
ve

ra
ll 

85
%

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

ra
te

 fo
r F

Y2
4 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t
st

ra
te

gi
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ro

ot
 c

au
se

s.

At
 R

is
k

Sa
nd

y 
Vo

lc
hk

o
N

ex
t S

te
ps

 –
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 G

M
E 

th
ro

ug
h 

Se
ps

is
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 (o

ng
oi

ng
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 o
rd

er
 s

et
ut

ili
za

tio
n)

.  
Fu

tu
re

 S
ta

te
:  

Co
de

 S
ep

si
s 

in
 E

D 

3.
3

M
or

ta
lit

y 
an

d
Re

ad
m

is
si

on
s

Re
du

ce
 o

bs
er

ve
d/

ex
pe

ct
ed

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 s
ta

nd
ar

di
ze

d 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

.
At

 R
is

k
Sa

nd
y 

Vo
lc

hk
o

Ke
y 

Ac
tio

ns
:

- P
ro

vi
de

 g
ui

de
lin

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 m

ed
ic

al
 th

er
ap

y 
at

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
- P

ro
vi

de
 g

ui
de

lin
e 

di
re

ct
ed

 m
ed

ic
al

 th
er

ap
y 

du
rin

g 
ho

sp
ita

liz
at

io
n

3.
4

Q
ua

lit
y

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

Pr
og

ra
m

 (Q
IP

)
Re

po
rt

in
g

Ac
hi

ev
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

Q
ua

lit
y 

In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Po

ol
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 c

ar
e 

de
liv

er
y 

in
 th

e
pr

im
ar

y 
ca

re
 s

pa
ce

. 

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
So

ni
a 

Du
ra

n-
Ag

ui
la

r
Q

IP
 re

po
rt

in
g 

fo
r P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 Y

ea
r 7

 (C
Y 

20
24

) c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 w
ith

 P
op

ul
at

io
n 

H
ea

lth
 D

at
a 

Te
am

 a
nd

 B
I

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

ea
m

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tin

g 
on

 u
pd

at
in

g 
al

l Q
IP

 re
po

rt
s 

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

M
ea

su
re

 S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 a

s 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

th
e 

Q
IP

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
M

an
ua

l. 
Ka

w
ea

h 
w

ill
 re

po
rt

 o
n 

15
 Q

IP
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r C

Y 
20

24
.

3.
5

H
ea

lth
 E

qu
ity

Id
en

tif
y 

he
al

th
 d

is
pa

rit
ie

s 
th

at
 im

pr
ov

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 a
cc

es
s 

to
ca

re
 b

y 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

ca
re

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
tre

at
m

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 h

ea
lth

y 
liv

in
g.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
So

ni
a 

Du
ra

n-
Ag

ui
la

r
3 

of
 4

 P
ro

gr
am

 E
le

m
en

ts
 A

ch
ie

ve
d

M
on

th
ly

 H
ea

lth
 E

qu
ity

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g 
in

 p
la

ce
. I

de
nt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 d

is
pa

rit
ie

s 
fo

r P
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 F

oc
us

 (P
re

gn
an

t
Pe

rs
on

s)
, f

ar
m

w
or

ke
rs

 re
m

ai
ns

 u
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Di
sc

us
si

on
 o

f f
oc

us
 o

n 
M

at
er

na
l/C

hi
ld

 O
ut

co
m

es
 d

is
pa

rit
ie

s.
 W

e
ha

ve
 e

nr
ol

le
d 

16
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

in
to

 th
e 

H
RS

A 
Ca

re
 C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ith
  7

 o
f t

he
m

 b
ei

ng
 fa

rm
w

or
ke

rs
. 

3.
6

In
pa

tie
nt

Di
ab

et
es

M
an

ag
em

en
t

O
pt

im
iz

e 
in

pa
tie

nt
 g

ly
ce

m
ic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t u

si
ng

 e
vi

de
nc

e-
ba

se
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pa

tie
nt

's 
gl

yc
em

ic
 c

on
tro

l a
nd

re
du

ce
 h

yp
og

ly
ce

m
ic

 e
ve

nt
s.

O
ff

 T
ra

ck
Sa

nd
y 

Vo
lc

hk
o

An
 in

pa
tie

nt
 d

ia
be

te
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ea
m

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 o
pt

im
iz

in
g 

di
ab

et
es

 c
ar

e 
fo

r p
at

ie
nt

s
us

in
g 

G
lu

co
m

m
an

de
r (

G
M

), 
ai

m
in

g 
to

 re
du

ce
 h

yp
og

ly
ce

m
ia

 ra
te

s 
to

 o
r b

el
ow

 S
H

M
 b

en
ch

m
ar

ks
 fo

r b
ot

h 
cr

iti
ca

l
an

d 
no

n-
cr

iti
ca

l p
at

ie
nt

s,
 a

nd
 to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
re

cu
rr

en
t h

yp
og

ly
ce

m
ia

 in
 th

es
e 

se
tti

ng
s 

to
 m

ee
t o

r f
al

l b
el

ow
 S

H
M

be
nc

hm
ar

ks

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
: T

o
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
de

liv
er

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
it

y 
ca

re
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
co

nt
in

uu
m

.

De
cr

ea
se

 S
ta

nd
ar

di
ze

d 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

Ra
tio

 (S
IR

) C
AU

TI
 to

 <
0.

40
1 0.

52
2

0..
52

2
0.

52
2

0.
51

5
0..

51
5

0.
51

5
0.

58
6

0..
58

6
0.

58
6

000
000

0.
55

0..
55

0.
55

0.
48

8
0..

48
8

0.
48

8

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

09/3
0/2

024

10/3
1/2

024

11/3
0/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

01/3
1/2

025

0

0.
55

0.
34

2

M
ee

t o
r e

xc
ee

d 
15

 Q
IP

 m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 2
02

4

333
111

333
333

5 55
6 66

7 77

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

09/3
0/2

024

10/0
7/2

024

11/0
4/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

01/3
1/2

025

010
615

H
yp

og
ly

ce
m

ia
 in

 C
rit

ic
al

 C
ar

e 
Pa

tie
nt

s 
(<

 4
.3

%
)

4.
2%

4..
2%

4.
2%

3.
5%

3..
5%

3.
5%

4.
2%

4..
2%

4.
2%

3.
6%

3..
6%

3.
6%

5.
02

%
5..

02
%

5.
02

%
4.

1%
4..

1%
4.

1%
5.

3%
5..

3%
5.

3%

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

09/3
0/2

024

10/3
1/2

024

11/3
0/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

01/3
1/2

025

0%5%
4.

3%

Ch
am

pi
on

s:
 D

r. 
Pa

ul
 S

te
fa

na
cc

i a
nd

 S
an

dy
 V

ol
ch

ko

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Cu

st
om

 D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t

20
25

-0
2-

19
 - 

10
:3

2:
32

AM
 P

ST
4 

of
 6

10
0/

36
8



Pa
tie

nt
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 - 
Pa

tie
nt

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gi

es

#
N

am
e

De
sc

rip
tio

n
St

at
us

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
To

La
st

 C
om

m
en

t

4.
1

H
ig

hl
ig

ht
 W

or
ld

-C
la

ss
Se

rv
ic

e/
O

ut
co

m
es

(H
os

pi
ta

lit
y 

Fo
cu

s)

De
ve

lo
p 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 th

at
 g

iv
e 

ou
r h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
te

am
th

e 
to

ol
s 

th
ey

 n
ee

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 w

or
ld

-c
la

ss
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 W
e 

ai
m

 to
 b

e 
in

 th
e 

90
th

pe
rc

en
til

e 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Ke

ri 
N

oe
sk

e
Pa

pe
r m

ap
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
up

da
te

d 
an

d 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 a
cc

es
s 

te
am

s 
at

 th
e 

fr
on

t d
es

ks
 o

f b
ot

h 
ho

sp
ita

l
en

tra
nc

es
. T

he
re

 is
 n

ew
 s

ig
na

ge
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
ho

sp
ita

l a
nd

 n
ew

 s
ig

na
ge

 w
ill

 b
e 

go
in

g 
up

 in
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

ts
 in

W
in

te
r/

Sp
rin

g 
of

 2
02

5.
   

Th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

in
g 

ba
ck

 o
n 

ca
m

pu
s 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 a

nd
 w

ill
 re

-e
va

lu
at

e
pa

tie
nt

 w
ay

fin
di

ng
.  

W
e 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 o
ur

 g
oa

l f
or

 B
es

t I
m

ag
e/

Re
pu

ta
tio

n 
in

 J
ul

y 
(2

8.
7)

, A
ug

us
t (

28
.7

), 
Se

pt
em

be
r

(2
9.

8)
, a

nd
 O

ct
ob

er
 (3

1.
1)

 o
f 2

02
4.

4.
2

In
cr

ea
se

 C
om

pa
ss

io
na

te
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n
To

 re
ac

h 
th

e 
50

th
 p

er
ce

nt
ile

 in
 p

hy
si

ci
an

 a
nd

nu
rs

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

ve
ne

ss
 o

f
st

af
f o

n 
th

e 
H

CA
H

PS
 s

ur
ve

y.
 

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Ke

ri 
N

oe
sk

e
Co

m
pa

ss
io

na
te

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

m
od

ul
es

 w
er

e 
ro

lle
d 

ou
t t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 s

ta
ff

 in
 F

al
l o

f 2
02

4.
  W

e 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 lo
ok

fo
r o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

co
m

pa
ss

io
na

te
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
to

p 
of

 m
in

d 
as

 w
e 

pr
io

rit
iz

e 
th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

in
iti

at
iv

e.

4.
3

En
ha

nc
em

en
t o

f S
ys

te
m

s
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t
To

 c
re

at
e 

a 
se

cu
re

, w
ar

m
 a

nd
 w

el
co

m
in

g
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
O

n 
Tr

ac
k

Ke
ri 

N
oe

sk
e

Pa
tie

nt
 A

cc
es

s 
te

am
s 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

cu
st

om
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

fa
m

ily
 m

em
be

rs
 g

ue
st

s 
of

pa
tie

nt
s 

fe
el

 w
el

co
m

ed
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 e
nt

er
 o

ur
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  

4.
4

Co
m

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t w

he
re

 c
om

m
un

ity
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

ss
is

t s
ta

ff
 in

co
-d

es
ig

ni
ng

 s
af

e,
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
, a

nd
 w

or
ld

-c
la

ss
ca

re
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
De

bo
ra

h
Vo

lo
si

n
Th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 A
dv

is
or

y 
Co

un
ci

ls
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 m
ee

t a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
on

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
in

iti
at

iv
es

.  
(H

ea
lth

 E
qu

ity
 S

ur
ve

y 
re

vi
ew

, Q
R 

Co
de

 fo
r E

D 
w

ai
tin

g 
ro

om
 a

nd
 p

at
ie

nt
 ro

om
s,

 L
os

t &
 F

ou
nd

 in
iti

at
iv

es
, e

tc
.)

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
:D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 o

ur
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
te

am
 th

e 
to

ol
s 

th
ey

 n
ee

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 w

or
ld

-c
la

ss
 h

ea
lt

h 
ca

re
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.

Ac
hi

ev
e 

a 
sc

or
e 

of
 7

4.
3 

in
 H

CA
H

PS
 O

ve
ra

ll 
Ra

tin
g

69
.2

%
69

..2
%

69
.2

%

65
.4

%
65

..4
%

65
.4

%

81
.1

%
81

..1
%

81
.1

%

75
.2

%
75

..2
%

75
.2

%

71
.8

%
71

..8
%

71
.8

%

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

11/3
0/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

01/3
1/2

025

60
%

70
%

80
%

70
.8

%
74

.3
%

Ac
hi

ev
e 

a 
82

.5
 in

 N
ur

si
ng

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

In
pa

tie
nt

Sc
or

e

74
.3

%
74

..3
%

74
.3

%
71

.8
%

71
..8

%
71

.8
%

87
.2

%
87

..2
%

87
.2

%
87

.5
%

87
..5

%
87

.5
%

85
%

85
%

85
%

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

10/3
1/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

01/3
1/2

025

70
%

80
%

77
.3

%

82
.5

%

Ac
hi

ev
e 

a 
sc

or
e 

of
 7

5.
7 

in
 th

e 
Cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
of

 C
lin

ic
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t

82
.7

82
..7

82
.7

88
.4

88
..4

88
.4

90
.5

90
..5

90
.5

78
.5

78
..5

78
.5

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

09/3
0/2

024

10/3
1/2

024

10
0 75

71
.2

75
.7

Ch
am

pi
on

s:
 K

er
i N

oe
sk

e 
an

d 
De

bo
ra

h 
Vo

lo
si

n

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Cu

st
om

 D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t

20
25

-0
2-

19
 - 

10
:3

2:
32

AM
 P

ST
5 

of
 6

10
1/

36
8



Ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
A

lig
nm

en
t

Ch
am

pi
on

s:
 R

ya
n 

G
at

es
 a

nd
 J

C 
Pa

le
rm

o

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
:D

ev
el

op
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

op
po

rt
un

it
ie

s 
th

at
 im

pr
ov

e 
al

ig
nm

en
t w

ith
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r c
on

tr
ac

te
d 

an
d 

af
fil

ia
te

d 
ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

pr
ac

ti
ce

s.

Re
cr

ui
t 5

 P
rim

ar
y 

Ca
re

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s

000
000

000
000

000

1 11
111

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

09/3
0/2

024

10/3
1/2

024

11/3
0/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

01/3
1/2

025
024

05

Re
cr

ui
t 1

5 
Sp

ec
ia

lty
 P

ro
vi

de
rs

111

7 77
777

777
777

777
888

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07/3
1/2

024

08/3
1/2

024

09/3
0/2

024

10/3
1/2

024

11/3
0/2

024

12/3
1/2

024

01/3
1/2

025

010

015

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 -P
hy

si
ci

an
 A

lig
nm

en
t -

 S
tra

te
gi

es

#
N

am
e

De
sc

rip
tio

n
St

at
us

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
To

La
st

 C
om

m
en

t

5.
1

Re
cr

ui
t

Pr
ov

id
er

s
De

ve
lo

p 
a 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

op
tio

ns
 fo

r p
hy

si
ci

an
s 

th
at

 w
ill

 a
ss

is
t w

ith
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t o
f p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 c

om
m

un
ity

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
Ka

w
ea

h 
H

ea
lth

’s 
gr

ow
th

.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
JC

 P
al

er
m

o
Th

e 
Ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ee
tin

g 
tw

ic
e 

a 
m

on
th

. W
e 

ha
ve

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

ne
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
,

gu
id

el
in

es
, a

nd
 a

re
 h

av
in

g 
re

gu
la

r s
tra

te
gy

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

. T
he

 te
am

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

ee
t t

o 
en

su
re

 w
e

ar
e 

ut
ili

zi
ng

 o
ur

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
as

 s
tra

te
gi

ca
lly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

.

5.
2

Ph
ys

ic
ia

n
Al

ig
nm

en
t a

nd
Pr

ac
tic

e
Su

pp
or

t

De
ve

lo
p 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
th

at
 im

pr
ov

e
al

ig
nm

en
t w

ith
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r c
on

tra
ct

ed
 a

nd
af

fil
ia

te
d 

ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
pr

ac
tic

es
.

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Ry

an
 G

at
es

Le
ga

l c
ou

ns
el

 a
nd

 e
xe

cu
tiv

es
 fr

om
 K

aw
ea

h 
an

d 
Fr

ie
nd

ly
 P

C 
m

et
 o

n 
2/

13
/1

5 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

ag
re

em
en

t t
er

m
s

w
ith

 m
in

or
 fo

llo
w

-u
ps

 to
 b

e 
iro

ne
d 

ou
t b

y 
le

ga
l c

ou
ns

el
.  

Le
ga

l c
ou

ns
el

 a
nd

 e
xe

cu
tiv

es
 fr

om
 K

aw
ea

h 
an

d 
M

SO
 m

et
 o

n
1/

10
/2

02
5 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
ag

re
em

en
t t

er
m

s 
w

ith
 m

in
or

 fo
llo

w
-u

ps
 to

 b
e 

iro
ne

d 
ou

t b
y 

le
ga

l c
ou

ns
el

.  
Ex

pe
ct

in
g

ex
ec

ut
io

n 
of

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 F

rie
nd

ly
 P

C 
an

d 
M

SO
 b

y 
3/

1/
20

25
.  

W
-2

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
be

ne
fit

 m
od

el
s 

fo
r v

ar
io

us
sp

ec
ia

lti
es

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 d

ra
ft

ed
 in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 M
SO

 a
nd

 F
rie

nd
ly

 P
C.

 

FY
20

25
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Cu

st
om

 D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t

20
25

-0
2-

19
 - 

10
:3

2:
32

AM
 P

ST
6 

of
 6

10
2/

36
8



Se
pa

ra
to

r P
ag

e

Pt
 T

hr
ou

gh
pu

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 1

.2
2.

25

10
3/

36
8



P
a

ti
e

n
t 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

p
u

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

10
4/

36
8



Av
er
ag
eL
en
gt
ho

fS
ta
yv
er
su
sN

at
ion

al
Av
er
ag
e

(G
M
LO
S)

10
5/

36
8



10
6/

36
8



10
7/

36
8



10
8/

36
8



10
9/

36
8



11
0/

36
8



11
1/

36
8



11
2/

36
8



11
3/

36
8



11
4/

36
8



11
5/

36
8



11
6/

36
8



11
7/

36
8



• • • • • • • • • •

#
M

ile
st

on
es

St
ar

t D
at

e
D

ue
 D

at
e

W
ho

St
at

us
 

R
/Y

/G

1
M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 k

ey
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 p
la

ns
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
if 

pr
io

r 
au

th
or

iza
tio

n
if 

re
qu

ire
d 

ca
n 

be
 c

ha
ng

ed
 to

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d.

  K
ey

 
M

ed
ica

l G
ro

up
 is

 v
er

y 
in

te
re

st
ed

 s
o 

fa
r, 

ta
ki

ng
 to

 th
ei

r B
oa

rd
 

fo
r f

in
al

 d
ec

isi
on

 M
ay

/J
un

e.

11
/2

3
O

ng
oi

ng
Ki

m
 

F./
Su

zy
/E

m
m

a

2
Ev

al
ua

te
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 se
co

nd
 d

isc
ha

rg
e/

th
ro

ug
hp

ut
 

ro
un

d 
on

 2
S,

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

on
 m

ov
in

g 
lo

ng
 o

bs
an

d 
in

pt
s

of
f t

he
 u

ni
t (

ev
en

 th
ro

ug
h 

hi
gh

 c
en

su
s 

tim
es

)
7/

24
O

ng
oi

ng
Br

e/
Em

m
a

3
O

pt
im

iza
tio

n 
an

d 
ut

ili
za

tio
n 

re
vie

w
 o

f o
bs

er
va

tio
n 

po
w

er
 p

la
n 

w
ith

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 p
hy

sic
ia

ns
*N

ee
d:

  P
ro

vi
de

r s
pe

cif
ic 

LO
S 

da
ta

7/
24

O
ng

oi
ng

Em
m

a/
St

ak
eh

ol
de

r P
hy

sic
ia

ns

On
 ta

rg
et

 / 
no

t y
et

 st
ar

te
d 

(n
ot

 d
ue

);
de

la
y/

sli
gh

t c
on

ce
rn

; o
ff 

ta
rg

et
/s

er
io

us
 co

nc
er

ns
11

8/
36

8



• • • • • • • • • • •

#
M

ile
st

on
es

St
ar

t D
at

e
D

ue
 D

at
e

W
ho

St
at

us
 

R
/Y

/G

1
Ph

on
e 

Ro
un

di
ng

 w
ith

 H
os

pi
ta

lis
ts

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
DC

P
an

d 
da

te
12

/3
0/

24
01

/2
7/

25
De

ni
ce

/D
r

Sa
id

2
CM

 u
til

izi
ng

 D
el

ay
 o

f C
ar

e 
ta

bs
 a

nd
 T

S 
us

in
g 

w
or

k 
lis

t f
ro

m
 

ta
b

01
/2

7/
25

02
/2

4/
25

De
ni

ce
/T

S

On
 ta

rg
et

 / 
no

t y
et

 st
ar

te
d 

(n
ot

 d
ue

);
de

la
y/

sli
gh

t c
on

ce
rn

; o
ff 

ta
rg

et
/s

er
io

us
 co

nc
er

ns

11
9/

36
8



Ne
xt

 M
ee

tin
g:

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, F

eb
ru

ar
y 

26
, 2

02
4

2:
00

p-
3:

30
p

Gr
an

ite
 R

oo
m

12
0/

36
8



Separator Page

FINAL Q4 2024 Quarterly Compliance Report - Open
Session

121/368



Prepared: February 2025

COMPLIANCE PROGRAM ACTIVITY REPORT – Open Meeting
Ben Cripps, Chief Compliance and Risk Officer

November 2024 through January 2025
EDUCATION

Live Presentations 
Compliance and Patient Privacy – New Hire Orientation
Compliance and Patient Privacy – Management Orientation
Compliance and Patient Privacy – Emergency Medicine PGY3 Administration Rotation
Compliance and Patient Privacy – HIM Annual Education
Compliance and Patient Privacy – Patient Accounting Annual Education
Compliance and Patient Privacy – Case Management Annual Education
Patient Privacy – Charge Nurse Curriculum

Written Communications – Bulletin Board / Area Compliance Experts (ACE) / All Staff / 
Leadership

Importance of the Conditions of Admission
Identity Theft
Think Before You Act – Fairwarning
Federal Stark Law: Physician Gifts/Non-Monetary Compensation Limit 2025

PREVENTION AND DETECTION

California Department of Public Health (CDPH) All Facility Letters (AFL) – Review and 
distribute AFLs to areas potentially affected by regulatory changes; department responses 
reviewed and tracked to address the regulatory change and identify potential current/future risk

o Six (6) AFL’s distributed and tracked between November 2024 – January 2025

Medicare and Medi-Cal Monthly Bulletins – Review and distribute bulletins to areas 
potentially affected by the regulatory change; department responses reviewed and tracked to 
address the regulatory change and identify potential current/future risk

o Four hundred and fifty-three (453) bulletins distributed as assignments to department 
leaders and tracked between November 2024 – January 2025

Eighty-five percent (85%) compliance rate with assignment responses 
submitted within 15 days per policy. Fallouts are tracked and escalated as 
appropriate.

Office of Inspector General (OIG) Monthly Audit Plan Updates – Review and distribute 
OIG Audit Plan issues to areas potentially affected by audit issue; department responses
reviewed and tracked to identify potential current/future risk

o Twenty (20) OIG audit plan issues distributed and tracked between November 2024 
– January 2025

California State Senate and Assembly Bill Updates – Review and distribute legislative 
updates to areas potentially affected by new or changed bills; department responses reviewed 
and tracked to address regulatory change and identify potential current or future risk

122/368



Prepared: February 2025 

o Thirteen (13) newly approved Assembly Bills distributed and tracked between 
November 2024 – January 2025 

o Three (3) newly approved Senate Bills distributed and tracked between November 
2024 – January 2025 
 

 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Final Rule  – Review and distribution 
of the 2025 CMS Final Rule for Inpatient Prospective Payment System (IPPS), Outpatient 
Prospective Payment System (OPPS), Inpatient Psychiatric Facility (IPF), Inpatient 
Rehabilitation Facility (IRF), End-Stage Renal Disease (ESRD), Skilled Nursing Facility 
(SNF), Home Health, Hospice, and Physician Fee Schedule (PFS) Prospective Payment 
System policy and payment updates; department responses reviewed and tracked to address 
the regulatory change and identify potential current/future risk 

o Two hundred and ten (210) topics distributed as assignments to department leaders 
 

 Patient Privacy Walkthrough – Quarterly observations of privacy practices and privacy-
related regulatory requirements including signage throughout Kaweah Health’s inpatient and 
outpatient facilities; issues identified communicated to area Management for follow-up and 
education  

o Findings of the quarterly privacy walkthroughs performed between November 
2024 – January 2025 noted: 

 Distribution and confirmation of new Discrimination signage 
 

 Electronic Medical Record (EMR) User Access Privacy Audits – Daily monitoring of EMR 
user access through the use of FairWarning electronic monitoring technology which analyzes 
user and patient data to detect potential privacy violations 

o Average of one hundred and thirty-eight (138) daily alerts reviewed and 
investigated between November 2024 – January 2025 

 
 Office of Inspector General (OIG) Exclusion Attestations – Quarterly monitoring of OIG 

Exclusion List review and attestations. Monthly screening and review of OIG Exclusion List 
for non-credentialed providers who have ordered ancillary services for patients presenting at 
the medical center 

o Nine (9) non-credentialed providers identified on the Medicare Opt-Out list 
between November 2024 – January 2025, findings tracked and logged in the 
system. No additional action required as the patients for whom services were 
ordered did not have Medicare coverage 

 
OVERSIGHT 

 Fair Market Value (FMV) Oversight – Ongoing oversight and administration of physician 
payment rate setting and contracting activities including Physician Recruitment, Medical 
Directors, Call Contracts, and Exclusive and Non-Exclusive Provider Contracts  
  

 Medicare Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) and Medicare Probe Audit Activity – 
Records preparation, tracking, appeal timelines, and reporting 

o The following RAC Audit Activity took place between November 2024 – January 
2025: 

 Eighty-eight (88) new RAC audit requests received, tracked and processed 
 Seven (7) RAC audit request appeals approved 

123/368



Prepared: February 2025 

 Six (6) RAC audit request appeals denied 
 Seventy-seven (77) RAC audit request responses pending in review status 

 
 Licensing Applications and Medi-Cal/Medicare Facility Enrollment – Forms preparation 

and submission of licensing applications to the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH); ongoing communication and follow-up regarding status of pending applications. The 
following applications for licensure and/or enrollment were completed between November 
2024 – January 2025:  

o Sequoia Regional Cancer Center Facility Medicare enrollment 
o Skilled Nursing Facility Medicare revalidation enrollment 
o Willow Suites 2nd & 5th Floors On-Campus Provider Designation Medicare 

enrollment updates 
o Kaweah Health Cardiology Center - Tulare Medi-Cal enrollment 

 
 KD Hub Non–Employee User Access – Oversight and administration of non-employee user 

onboarding, privacy education, and user profile tracking; evaluate, document, and respond to 
requests for additional system access; on-going management of non-employee KD Hub users 

o Ninety-nine (99) system access applications were received and processed 
o A new user access application and tracking system was developed and implemented 

to replace the previous vendor, resulting in cost savings 
 

 
RESEARCH, CONSULTATION AND OVERSIGHT 

 
 Conditions of Admission (COA) and Overall Registration Policy Process – Consultation 

and oversight; Compliance was engaged to evaluate the Conditions of Admission (COA) 
process, specifically to establish a standardized protocol outlining the required frequency for 
the completion of COAs for individual patient visits as well as treatment series encounters, in 
which a patient is receiving repetitive outpatient treatments ordered by a practitioner for the 
treatment of a specific medical condition or diagnosis for a defined period of time. Workgroups 
reviewed regulations, policies, processes and current workflows, which identified gaps 
surrounding consistent application and formal definition of treatment series encounters. 
Policies and workflows were established to standardize the definition of treatment series 
encounters across all outpatient departments to ensure consistent COA requirements.  

 
 Inpatient Rehabilitation Facility (IRF) Preadmission Screening Clinical Scope – Research 

and Consultation; Compliance was engaged to assess the scope of clinical personnel within the 
Inpatient Rehabilitation Facility (IRF) to conduct the preadmission screening process for 
admission to the IRF; specifically if Licensed Vocational Nurses (LVNs) were qualified to 
perform the screening according to regulatory requirements. The Medicare Benefit Policy 
Manual was reviewed and determined that qualified, licensed or certified clinical staff, 
including LVNs, may perform the preadmission screening as determined by IRF physicians. 
Findings were shared with IRF leadership. 

 
 Reporting of County Mental Health Patients SB 929 – Research and Consultation; 

Compliance was engaged by Patient and Family Services (PFS) to review and determine the 
appropriateness and extent of mental health 5150-designated patient data to be reported to 
Tulare County in accordance with Senate Bill 929 (SB929). SB929 was reviewed along with 

124/368



Prepared: February 2025 

state and federal privacy laws. Guidance outlining the appropriate data elements to include 
within SB929 required reporting was provided to PFS leadership. 

 
 Speech Language Pathologist (SLP) Certification Billing –  Research and Consultation; 

Compliance was engaged to evaluate the impact on billing for services for Speech Language 
Pathologists (SLPs) who obtain a national Certificate of Clinical Competence in Audiology 
and Speech-Language Pathology. Research into the chargemaster and SLP Medicare billable 
codes was conducted and determined that there is only one code used for billing SLP services, 
regardless of additional certification. Findings were shared with Rehabilitation Leadership.   
 

 Nasal Swab Scope of Practice in the Emergency Department –  Research and Consultation; 
Compliance was engaged to evaluate the scope of practice to perform nasal swabs for three of 
the clinical roles in the Emergency Department (ED). The scope of practice for Emergency 
Department Technicians (ED Techs), Medical Assistants (MAs), and Certified Nursing 
Assistants (CNAs) were reviewed, in addition to Title 22 regulatory guidance outlining 
requirements in a hospital setting. It was determined that ED Techs and MAs are allowed to 
perform nasal swabs, however CNAs are not.  Findings were shared with ED Leadership. 

 
 Retacrit (Epotin) Charging Issue – Consultation and Oversight; The Compliance 

Department was notified of a charge issue for inpatient Dialysis pharmaceutical drug, 
Retacrit. During a routine charge audit, it was identified that multiple accounts were holding 
for Retacrit due to charges exceeding the allowable billable units for the drug’s associated 
revenue code. Through a review of the issue, it was discovered that the charge was 
inadvertently built for a single-dose vial, however, the drug was being dispensed as a multi-
dose vial.  Due to this discrepancy, the total charges and dose quantities were incorrect. After 
review of the 340B CDMs/NDCs and accumulations associated, it was noted that the 
accumulations matched the product which was appropriate.  A charge audit was completed 
and determined that due to the accumulations being accurate and having no financial impact, 
there was no need to process corrected claims. An audit conducted in December 2024 
confirmed effective corrective measures. 

 
 

AUDITING AND MONITORING 

 
 High Cost DRG, Inpatient Amputations & Outpatient Watchman Coding Audit – As a 

part of Kaweah Health’s auditing and monitoring processes, high-cost procedures and services, 
as well as new procedures, are evaluated as potential risk areas for accurate coding and billing. 
Through the risk assessment process, an audit was initiated to evaluate the accuracy of high-
cost and amputation inpatient Diagnosis-Related Group (DRG) coding assignments and 
outpatient watchman procedure coding. An external audit agency was engaged to conduct a 
facility review of fifty-six (56) randomly selected Medicare patient encounters, twenty-four 
(24) of which were inpatient encounters with high-cost DRG assignments, thirty-one (31) of 
which were inpatient amputation encounters, and one (1) of which was an outpatient watchman 
procedure with dates of service between July 1- August 31, 2024.  Clinical coding and billing 
documentation was reviewed to evaluate accuracy and compliance in accordance with 
Medicare guidelines.  The review noted a ninety-two percent (92%) DRG accuracy rate, 
resulting in four (4) total DRG changes, of which three (3) were underpayments totaling 
$46,330 and one (1) overpayment totaling $1,111. The review noted a virtually untraceable net 
financial error rate of 0.08%. The results of the outpatient watchman procedure resulted in a 

125/368



Prepared: February 2025 

100% procedure code accuracy and a net financial error rate of 0%. The findings of the review 
have been communicated with the coding leadership team. Risks associated with inpatient 
DRG, inpatient amputation and outpatient watchman procedure coding will be monitored to 
determine if a reaudit will be required in the future. 

 

126/368



Separator Page

Hospice Board report 2.2025

127/368



1

Hospice Services
Tiffany Bullock, RN, BSN Contact number: 559-624-6447
Melany Gambini, RN Contact number: 559-624-8647
Director of Hospice Services
February 20, 2025

Summary Issue/Service Considered
Kaweah Health Hospice’s mission is to deliverer optimal end-of-life care to pediatric and 
adult populations in Kings/Tulare. Southern Fresno counties via the hospice and
concurrent care program. Hospice provides physical, emotional, social and spiritual 
support to terminally ill patients as well as their families using a team approach to help 
them live with dignity and comfort as they cope with end-of-life issues. The Ruth Wood 
Open Arms house complements hospice services by providing a home for end-of-life 
care for our community when patients have no other resources for care to be provided 
elsewhere.
Hospice and concurrent care services provide nursing, physical and occupational therapy,
spiritual counselors, social work services and home health aides to assist with personal care.
In addition, Kaweah Health Hospice utilizes volunteers to provide much needed services to 
patients that could not be provided otherwise. This year a part time volunteer specialist was 
hired through a grant from the Kaweah Health Hospice Foundation to increase efforts to 
recruit and place volunteers for the benefit of our hospice patients. Additionally, this 
volunteer specialist will also utilize some volunteers to provide education to our local skilled 
nursing and assisted living facilities to increase awareness of the benefits and advantages 
of utilizing Kaweah Health Hospice.
Of note is the fact that Kaweah Health Hospice continues to see children seeking 
concurrent care. For calendar year 2024 pediatric Average Daily Census (ADC) was
82.5, an increase of 5.5 from FY2023. In addition, in 2024, we began to service children 
in the Southern Fresno County area due to a need which was not being met by hospice 
agencies from Fresno County.
Hospice utilizes Kaweah Health Home Infusion Pharmacy for medications needed for 
patients and works closely with them in coordinating services. The ability to receive 
medications for patients at the reduced cost lends to profitability.
Hospice continues to be able to provide care to indigent patients who do not have 
insurance or means to pay for services with the support of the Kaweah Health Hospice 
Foundation. Additionally, while the Open Arms House does depend on residents and 
family members to help cover the cost of care to the best of their financial ability, if family 
is unable to cover the cost, we can offer a reduced rate based on the patient’s income. 
The difference in cost will be covered through our partnership with Kaweah Health 
Hospice Foundation.

Financial/statistical Analysis
Hospice
o Average daily census for FY2024 was 120. There is no change in this from FY2023. 

There have been minimal changes to expenses with volumes projected to remain the 
same from the previous year.

o Hospice had a FY2023 contribution margin of $2.8 million, a slight increase from the 
previous fiscal year.

o Net revenue per unit of service was $214, up 7% from FY2023.

Kaweah Health Care District 
Annual Report to the Board of Directors

pppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppiciciiciccciciciciciiccccicicccccccciccccccccicccccccccc

eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee

128/368



2

o Direct cost per unit of service increased by 5.5% from $141 to $150. This is primarily 
attributed to an increase in salaries due to pay for performance increases and market 
rate adjustments.

o Contribution margin has increased from $58 to $64 in FY2024. This is due to efforts to 
ensure we operating lean and also continue working with billing services to maximize 
collections.

o The average length of stay for 2024 was 17 days for adults. This is a notable decrease 
from previous years. Increased length of stay results in increased revenue as well as
patients/families being able to receive the full benefit of the Hospice services. This is the 
result of the majority of referrals coming from the acute hospital where patients continue 
to seek treatment until the very end of life, leading to very short lengths of stay in 
Hospice.

o In 2024, billing services were outsourced to Simitree Healthcare. The goal was to 
increase collections and decrease avoidable adjustments. This began September 1, 
2024. Evaluation continues taking place to determine the benefit of this, but at this time 
is looks optimistic.

Open Arms House
o FY2024 showed 1,112 patient days. This equates to an average daily census of 3 

residents. This is a 6.6% increase from FY2023. 
o FY2024 showed a 2.5% increase in expenses, due to market rate increases for staff.

The Hospice Foundation, through monies received from donations and fund raising 
events, covers losses seen by the Open Arms House annually. Since opening the home 
in July 2022, the Hospice Foundation has made the District whole each fiscal year.

Quality/Performance Improvement Data
Quality reporting - Hospice

Hospice Item Set (HIS) data - Mandated reporting of data collected and reported to 
Medicare (CMS) on admission and at time of death or discharge. Reporting time 
frames have been met. We exceed the national benchmark in all elements.
Hospice Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (CAHPS) survey - 
This is a CMS mandated survey that measures caregiver experience as well as quality
measure information received from submissions on the Hospice Item Set. We exceed the 
national percentage in all elements in both categories of family caregiver experience as 
well as quality of patient care. We currently have a 4-star rating for family caregiver 
survey summaries.
In October 2025, CMS has scheduled to utilize the Hospice Outcomes and Patient 
Evaluation (HOPE) tool. This will be a new assessment tool for hospices which will 
replace the HIS as part of the Hospice Quality Reporting Program.  

PI measures
As is noted from the graphs below and mentioned above, Hospice meets or exceeds the 
national averages in all categories. Measures were recently submitted to the District Quality 
Committee via the ProStaff that will be the focus over the next year. These measures were
chosen either due to recent decreases or as matter of importance to the overall quality of 
care. These measures include team provided training on breathing and team provided family 
with training on side effects. These statistics are obtained from NRC, an independent 
company we contract with the distribute the survey. These are used because they can 
provide more current, relevant and detailed data than that reported by CMS on Hospice 
Compare. This information from NRC will eventually be submitted to CMS and will be 
publicly reported. Action plans to stabilize and/or increase percentages in these measures 
have been implemented and are being monitored.

ctcttctttttctcttctcctctctcttcttctcctctttcttttcctccccccccccccccccccttcc

ririririrrirrririrrrirrriiirirrrrrirririirrrirrrirrrrrrirrirrrii

avaavavavaaaaavavavavavaaavvavavaavavvvaaavvvvvvaavvavavaavvavavvvaavvavvavavaavvvavaaavaavaav

129/368



3

80% 75% 70% 75%
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Q2 23 Q3 23 Q4 23 Q1 24

CAHPS Hospice Quality Measure:
Team provided training on breathing

2023 Average Goal 2024

Goal: 78%

Average: 75%

71% 78.3% 65.4% 61.9%
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Q2 23 Q3 23 Q4 23 Q1 24

CAHPS Hospice Quality Measure:
Team provided family with training on side effects

2023 Average Goal 2024

Goal:71%
Average: 69.3%

130/368



4  

Quality reporting – Open Arms House 
In September 2024, satisfaction surveys began being sent to families after their loved one had 
expired at the Open Arms House. The goal is to obtain meaningful feedback for improvement and 
increase satisfaction. After the first round of results were received, it was noted 98% rated the home 
as “excellent” with one response noting it as “good”. These will continue to be sent and results 
shared with all interested parties. 

 
 
Policy, Strategic or Tactical Issues  
 Kaweah Health Hospice continues to see competition from the for-profit agencies in this 

area. These agencies have a strong emphasis on marketing to the community 
physicians and facilities and the finances to support these endeavors. In January 2025, a 
new Director was hired for Hospice with a revised job description. In addition to director 
responsibilities, this position has also been revised to include marketing and community 
relation efforts and a salary bonus paid for meeting or exceeding defined metrics. Focus 
will be on capturing more market share of referrals received from community skilled 
nursing and assisted living facilities. 

 Kaweah Health Ruth Wood Open Arms continues to flourish in providing much needed 
assistance to our vulnerable Kaweah Health Hospice patients who do not have care 
available to them in their own home. All of these patients are serviced by Kaweah Health 
Hospice, which generates revenue for this department as well. Since opening, it has 
served nearly 250 residents. 

 Hospice Director will continue weekly meetings with Simitree Healthcare to ensure billing 
is timely and collections are optimized. 

 
Recommendations/Next Steps  
 Continue to increase referral sources through marketing campaigns and efforts of 

Hospice Director and Kaweah Health Marketing Department, especially from community 
facilities. 

 Ongoing pre- and post-billing monitoring to ensure regulatory requirements are met and 
no revenue is lost. 

 Continued improvement and stabilization of financial performance.  

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Chart Title

Excellent Good Fair Poor

131/368



5  

 Increase the number of volunteers in Hospice. 
 Provide an increased presence at community events and service club meetings. 

 
Approvals/Conclusions  

In the coming year, hospice will focus on: 
1. Continue marketing campaigns/efforts to become the preferred hospice 

provider with the community and local facilities. 
2. Continued review of profitability, look for means to maintain contribution 

margins and cost of care, increase patient satisfaction, increase staff 
satisfaction and achieve clinical excellence. 

3. Grow the hospice volunteer program. 
4. Continue to utilize the Open the Kaweah Health Ruth Wood Open Arms House for 

patients with the need. 
 

132/368



FY2025 
annualized

NonCerner 
Total

oran
ge

GRE
EN

RED
GREE
N

GREEN

0% 7% 2% 17% 35%

NonCerner Total

4 YR TREND

0%

7%

2%

17%

7%

35%

7%

3%

17%

NIT OF SERVICE (Hospice Days

Contrb Margin Per UOS $65 $58 $64 $75

Direct Cost Per UOS $119 $141 $150 $154

Net Revenue Per UOS $184 $199 $214 $229

Net Income 2,029,885 $758,974 $970,836 $1,312,970

Indirect Cost 1,224,926 $1,847,031 $1,832,254 $1,964,420

Contribution Margin 3,254,811 $2,606,005 $2,803,090 $3,277,390

Direct Cost 5,986,228 $6,332,600 $6,518,457 $6,672,216

($740,196)

43,442 $9,949,606 $6,672,216 $1,312,970

Open Arms

$3,277,390

Net Revenue 9,241,039 8,938,605 $9,321,547 $9,949,606

%CHANGE FROM 
PRIOR YR

50,259 44,843 43,572 43,442

1,380 $458,790 $458,790 $0

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 
Annualized

2,376,492 

NET INCOME

METRICS BY SERVICE LINE - FY 2025

SERVICE LINE UNIT OF SERVICE 
(Hospice Days) DIRECT COST

43,442 9,949,606 6,672,216 3,277,390 

Hospice

NET REVENUE CONTRIBUTION 
MARGIN

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

42,062 $9,490,816 $6,213,426 $3,277,390 $2,053,166

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Hospice Services - Summary 

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 - Six Months Annualized through December 31, 2024

UNIT OF SERVICE 
(Hospice Days) NET REVENUE DIRECT COST CONTRIBUTION 

MARGIN NET INCOME

133/368



FY2025 
annualized

Hospice

RED
GRE
EN

RED
GRE
EN

GREEN

-1% 6% 1% 17% 31%

4 YR 
TREND

-1%

6%

1%

17%

-1%

31%

7%

2%

18%

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
Reimb/ 
Hospice 

Day
Medi-Cal Managed Care 33% 39% 39% 39%
Medicare 32% 28% 25% 23% $211
Managed Care/Other 20% 23% 22% 19% $218
Medi-Cal 14% 9% 14% 19%
Medi-Cal MC/Medi-Cal Comb 48% 49% 53% 58% $235

Source: Non-Cerner Service Line Report
Note: Hospice Service Line

UNIT OF SERVICE GRAPH - HOSPICE DAYS TRENDED

CONTRIBUTION 
MARGIN

$3,277,390 

PAYER

UNIT OF SERVICE 
(Hospice Days) NET REVENUE DIRECT COST

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND

METRIC FY2022 FY2023

NET INCOME

42,062 $9,490,816 $6,213,426 $2,053,166 

FY2024 FY2025 
annualized

%CHANGE 
FROM PRIOR 

YR

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Hospice Services
KEY METRICS - FY 2025 - Six Months Annualized through December 31, 2024

Net Revenue $9,241,039 $8,582,828 $8,930,495 $9,490,816

Unit of Service (Hospice Days) 50,259 43,805 42,460 42,062

Contribution Margin $3,254,811 $2,605,778 $2,801,813 $3,277,390

Direct Cost $5,986,228 $5,977,050 $6,128,682 $6,213,426

Net Income $2,029,885 $1,380,699 $1,566,006 $2,053,166

Indirect Cost $1,224,926 $1,225,079 $1,235,807 $1,224,224

Direct Cost per UOS $119 $136 $144 $148

Net Revenue per UOS $184 $196 $210 $226

FY 2025 Payer Mix
PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (Gross Charges)

Contrb Margin per UOS $65 $59 $66 $78

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

$184 $196 $210 
$226 

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
annualized

Net Revenue per UOS

$119 
$136 $144 $148 

$0
$20
$40
$60
$80

$100
$120
$140
$160

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
annualized

Direct Cost per UOS

$65 $59 
$66 

$78 

$0
$10
$20
$30
$40
$50
$60
$70
$80
$90

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
annualized

Contrb Margin per UOS

Medi-Cal 
Managed 
Care 39%

Medicare
23%

Managed 
Care/Other

19%

Medi-Cal
19%

ource: Non Cerner Service Line Report

Medi-Cal MC/Medi-Cal Comb 48% 49% 53% 58% $235

134/368



FY2025 
annualized

Open Arms

G
R

G
R

R
E

R
E

RED

24% 17% 18% -100% -24%

4 YR 
TREND

24%

17%

18%

-100%

24%

-24%

-5%

-5%

-100%

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Managed Care/Other 0% 7% 6% 6%
Medicare 0% 0% 0% 0%
Medi-Cal Managed Care 0% 0% 0% 0%
Medi-Cal 0% 0% 0% 0%

Source: Non-Cerner Service Line Report
Note: Open Arms House Service Line

UNIT OF SERVICE 
(Hospice Days) NET REVENUE DIRECT COST CONTRIBUTION 

MARGIN NET INCOME

KAWEAH HEALTH ANNUAL BOARD REPORT FY2025
Hospice Services

KEY METRICS - FY 2025 - Six Months Annualized through December 31, 2024

Open Arms House

1,380 $458,790 $458,790 $0 ($740,196)

*Note:  Arrows represent the change from prior year and the lines represent the 4-year trend

METRICS SUMMARY -  4 YEAR TREND

METRIC FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 
annualized

%CHANGE FROM 
PRIOR YR

Net Revenue $0 $355,777 $391,052 $458,790

Unit of Service (Hospice Days) 0 1,038 1,112 1,380

Contribution Margin $0 $227 $1,277 $0

Direct Cost $0 $355,550 $389,775 $458,790

Net Income $0 ($621,725) ($595,170) ($740,196)

Indirect Cost $0 $621,952 $596,447 $740,196

$332

Direct Cost per UOS $0 $343 $351 $332

Net Revenue per UOS $0 $343 $352

Contrb Margin per UOS $0 $0 $1 $0

PER CASE TRENDED GRAPHS

FY 2025 Payer Mix

PAYER

UNIT OF SERVICE GRAPH - HOSPICE DAYS TRENDED

PAYER MIX - 4 YEAR TREND (Gross Charges)

$0 

$343 $352 $332 

$0
$50

$100
$150
$200
$250
$300
$350
$400

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
annualized

Net Revenue per UOS

$0 

$343 $351 $332 

$0
$50

$100
$150
$200
$250
$300
$350
$400

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
annualized

Direct Cost per UOS

$0 

$0 

$1 

$0 
$0

$0

$0

$1

$1

$1

$1

$1

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
annualized

Contrb Margin per UOS

Managed 
Care/Other

6%

Medicare
0%

Medi-Cal 
Managed Care

0%Medi-Cal
0%

-100%Contribution Margin $0 $227 $1,277 $0

135/368



Separator Page

AP41. Quality Improvement

136/368



Quality Improvement Plan 2

Administrative Manual

Policy Number: AP41 Date Created: Not Set
Document Owner: Cindy Moccio (Board Clerk/Exec
Assist-CEO)

Date Approved: 01/26/2022

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration)

Quality Improvement Plan

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

I. Purpose

The purpose of Kaweah Health’s Quality Improvement Plan is to have an 
effective, data-driven Quality AssessmentPerformance Improvement 
program that delivers high-quality, excellent clinical services and
enhances patient safety.

II. Scope

All Kaweah Health facilities, departments, patient care delivery units and/or
serviceareas fall within the scope of the quality improvement plan
requirements.

III. Structure and Accountability 

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors retain overall responsibility for the quality of patient
care. The Board approves the annual Quality Improvement Plan and
assures that appropriate allocation of resources is available to carry out that
plan.

The Board receives reports from the Medical Staff and Quality Council. The
Board shall act as appropriate on the recommendations of these bodies and
assure that efforts undertaken are effective and appropriately prioritized.

Quality Council

The Quality Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining the
organization’s Quality Improvement Plan and is chaired by a Board member.
The Quality Council shall consist of the Chief Executive Officer,
representatives of the Medical Staff and other key hospital leaders. It shall
hold primary responsibility for the functioning of the Quality Assessment and
Performance Improvement program. Because District quality improvement
activities may involve both the Medical Staff and other representatives of the
District, membership is multidisciplinary. The Quality Council requires the
Medical Staff and the organization’s staff to implement and report on the
activities for identifying and evaluating opportunities to improve patient care
and services throughout the organization. The effectiveness of the quality

137/368



Quality Improvement Plan 3 
 

improvement and patient safety activities will be evaluated and reported to the 
Quality Council. 

 
Quality Committee (“QComm”) 

 
In accordance with currently approved medical staff bylaws, shall be 
accountable for the quality of patient care. The Board delegates’ authority 
and responsibility for the monitoring, evaluation and improvement of 
medical care to the Quality Committee “QComm”, chaired by the Vice Chief 
of Staff and co-chaired by the CMO/CQO (or designee). The Chief of Staff 
delegates accountability for monitoring individual performance to the 
Clinical Department Chiefs. QComm shall receive reports from and assure 
the appropriate functioning of the Medical Staff committees. QComm 
provides oversight for medical staff quality functions including peer review. 
 
QComm has responsibility for oversight of organizational performance 
improvement. Membership includes key medical staff and organizational 
leaders including the Chief of Staff,  Medical Director of Quality and Patient 
Safety, Secretary-Treasurer, Immediate Past Chief of Staff,  Chief 
Executive Officer, Chief        Operating Officer, Chief Nursing Officer, Chief 
Informatics Officer, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Compliance and Risk Management Officer, Chief Strategy Officer, 
Directors of Quality and Patient Safety, Nursing Practice, Pharmacy, 
Accreditation, and Risk Management; Manager of Quality and Patient 
Safety, Manager of Infection Prevention and Environmental Safety Officer. 
This committee reports to Medical Executive Committee and the Quality 
Council. 

 
The QComm shall have primary responsibility for the following functions: 

 
1. Health Outcomes: The QComm shall assure that there is 

measureable improvement in indicators with a demonstrated link to 
improved health outcomes. Such indicators include but are not limited 
to measures reported to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services (CMS) and The Joint Commission (TJC), and other quality 
indicators, as appropriate. 

 
2. Quality Indicators: 

a. The QComm shall oversee measurement, and shall analyze and 
track quality indicators and other aspects of performance. These 
indicators shall measure the effectiveness and safety of services 
and quality of care. 

b. The QComm shall approve the specific indicators used for these 
purposes along with the frequency and detail of data collection. 

c. The Board shall ratify the indicators and the frequency and 
detail of data collection used by the program. 

 
3. Prioritization: The QComm shall prioritize quality improvement 

activities to assure that they are focused on high- risk, high- 
volume, or problem- prone areas. It shall focus on issues of 
known frequency, prevalence or severity and shall give 
precedence to issues that affect health 

138/368



Quality Improvement Plan 4 
 

outcomes, quality of care and patient safety. The QComm is responsible 
to      establish organizational Quality Focus Teams who: 

a. Are focused on enterprise-wide high priority, high risk, problem 
prone QI issues 

b. May require elevation, escalation and focus from senior 
leadership 

c. Have an executive team sponsor 
d. Are chaired by a Director or Vice President 

e. May have higher frequency of meetings as necessary to focus 
work and create sense of urgency. 

f. Report quarterly into the QAPI program 
 

4. Improvement: The QComm shall use the analysis of the data to 
identify opportunities for improvement and changes that will lead to 
improvement. The QComm will also oversee implementation of 
actions aimed at improving performance. 

 
5. Follow- Up: The QComm shall assure that steps are taken to improve 

performance and enhance safety are appropriately implemented, 
measured and tracked to determine that the steps have achieved and 
sustained the intended effect. 

 
6. Performance Improvement Projects: The QComm shall oversee 

quality improvement projects, the number and scope of which shall be 
proportional to the scope and complexity of the hospital’s services and 
operations. The QComm must also ensure there is documentation of 
what quality improvement projects are being conducted, the reasons 
for conducting those projects, and the measureable progress achieved 
on the projects. 

 
Medical Executive Committee 

 
The Medical Executive Committee (MEC) receives, analyzes and acts on 
performance improvement and patient safety findings from committees and is 
accountable to the Board of Directors for the overall quality of care 

 
IV. Graduate Medical Education 

Graduate Medical Education (Designated Institutional Official (DIO), faculty 
and residents, are involved in achieving quality and patient safety goals and 
improving patient care through several venues including but not limited to: 

 
a) Collaboration between Quality and Patient Safety Department, 

Risk Management, and GME Quality Subcommittee 
b) GME participation in Quality Improvement Committee and 

Patient Safety Committee 
c) GME participation in KDHCD quality committees and root cause 

analysis (including organizational dissemination of lessons 
learned) 

 
V. Methodologies: 
 

Quality improvement (QI) models present a systematic, formal framework for 139/368



Quality Improvement Plan 5 
 

establishing QI processes within an organization. QI models used include the 
following: 

 
 Model for Improvement (FOCUS Plan-Do-Study-Act [PDSA] cycles) 
 Six Sigma: Six Sigma is a method of improvement that strives to 

decrease variation and defects with the use of the DMAIC roadmap. 
 Lean: is an approach that drives out waste and improves efficiency in 

work processes so that all work adds value with the use of the DMAIC 
roadmap. 

 
1. The FOCUS-Plan, Do, Check, Act (PDCA) methodology is utilized to 

plan, design, measure, assess and improve functions and processes 
related to patient care and safety throughout the organization. 

 
 F—Find a process to improve 
 O—Organize effort to work on improvement 
 C—Clarify knowledge of current process 
 U---Understand process variation 
 S—Select improvement 

 
 Plan: 

 

 Objective and statistically valid performance measures 
are identified for monitoring and assessing processes 
and outcomes of care including those affecting a large 
percentage of patients, and/or place patients at serious 
risk if not performed well, or performed when not 
indicated, or not performed when indicated; and/or have 
been or likely to be problem prone. 

 
 Performance measures are based on current knowledge 

and clinical experience and are structured to represent 
cross-departmental, interdisciplinary processes, as 
appropriate. 

 
 Do: 

 

 Data is collected to determine: 
 Whether design specifications for new processes 

were met 
 The level of performance and stability of existing 

processes 
 Priorities for possible improvement of existing 

processes 
 

 Check: 
 

 Assess care when benchmarks or thresholds are 
reached in order to identify opportunities to improve 
performance or resolve problem areas 

 
 Act: 140/368



Quality Improvement Plan 6 
 

 

 Take actions to correct identified problem areas or 
improve performance 

 Evaluate the effectiveness of the actions taken and 
document the improvement in care 

 Communicate the results of the monitoring, assessment 
and evaluation process to relevant individuals, 
departments or services 

 
3. DMAIC (Lean Six Sigma): DMAIC is an acronym that stands for 

Define, Measure, Analyze, Improve, and Control. It represents the five 
phases that make up the road map for Lean Six Sigma QI initiatives. 

 
 Define the problem, improvement activity, opportunity for 

improvement, the project goals, and customer (internal and 
external) requirements. QI tools that may be used in this step 
include: 
o Project charter to define the focus, scope, direction, and 

motivation for the improvement team 
o Process mapping to provide an overview of an entire 

process, starting and finishing at the customer, and 
analyzing what is required to meet customer needs 

 Measure process performance. 
o Run/trend charts, histograms, control charts 
o Pareto chart to analyze the frequency of problems or 

causes 
 Analyze the process to determine root causes of variation and 

poor performance (defects). 
o Root cause analysis (RCA) to uncover causes 
o Failure mode and effects analysis (FMEA) for identifying 

possible product, service, and process failures 

Improve process performance by addressing and eliminating 
the root causes. 
o Pilot improvements and small tests of change to solve 

problems from complex processes or systems where 
there are many factors influencing the outcome 

o Kaizen event to introduce rapid change by focusing on a 
narrow project and using the ideas and motivation of the 
people who do the work 

 Control the improved process and future process performance. 
o Quality control plan to document what is needed to keep 

an improved process at its current level. Statistical 
process control (SPC) for monitoring process behavior 

o Mistake proofing (poka-yoke) to make errors impossible 
or immediately detectable 

 
VI. Confidentiality 
 

All quality assurance and performance improvement activities and data 
are protected under the Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986, 
as stated in the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff, 
and protected from discovery pursuant to California Evidence Code 
§1157. 141/368



Quality Improvement Plan 7 
 

 
VII. Annual Evaluation 
 

Organization and Medical Staff leaders shall review the effectiveness 
of the Quality Improvement Plan at least annually to insure that the 
collective effort is comprehensive and improving patient care and 
patient safety. An annual evaluation is completed to identify 
components of the plan that require development, revision or deletion. 
Organization and Medical Staff leaders also evaluate annually their 
contributions to the Quality Improvement Program and to the efforts in 
improving patient safety. 

 
VIII. Attachments 
 

Components of the Quality Improvement and Patient Safety Plan: 
 

Attachment 1: Quality Improvement Committee Structure 
Attachment 2: Kaweah Health Reporting Documents 
Attachment 3: Quality and Patient Safety Priorities, Outstanding 
Health Outcomes Strategic Plan  

 

"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally acceptable 
approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist. Deviations under 
appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care. New knowledge, new 
techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical circumstances may provide 
sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not described in the document." 

 
 

142/368



Quality Improvement Plan 8 
 

 

143/368



Quality Improvement Plan 9 
 

 
  

144/368



Attachment 1

QAPI Activities

Kaweah Health
Quality Reporting Structure

Medical Staff 
Services/ 

Committees

Kaweah Health 
Operational 

Departments

Committees

Board of Directors

Quality Council
(BOD Quality Subcommittee)

Quality Committee
“QComm”

Medical Executive 
Committee

QAPI Monitoring and 
Improvements

Issues Involving the 
Medical Staff

Peer Review Findings

All three groups 
have membership 

representation

Communication on Quality Issues

145/368



Attachment 2 

Quality Committee "QComm" Participating Depts/Services/Committees 
Departments within Kaweah Health participate in the Quality Improvement plan by prioritizing performance 
improvement activities based on high-risk, high-volume, or problem-prone areas. Department level indicators shall 
focus on issues of known frequency, prevalence or severity and shall give precedence to issues that affect health 
outcomes, quality of care and patient safety. Departments and committees include, but are not limited to: 

Professional & Patient Care Services 
Laboratory 
Blood Utilization 
Dept of Radiology/imaging Services (including Radiation Safety Report) 
Dept of Emergency Medicine 
Dept of Pathology 
EOC (Security, Facilities, Clinical Engineering, EVS, Employee Health, Workplace Violence) 
Peer Review 
Patient Access 
Population Health 
Nutrition Services 
Quality Incentives Program (QIP), includes all Rural Health Clinics (Exeter, Lindsay, Woodlake, Dinuba, Tulare) 
Pharmacy 
Inpatient Pharmacy 
Med Safety & ADE (Quarterly) 
MERP Annual Review 
Chemo Annual Review 
Infection Prevention Services 
Infection Prevention Committee 
Healthcare Acquired Infection Prevention Committee & Hand Hygiene 
Risk Management 
Risk Management (RCA and Focus Review Summary) 
Grievances 
Mental Health Services 
Dept of Psychiatry, Mental Health Hospital 
Maternal Child Health/ Dept of OB/GYN & Peds 
Labor & Delivery 
Mother Baby 
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit 
Pediatrics 
Respiratory Services 
Sleep Lab and EEG 
Respiratory Therapy and Pulmonary Function Test 
Care Management 
Patient & Family Services 

Case Management 
Interpreter Services 
Palliative Care Committee 
Episodic Care 
Emergency Dept. Quality Report 
Trauma Service 
Urgent Cares 
Cardiovascular Services 

146/368



Dept of Cardiovascular Services (ACC, STS); Cath lab, IR, CVCU, 4T and Cardiac Surgery 
Telemonitoring Report 
Non Invasive Inpatient Services 
Critical Care Services 
Intensive Care Unit, CVICU (non-cardiac), 3W, 5T 
Organ Donation  
Rehabilitation Services 
Rehabilitation 
Inpatient Therapies (KDMC, Rehab, South Campus) 
Outpatient Therapies: Medical Office Building Akers (MOB), Exeter, Sunnyside, Dinuba, Lovers Lane, Therapy 
Specialists at Rehab/Neuro 
Outpatient Wound Clinic at Rehab (included in Rehab report) 
Post Acute Services 
KH Home Infusion Pharmacy (KHHIP) 
Hospice 
Home Care Services (Home Health) 
Short-Stay Rehab 
Skilled Nursing Services (subacute and short-stay) 
Surgical Services 
SQIP - Surgical Quality Improvement Committee 
Ambulatory Surgery Center/PACU/KATS 
Operating Room 
Sterile Processing Department 
Inpatient units: Broderick Pavilion, 3N, 4S 
Anesthesia Services 
Orthopedics 
Endoscopy 
Renal Services/ Dept of Renal Services 
4 North 
KH Visalia Dialysis 
Publically Reported Measures 

Value Based Purchasing Report 
Healthgrades 
Leapfrog Hospital Safety Score 
Committees 
Health Equity 
Falls Committee 
RRT/Code Blue 
Patient Care Leadership (pain management) 
HAPI Committee (includes inpatient wound care) 
Sepsis Quality Focus Team 
Healthcare Acquired Infection Committee (CAUTI, CLABSI, MRSA, Hand Hygiene) 
Stroke Committee Report 
Diabetes Committee Report 
Accreditation Regulatory Committee Minutes & Audit Summary 
Workplace Violence Committee 
Bioethics Committee 
Throughput Committee 
Mortality Committee 
Patient Safety Committee 
HIM - HIM Committee 

 

147/368



Attachment 3

Kaweah Health Outstanding Health Outcomes

FY2025 Strategic Plan Measures & Goals

Measure Name Goal
Healthcare Acquired Infections
Central Line Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) ≤0.486 Standardized Infection Ratio
Central Line Utilization ≤0.6633 Standardized Utilization Ratio
Catheter-Associated Urinary Tract Infection (CAUTI) ≤0.342 Standardized Infection Ratio
Indwelling Urinary Catheter Utilization ≤0.6363 Standardized Utilization Ratio
Methicillin-Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA) ≤0.435 Standardized Infection Ratio
Sepsis
SEP-1 Bundle % Compliance (CMS Core Measure) ≥81%
Sepsis All Diagnosis Mortality Rate ≤0.61 Observed/Expected
Diabetes
% Hypoglycemia in Critical Care (CC) Patients < 4.3%
% Hypoglycemia with at least one recurrent 
hypoglycemic day CC Patients 26.8%

% Hypoglycemia in Non-Critical Care (NCC) Patients < 3.4%
% Hypoglycemia with at least one recurrent 
hypoglycemic day NCC Patients <29.6%

Health Equity
Achieved compliance on all Joint Commission HE 
National Patient Safety Goal Elements of Performance 4/4 elements compliant

Quality Incentive Pool (QIP)
Number of QIP measures that achieve target 15/15 QIP Measures achieve goal
Mortality & Readmission
Heart Failure (HF) Mortality ≤0.48 Observed/Expected
Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) Mortality ≤0.70 Observed/Expected
Pneumonia (PN) Bacterial Mortality ≤0.57 Observed/Expected
Pneumonia (PN) Viral Mortality ≤0.44 Observed/Expected
HF Readmission ≤12.1%
COPD Readmission ≤9.09%
PN Readmission ≤8.24%
Cardiovascular Services
PCI In-Hospital Risk-Adjusted Mortality Rate – STEMI ≤1.9%
Risk-Standardized Acute Kidney Injury Post PCI ≤ 5.6%
Risk Standardized Bleeding Rate ≤ 1.24%

148/368



Separator Page

AP175 Patient Safety

149/368



Administrative Manual

Policy Number:    AP175 Date Created:  Not Set
Document Owner: Kelsie Davis (Board 
Clerk/Executive Assistant to CEO)

Date Approved: 02/06/2024

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Kelsie Davis (Board Clerk/Executive Assistant 
to CEO)

Patient Safety Plan

Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version.

I. Purpose

Encourage organizational learning about medical/health care risk events and near misses
Encourage recognition and reporting of medical/health events and risks to patient safety 
using just culture concepts
Collect and analyze data, evaluate care processes for opportunities to reduce risk and initiate 
actions 
Report internally what has been found and the actions taken with a focus on processes and 
systems to reduce risk
Support sharing of knowledge to effect behavioral changes in itself and within Kaweah Delta 
Healthcare District dba Kaweah Health (Kaweah Health)

II. Scope

All Kaweah Health facilities, departments, patient care delivery units and/or service areas fall 
within the scope of the quality improvement and patient safety plan requirements.

III. Structure and Accountability

A. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors retains overall responsibility for the quality of patient care and patient 
safety.   The Board approves annually the Patient Safety Plan and assures that appropriate 
allocation of resources is available to carry out that plan. 

The Board receives reports from the Patient Safety Committee through the Professional Staff 
Quality Committee. The Board shall act as appropriate on the recommendations of these 
bodies and assure that efforts undertaken are effective and appropriately prioritized. 

B. Quality Council

The Quality Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining the organization’s Patient 
Safety Plan and is chaired by a Board member.  The Quality Council shall consist of the Chief 
Executive Officer, representatives of the Medical Staff and other key hospital leaders. It shall 
hold primary responsibility for the functioning of the Quality Assessment and Performance 
Improvement program.  Because District performance improvement activities may involve 
both the Medical Staff and other representatives of the District, membership is 
multidisciplinary. The Quality Council requires the Medical Staff and the organization’s staff to 
implement and report on the activities for identifying and evaluating opportunities to improve 
patient care and services throughout the organization.  The effectiveness of the quality 
improvement and patient safety activities will be evaluated and reported to the Quality 
Council. 

C. Patient Safety Committee

The Patient Safety Team is a standing interdisciplinary group that manages the 
organization’s Patient Safety Program through a systematic, coordinated, continuous 
approach.  The Team will meet monthly to assure the maintenance and improvement of 
Patient Safety in establishment of plans, processes and mechanisms involved in the 
provision of the patient care.

150/368



Patient Safety Plan  2 
 

The scope of the Patient Safety Team includes medical/healthcare risk events involving the 
patient population of all ages, visitors, hospital/medical staff, students and volunteers. 
Aggregate data* from internal (IS data collection, incident reports, questionnaires,) and 
external resources (Sentinel Event Alerts, evidence based medicine, etc.) will be used for 
review and analysis in prioritization of improvement efforts, implementation of action steps 
and follow-up monitoring for effectiveness.  The Patient Safety Committee has oversight of 
Kaweah Health activities related to the National Quality Forum’s (NQF) Safe Practices (SP) 
Medication Safety, Section #4 Maternity Care, #5 ICU physician staffing, #6 A-D Culture of 
Safety Leadership Structures & System Documentation, Culture Measurement, Feedback & 
Intervention Documentation, Nursing workforce and Hand Hygiene, #7 Managing Serious 
Errors, and #8 Bard Code Medication Administration. 

1. The Patient Safety Officer is the Chief Quality Officer 

2. The Patient Safety Committee is chaired by the Patient Safety Officer or designee.  

3. The responsibilities of the Patient Safety Officer include institutional compliance with 
patient safety standards and initiatives, reinforcement of the expectations of the Patient 
Safety Plan, and acceptance of accountability for measurably improving safety and 
reducing errors.  These duties may include listening to employee and patient concerns, 
interviews with staff to determine what is being done to safeguard against occurrences, 
and immediate response to reports concerning workplace conditions. 

4. Team membership includes services involved in providing patient care, such as: 
Pharmacy, Surgical Services, Risk Management, Infection Prevention, and Nursing.  The 
medical staff representative on the team will be the Medical Director of Quality & Patient 
Safety.  

D. Medication Safety Quality Focus Team 

The Medication Safety Quality Focus Team (MSQFT) is an interdisciplinary group that 
manages the organizations Medication Safety Program including the District Medication Error 
Reduction Plan (MERP).   

The purpose of the MSQFT is to direct system actions regarding reductions in errors 
attributable to medications promoting effective and safe use of medication throughout the 
organization.  Decisions are made utilizing data review, approval of activities, resource 
allocation, and monitoring activities.  Activities include processes that are high risk, high 
volume, or problem prone, some of which may be formally approved by the MSQFT as a 
District MERP goal (see Policy AP154 Medication Error Reduction Plan).     

The MSQFT provides a monthly report to the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee and 
quarterly reports to the Professional Staff Quality Committee and directly to Quality Council.  
The MSQFT Chair is a member of the Patient Safety Committee.  A quarterly report is 
presented at Patient Safety Committee in addition to active participation in patient safety 
activities related to medication use.     

IV. Organization and Function 

A. The mechanism to insure all components of the organization are integrated into the program 
is through a collaborative effort of multiple disciplines. This is accomplished by: 

1. Reporting of potential or actual occurrences through the Occurrence Reporting Process 
Policy (AP10) by any employee or member of the medical staff.  Examples of potential or 
actual occurrences include pressure ulcers, falls, adverse drug events, and 
misconnecting of:  intravenous lines, enteral feeding tubes and epidural lines. 

2. Reporting of potential or actual concerns in a daily leadership safety huddle which 
involves issues which occurred within the last 24 hours, a review the steps taken to 
resolve those matters when applicable, and anticipate challenges or safety issues in the 
next 24 hours.  The daily safety huddle occurs Monday to Friday with the exception of 
holidays and includes directors and vice presidents that represent areas throughout the 
organization.  The purpose of the daily safety huddle is immediate organizational 
awareness and action when warranted.  Examples of issues brought forth in the Daily 
Safety Huddle include, patients at risk for elopement, violence, or suicide, and also can 
include potential diversion events, patient fall events, and medication related events. 

151/368



Patient Safety Plan  3 
 

3. Communication between the Patient Safety Officer and the Chief Operating Officer to 
assure a comprehensive knowledge of not only clinical, but also environmental factors 
involved in providing an overall safe environment. 

4. Reporting of patient safety and operational safety measurements/activity to the 
performance improvement oversight committee, Quality Committee “Qcomm”.  QComm 
is a multidisciplinary medical staff committee composed of various key organizational 
leaders including:  Medical Staff Officers, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating 
Officer, Chief Medical Officer/Chief Quality Officer, Chief Nursing Officer, and Directors of 
Nursing, Quality Improvement & Patient Safety, Risk Management, Safety Officer and 
Pharmacy.  

5. Graduate Medical Education 

i. Graduate Medical Education (Designated Institutional Official (DIO), faculty and 
residents, are involved in achieving quality and patient safety goals and 
improving patient care through several venues including but not limited to: 

1. Collaboration between Quality and Patient Safety Department, Risk 
Management, and GME Quality Subcommittee 

2. GME participation in Quality Improvement Committee and Patient Safety 
Committee 

3. GME participation in Kaweah Health quality committees and root cause 
analysis  (including organizational dissemination of lessons learned) 

 

B. The mechanism for identification and reporting a Sentinel Event/other medical error will be as 
indicated in Organizational Policies AP87.  Any root cause analysis of hospital processes 
conducted on either Sentinel Events or near misses will be submitted for 
review/recommendations to the Patient Safety Committee, Quality Committee and Quality 
Council. 

C. As this organization supports the concept that events most often occur due to a breakdown in 
systems and processes, staff involved in an event with an adverse outcome will be supported 
by: 

1. A non-punitive approach without fear of reprisal (just culture concepts).   
2. Voluntary participation into the root cause analysis for educational purposes and 

prevention of further occurrences.   
3. Resources such as Pastoral Care, Social Services, or EAP should the need exist to 

counsel the staff   
4. Safety culture staff survey administered at least every 2 years to targeted staff and 

providers.  
 

D. As a member of an integrated healthcare system and in cooperation with system initiatives, 
the focus of Patient Safety activities include processes that are high risk, high volume or 
problem prone, and may include: 
1. Adverse Drug Events 
2. Nosocomial Infections 
3. Decubitus Ulcers 
4. Blood Reactions 
5. Slips and Falls 
6. Restraint Use 
7. Serious Event Reports 
8. DVT/PE 

E. A proactive component of the program includes the selection at least every 18 months of a 
high risk or error prone process for proactive risk assessment such as a Failure Modes 
Effects Analysis (FMEA), ongoing measurement and periodic analysis. The selected process 

152/368



Patient Safety Plan  4 
 

and approach to be taken will be approved by the Patient Safety Committee, QComm and 
Quality Council. 

The selection may be based on information published by The Joint Commission (TJC) 
Sentinel Event Alerts, and/or other sources of information including risk management, 
performance improvement, quality assurance, infection prevention, research, patient/family 
suggestions/expectations or process outcomes. 

F. Methods to assure ongoing inservices, education and training programs for maintenance and 
improvement of staff competence and support to an interdisciplinary approach to patient care 
is accomplished by: 

1. Providing information and reporting mechanisms to new staff in the orientation training. 
2. Providing ongoing education in organizational communications such as newsletters and 

educational bundles.  
3. Obtaining a confidential assessment of staff’s willingness to report medical errors at least 

once every two years.  
 

G. Internal reporting – To provide a comprehensive view of both the clinical and operational 
safety activity of the organization: 

1. The minutes/reports of the Patient Safety Committee, as well as minutes/reports from the 
Environment of Care Committee will be submitted through the Director of Quality 
Improvement and Patient Safety to the Quality Committee.  

2. These monthly reports will include ongoing activities including data collection, analysis, 
and actions taken and monitoring for the effectiveness of actions.   

3. Following review by Quality Committee, the reports will be forwarded to Quality Council. 

H. The Patient Safety Officer or designee will submit an Annual Report to the Kaweah Health 
Board of Directors and will include: 

1. Definition of the scope of occurrences including sentinel events, near misses and serious 
occurrences 

2. Detail of activities that demonstrate the patient safety program has a proactive 
component by identifying the high-risk process selected 

3. Results of the high-risk or error-prone processes selected for proactive risk assessment.   

4. The results of the program that assesses and improves staff willingness to report 
medical/health care risk events  

5. A description of the examples of ongoing in-service, and other education and training 
programs that are maintaining and improving staff competence and supporting an 
interdisciplinary approach to patient care. 

V. Evaluation and Approval 

The Patient Safety Plan will be evaluated at least annually or as significant changes occur, and 
revised as necessary at the direction of the Patient Safety Committee, Quality Committee, and/or 
Quality Council.  Annual evaluation of the plan’s effectiveness will be documented in a report to 
the Quality Council and the Kaweah Health Board of Directors. 

VI. Confidentiality  

All quality assurance and performance improvement activities and data are protected under the 
Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986, as stated in the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of 
the Medical Staff, and protected from discovery pursuant to California Evidence Code §1157. 

Attachments - Attachment 1:  Quality Improvement/Patient Safety Committee Structure 

 
 
"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally acceptable 
approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  Deviations under 
appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  New knowledge, new 

153/368



Patient Safety Plan  5 
 
techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical circumstances may provide 
sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not described in the document."  

154/368



Attachment 1

QAPI Activities

Kaweah Health
Quality Reporting Structure

Medical Staff 
Services/ 

Committees

Kaweah Health 
Operational 

Departments

Committees

Board of Directors

Quality Council
(BOD Quality Subcommittee)

Quality Committee
“QComm”

Medical Executive 
Committee

QAPI Monitoring and 
Improvements

Issues Involving the 
Medical Staff

Peer Review Findings

All three groups 
have membership 

representation

Communication on Quality Issues

155/368



Separator Page

EOC 3000 Security_Management_Plan

156/368



 

 
 

Subcategories of Department Manuals 
not selected. 

Policy Number:     EOC 3000 Date Created:  06/01/2009 
Document Owner: Maribel Aguilar (Safety 
Officer/Life Safety Manager) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Board of Directors (EOC/Emergency 
Preparedness) 

Security Management Plan 
 

Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
 

I. OBJECTIVES 
The objectives of the Management Plan for Security at Kaweah Health (KH) are to 
provide a safe environment wherein intentional risks for harm or loss can be minimized.  
The plan will identify risk mitigation strategies for both the grounds and District premises.  
The plan is an accreditation/ standards-based and regulatory driven program, which is 
assessed for effectiveness during the annual evaluation process.  
 

II. SCOPE 

The scope of this management plan applies to Kaweah Health  and any off-site areas as 
per Kaweah Health license.  
 
Each off-site area is required to have a unit-specific Safety Plan that addresses the 
unique considerations of the built environment, including directions for reaching Security 
or law enforcement.  Kaweah Health Medical Center personnel are to dial 44 for an 
immediate security response within the premises and grounds.   Offsite areas are 
required to call the local police in the event an urgent security response is required.  
All areas, including off-site areas are monitored for compliance with this plan during 
routine environmental surveillance by Environment of Care committee members.  It is the 
responsibility of the Safety Officer to assess and document compliance with the Security 
Management Plan for all areas, including the offsite areas, using an environmental 
surveillance checklist.   

 
III. AUTHORITY 

The authority for the Management Plan for Security is EC.01.01.01. The authority for 
overseeing and monitoring the Security Management Plan and program lies in the 
Environment of Care Committee, for the purpose of ensuring that security risks are 
identified, monitored and evaluated, and for ensuring that applicable regulatory activities 
are monitored and enforced as necessary.   
 

IV. ORGANIZATION  
The following represents the organization of security management at Kaweah Health . 
      

157/368



Security Management Plan  2 
 
     Organization - Security Management 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

V. RESPONSIBILITIES 
EC.01.01.01 EP 1 
Leadership within Kaweah Health (KH) have varying levels of responsibility and work 
together in the management of risk and in the coordination of security risk reduction 
activities in the physical environment as follows:   
Governing Board: The Board of Directors supports the Security Management Plan by: 

 Review and feedback if applicable of the quarterly Environment of Care reports  
 Endorsing budget support as applicable, which is needed to implement security  

      improvements identified through the activities of the Security Management 
Program. 

 
 
Quality Committee (QComm) :  Reviews annual Environment of Care report from the 
Environment of Care Committee, and provides broad direction in the establishment of 
performance monitoring standards for security, and provides applicable feedback.   
 
Administrative Staff:  Administrative staff provides active representation on the 
Environment of Care Committee meetings and sets an expectation of accountability for 
compliance with the Security Management Program   
     
Environment of Care Committee:  Environment of Care Committee members review 
and approve the quarterly Environment of Care reports, which contain a Security 
Management component. Members also monitor and evaluate the Security 
Management Program (EC.04.01.01-1) and afford a multidisciplinary process for 
resolving Environment of Care issues relating to security.  Committee members 
represent clinical, administrative and support services when applicable.  The committee 

QComm 

Board of 
Directors 

Environment of Care 
Committee 

Security 
Manager 

Offsite  
Representation 

158/368



Security Management Plan  3 
 

addresses Environment of Care issues in a timely manner, and makes 
recommendations as appropriate for approval.  Environment of Care issues are 
communicated to organizational leaders through quarterly and annual evaluation 
reports.  At least annually, one Process Improvement activity is recommended to the 
Board of Directors, based upon the ongoing monitoring of Environment of Care 
management plans.  Environment of Care issues are communicated to those 
responsible for managing the patient safety program as applicable when risks occur 
relating to Security that may have an impact on the safety of the patient. 
 
Directors and Department Managers:  These individuals support the Security 
Management Program by: 

o Reviewing and correcting deficiencies identified through the hazard surveillance 
process that may pose a security risk.     

o Communicating security recommendations from the Environment of Care 
Committee to applicable staff in a timely manner. 

o Developing education programs within each department that ensure compliance 
with the policies of the Security Management Program (for example education or 
training relating to “Code Pink” or “Code Gray” response).  

o Supporting all required employee security education and training by monitoring 
employee participation and setting clear expectations for employee participation 
to include a disciplinary policy for employees who fail to meet expectations. 

 
Employees:  Employees are required to participate in the Security Management 
Program by:  

o Completing required security education. 
o Calling Security, and notifying his/her manager if anything or anyone suspicious 

occurs in the department within which they are working. 
o Participating in Code Pink/Purple drills. 

 
Medical Staff:  Medical Staff will support the Security Management Program by 
reporting any unusual or suspicious activity to Security staff.     
 
Chief Compliance/Risk Officer:  This individual has the ultimate authority over 
security personnel, and the Security Management Program. 

 
MANAGEMENT OF SECURITY RISKS 
EC.02-01-01 EP-1 
The hospital identifies security risks associated with the environment of care.  Risks are 
identified from internal sources such as ongoing monitoring of the environment, results of 
root-cause analyses, results of annual proactive risk assessments of high-risk processes, 
and from credible external sources such as Sentinel Event Alerts. 
 
Risk Assessment:  The management of organization security risks consists of the 
following processes: 

1 Policy/Plan/Program Development.  Inherent in risk assessment are the 
development of security policies, management plan for security, and program 
development for security through the structure of the Environment of Care 
Committee. Regulations, accreditation or industry standards (e.g., AB 508, Title 22) 
provide the structure for policy/plan and program development. 

159/368



Security Management Plan  4 
 

2 Environmental Surveillance, Results of Root-Cause Analyses, Pro-active Risk 
Assessment of high-risk processes.  Included in risk assessment are findings 
during environmental surveillance that reflect risk identification, and findings from 
root-cause analyses that require follow-up and improvement actions.  During the 
annual evaluation process, risk identification may occur from a retrospective 
analysis of performance monitoring of high-risk security processes, which will 
require a plan for improvement to minimize unfavorable outcomes from the 
possibility of consequential risks. Accountability for assessment and improvement 
activities is with the Environment of Care committee. 
 

3 External Sources:  Sentinel Event Alerts, Regulatory and Insurer inspections, 
Audits, and Consultants.   Security risk assessment may occur as a result of 
findings or recommendations generated from external sources, such as 
Sentinel Event Alerts, Regulatory and/or Insurer surveys, or audits conducted 
by recruited consultants.  Accountability for assessment and improvement 
activities is with the Environment of Care committee. 

 
4 Education:  Education is implemented to provide information, and thereby mitigate 

risk and includes, but is not limited to: 
 New Hire Orientation 
 Department Specific Education 
 Education for patients, staff, physicians, volunteers, and students 
 Education based upon a needs assessment for any specific population. 

  Education based upon risk assessment or the results of surveys, inspections  
 or audits.   
 

5 Drills – Planned Exercises:  Conducting drills such as infant security or disaster,  
constitute activities designed to inform, educate and thereby mitigate risk when 
areas of risk are identified during the debriefing and/or evaluation process. 
 

6 Reporting and Investigation of Incidents.  Complementary to risk assessment is 
proper reporting and investigation of security incidents.  Internal processes and 
activities that support risk assessment include reporting and investigation 
mechanisms which may identify the opportunity to mitigate risk relating to property 
damage, thefts, vandalism, burglary, assault, battery and any violent incidents. 

 
ACTIONS TO MINIMIZE OR ELIMINATE IDENTIFIED SECURITY RISKS 
EC.02.01.01 EP-3 
The hospital takes action to minimize or eliminate identified safety risks. 
When risks are identified from the above processes, the Environment of Care Committee 
uses the risks identified to select and implement procedures and controls to achieve the 
lowest potential for adverse impact on the safety and security of patients, staff, and other 
persons throughout the organization.  Moreover, the identified risks may serve as the 
basis for the selection of performance standards, with the criteria identified as follows: 

 The performance standard represents a high-volume activity, thereby representing 
risk by virtue of ongoing occurrences. 

 The performance standard could represent a sentinel event activity (e.g., infant 
abduction).  These types of activities, though rare in occurrence, represent risk due 
to their seriousness. 

160/368



Security Management Plan  5 
 

 The performance standard represents an activity or finding that needs improvement 
due to the possibility of adverse outcomes. 

  
Risk Reduction Strategies-Proactive 
In-house Security Services are provided at KH.  Coverage is provided twenty-four (24) 
hours per day, seven (7) days a week by uniformed facility security officers at the Main, 
South and the Acute Psych Hospital.  Security provides routine patrols of the campus and 
parking lots, providing visual presence and identifying safety and security risk. Hospital 
entrance doors are secured by the security officer according to a set schedule with the 
exception of the Emergency Department public entrance. Employees are able to access 
the medical center with the use of an ID badge Key Card.   

 
The Security Department is responsible for the following: 

o Protection of persons/property 
o Access control 
o Parking and vehicle management 
o Safety Escort service 
o Loss prevention 
o Patrol of buildings and grounds 
o Maintaining daily activity logs 
o Preparation of incident/crime reports 

 
Additionally, the following mechanisms are in place to proactively minimize or eliminate 
security risks: 

1. Committee Structure.  The Environment of Care Committee is the structure through 
which security-related problems and issues can be identified and resolved.  It 
should be noted that the Environment of Care Committee is closely integrated with 
patient safety functions.  The purpose of the Environment of Care Committee with 
respect to the Patient Safety standards is to remain aware of sentinel event alert 
information from the Joint Commission and to assess organizational practices 
against current information relating to patient safety.  Additionally, when 
recommendations are made for hospitals, each recommendation is critically 
reviewed, with a plan of action established.  If sentinel events occur within the 
hospital that reflect security issues, the Environment of Care Committee will 
participate in improving outcomes relating to security risk management. 

 
2. Reporting and Investigation Mechanisms.  A reporting and investigation process is 

in place that is part of the responsibilities of security staff. Security incidents are 
reported on an electronic reporting system, which are completed by staff involved 
with the incident.  Violent, assaultive and/or battery type incidents are reported to 
the local police with a written report generated within 72 hours.   Security incidents 
are reported on a quarterly basis to the Environment of Care Committee, which 
provides members with the opportunity to observe for trends or patterns, and 
make the appropriate recommendations.   
 
  

3. An Identification System.  An identification system is in place to identify active 
employees, physician staff, volunteers and business associates; and to minimize 
the entry of unauthorized personnel onto the premises. 
 

161/368



Security Management Plan  6 
 

4. Access Control.  Access Control is in place in sensitive areas, and protected by       
special systems which allows only authorized personnel to enter the areas. 
 

5.  Closed Circuit TV.  Closed circuit TV is in place to monitor the security sensitive 
areas, public entrances, lobbies and corridors, and select parking lots.  
 

6.  Panic Buttons.  Panic buttons are located in high-risk areas throughout the 
hospital.  Alarms are installed and monitored internally, provided by a third party 
monitoring company or combination of both.  When an alarm is activated, the PBX 
operator notifies Security and contacts the police for assistance. A burglar-panic 
alarm monitoring company will notify the hospital PBX in the event of activation so 
that hospital Security can respond. Panic Buttons are located in the following 
departments:   
Administration, Admitting, Dietary, Emergency Department, Gift Shop, HIM, Human 
Resources, ICU, Kaweah Korner Employee Store, Labor and Delivery, Mother-
Baby, NICU, Patient Accounting, Pediatrics, Foundation, Pharmacy, Rehabilitation 
Hospital, Risk Management, and the Surgery Waiting Room. 

 
7. Policies.  Security policies and procedures are in place, providing guidelines for 

the prevention of risk, e.g., “Code Pink” policy, Code Gray, Code Silver, Code 
Purple. 

  
8. Education – for Newly-hired Staff and Ongoing (HR.01..05.03 EP 1; HR.01.04.01 

EP 1, 3;).  Education plan is in place to promote employee awareness of risk, and 
to provide the phone number to call in the event security assistance is needed. 

a. New hire Education.  Education relating to general security processes is 
given during New hire orientation, and covers introductory information, 
which includes the phone number to call if security is needed, as well as 
hospital emergency codes information.  

b. Specific Job-Related Hazards. Education is provided to new security 
officers relating to specific job-related competencies, which is reviewed 
annually. 
 

9.  Loss Prevention strategies:  Doors leading to departmental work areas are     
controlled    by keys which are restricted to department members, facilities, security 
personnel and environmental services.    The Admitting Office and the Security 
Department maintains a safe for patient valuables.  Hospital property is tagged with 
a decal which lists the hospital’s property number.  Property which is being 
removed from the premises must be accompanied by a signed property removal 
pass.   

            
Risk Reduction Strategies – When Risks Have Been Identified 
When proactive security risks have been assessed, risk reduction strategies will be the 
responsibility of security staff in coordination with the Environment of Care committee, 
unless the risk poses the potential for serious consequential events (i.e., death, serious 
injury or building threat).  In this instance, the individual who has assessed the risk will 
notify the Safety Officer and Risk Management leadership who will then assume 
responsibility for reduction of the risk threat.  Risk reduction strategies for the possibility of 
non-serious or non-imminent consequential events may be addressed through the 
Sentinel Event Review or Intensive Assessment Processes, or Environment of Care 

162/368



Security Management Plan  7 
 
Committee, based upon the severity and type of risk identified.  Risk reduction strategies 
for identified risks include, but are not limited to the following: 
 

1. Policies and Procedures.  Policies and procedures may require development or 
revision, with applicable training completed for affected staff. 

2. Education.  New or reinforced education may be implemented to minimize the 
potential for future risk. 

3. Equipment.  The purchase of new equipment or the use of current equipment may 
require evaluation. 

4. Administrative Controls.  Administrative controls such as changes in staffing, or 
changes in staffing patterns may require evaluation and implementation.   

5. Equipment Training.  Training on equipment may be implemented or reinforced. 
6. Repairs/ Upgrades on Equipment.  Repairs and or upgrades/modifications on 

security equipment, such as cameras or hand-held radios may be required. 
7. Elimination of the Risk.  Elimination of the risk through removal of a hazard may 

occur. 
8. Product or Equipment Change-out or Recall.  Faulty or defective products or 

equipment may be recalled and replaced. 
 
 
MAINTENANCE OF GROUNDS AND EQUIPMENT 
EC. 02.01.01 EP 5 

 
 Kaweah Health manages risks associated with the grounds and equipment in order to 
minimize consequential events or adverse outcomes related to accidents. 
Environmental surveys are done routinely by Environment of Care Committee personnel.  
Additionally, routine and varied security patrols are conducted wherein any security 
hazards are brought to the attention of the Environment of Care Committee.   
Building/grounds surveys with a contractor’s representative are conducted when 
construction activities are occurring.  In certain instances, Security staff may be requested 
to participate in a fire watch.  Additionally, Risk Management reviews data from reported 
incidents that may identify patterns, trends and opportunities for improvements.  The data 
involves all patient and visitor incidents related to accidents or other unusual events, which 
are not consistent with routine patient care and treatment.  Incidents that involve patients 
or visitors, wherein some aspect of the  building/grounds plays a consequential role,  the 
Safety Officer will be notified so the hazard may be investigated and corrected as 
necessary. All of these activities contribute to an overall monitoring plan for the grounds 
and safety-related equipment.   
 
EC.02-.01.01 EP 7 
The hospital identifies individuals entering its facilities. 
Identification methods used at the medical center include the following: 
A. Photo Identification:  All employees, members of the medical staff and volunteers are 

issued a photo identification badge to be worn while on hospital property. 
B. Temporary Badges:  Visitors are issued temporary badges in the Emergency 

Department, at all three main entrances (Mineral King Lobby, Surgery Center entrance 
and the Acequia Wing Lobby), and when visiting after hours.  Vendors and Business 
Associates are issued temporary badges while working on the hospital campus. 

C. Identification Bracelets:  Patients are provided with identification bracelets.   
 

163/368



Security Management Plan  8 
 
EC.02.01.01 EP 8 
The hospital controls access to and from areas it identifies as security sensitive.   
Access Control:  the following sensitive areas of the hospital are protected by special 

systems: 
o CV-ICU – Badge Access 
o Emergency Department – Combination Keypad,  badge access and CCTV 
o ICU/CCU – Combination Keypad and limited key access 
o Information Systems  – Limited key access, burglar alarm system and CCTV 
o Labor & Delivery – Badge access,  CCTV, Infant Abduction Prevention Security 

System, panic-duress alarms 
o Materials Management – Limited key access 
o Mother-Baby Unit – Badge access, Infant Abduction Prevention Security System, 

CCTV, and panic-duress alarms 
o NICU – Badge access, HUGS Infant Security System, CCTV, and panic-duress alarms  
o OB-Surgery – Badge access / CCTV / Infant Abduction Prevention Security System 
o Operating Room –badge access  
o Pediatrics Unit – Badge access, Infant Abduction Prevention Security System, CCTV, 

and panic-duress alarms 
o Pharmacy:  Dedicated key access, keypad and badge access 
o Helipad – Badge access; key access for exterior staircase security fence 

 
Vehicular Access and Traffic Control:  Parking lot way finding signs assist Emergency 
vehicles, patients and visitors find their destination. The Emergency Department is clearly 
identified and when necessary, are assisted by a security officer for direction and/moving 
personal vehicles.  Security provides traffic control in times of need with 
Facilities/Engineering’s assistance. 
 
 

 
EC.02.01.01 EP 9-10 
The hospital has written procedures to follow in the event of a security incident, including 
an infant or pediatric abduction. 

 
In the event of a security incident, staff is directed to Dial #44 (hospital emergency 
number) to contact Security via the Hospital Operator/PBX. The Hospital Emergency 
Code(s) help to communicate the type of emergency and response by Security and 
hospital staff. A back-up system is in place, which involves contracting with a local security 
guard services company that provides additional security staff when needed.  If a system 
failure occurs, the Chief Compliance/Risk Officer has the authority to contact the 
appropriate vendors to initiate repairs or to request security guard services.   The Director 
of Facilities will be notified immediately, in any event, when Security systems fail or when 
staffing plans cannot be met as scheduled.   
 
Infant/Pediatric Security: The prevention of infant kidnapping is addressed by a “Code 
Pink” policy and procedure.  All OB nursing personnel are in-serviced regarding the Code 
Pink policy.  All parents, on admission, receive information on the prevention of infant 
kidnapping. At least twice a year, “Code Pink” drills are conducted to assess staff 
response to an infant abduction. Drills are evaluated for response plan effectiveness and 
reported to the Environment of Care Committee. 

 

164/368



Security Management Plan  9 
 
Handling of situations involving VIP’s or the media:  VIPs, patient family members and the 
media will be escorted by Security personnel to a designated area for waiting.  The 
Director of Media Relations will be responsible for any information released to any entity.  
Security personnel will not give any information to any family member, VIP or the media.  
Security staff will take all precautions necessary to protect the individual.  If the VIP has 
his/her own security protection, Security staff will work together with that security force to 
assure that the VIP is protected.  This may include establishing special patrols or calling in 
additional officers. 
 
02.01.01 EP 17 
The hospital conducts and annual worksite analysis related to its workplace violence 
prevention program. The hospital takes actions to mitigate or resolve the workplace 
violence safety and security risks based upon finding from the analysis. 

 
INFORMATION COLLECTION SYSTEM TO MONITOR CONDITIONS IN THE 
ENVIRONMENT 
EC.04.01.01 EP’s 1,3,5-6, 
The hospital establishes a process(es) for continually monitoring, internally reporting, and 
investigating the following: 

o Security incidents involving patients, staff or others within its facilities, including 
those related to Workplace Violence. 
 

Through the Environment of Care Committee structure, security incidents are reported 
and investigated on a routine basis by managerial or administrative staff, with oversight by 
the Committee.   Minutes and agendas are kept for each Environment of Care meeting 
and filed in Performance Improvement.   
 
ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE SECURITY MANAGEMENT PLAN 
EC.04.01.01 EP-15 
On an annual basis Environment of Care Committee members evaluate the Management 
Plan for Security, as part of a risk assessment process.  Validation of the management 
plan occurs to ensure contents of the plan support ongoing activities within the medical 
center. Based upon findings, goals and objectives will be determined for the subsequent 
year.  The annual evaluation will include a review of the following: 

 The objectives:  The objective of the Security Management Plan will be evaluated to 
determine continued relevance for the organization (i.e., the following questions will 
be asked: Was the objective completed? Did activities support the objective of the 
plan?   If not, why not?  What is the continuing plan?  Will this objective be included in 
the following year?  Will new objectives be identified? Will specific goals be developed 
to support the identified objective?). 

 The scope.   The following indicator will be used to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
scope of the Security Management Plan:  the targeted population for the management 
plan will be evaluated (e.g., did the scope of the plan reach employee populations in 
the offsite areas, and throughout the organization?  Was security managed 
appropriately for the offsite areas?) 

 Performance Standards.  Specific performance standards for the Security 
Management Plan will be evaluated, with plans for improvement identified.  
Performance standards will be monitored for achievement.  Thresholds will be set for 
the performance standard identified.  If a threshold is not met an analysis will occur to 

165/368



Security Management Plan  10 
 

determine the reasons, and actions will be identified to reach the identified threshold 
in the subsequent quarter.  

 Effectiveness.  The overall effectiveness of the objectives, scope and performance 
standards will be evaluated with recommendations made to continue monitoring, add 
new indicators if applicable or take specific actions for ongoing review. 

 
 

THE DISTRICT ANALYZES IDENTIFIED ENVIRONMENT OF CARE ISSUES 
EC.04.01.03 EP-2 
Environment of care issues are identified and analyzed through the Environment of Care 
Committee with recommendations made for resolution.  It is the responsibility of the 
Environment of Care Committee chairperson to establish an agenda, set the meetings, 
coordinate the meeting and ensure follow-up occurs where indicated.  Topics that relate to 
overall security management are a standing agenda item for Environment of Care 
committee members to consider.  Security issues are documented.  Quarterly 
Environment of Care reports are communicated to Performance Improvement, the Medical 
Executive Committee and the Board of Directors.   
 
PRIORITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
At least annually, priority Improvement activities are communicated by the Environment of 
Care Committee to the Governing Board. Each priority improvement activity is based upon 
ongoing performance monitoring and identified risk within the environment.  The activity 
may be related to a security issue if the activity ranks high as a prioritized risk.  
 
KAWEAH HEALTH TAKES ACTION ON IDENTIFIED OPPORTUNITIES TO RESOLVE 
ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY ISSUES 
EC.04.01.05 EP-1 
Performance standards are identified, monitored and evaluated that measure effective 
outcomes in the area of security management.  Performance standards are identified for 
Security, and they are approved and monitored by the Environment of Care Committee 
with appropriate actions and recommendations made.  Whenever possible, the 
environment of care is changed in a positive direction by the ongoing monitoring, and 
changes in actions that promote an improved performance related to security.   

 
Patient Safety 
Periodically there may be an environment of care issue that has impact on the safety of 
our patients that results from a security issue.  This may be determined from a Sentinel 
Event, security incident(s), environmental surveillance, patient safety standards or 
consequential actions identified through the risk management process.  When a patient-
safety issue emerges it is the responsibility of the Safety Officer or designee to bring forth 
the issue through the patient safety process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally acceptable 
approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  Deviations under 

166/368



Security Management Plan  11 
 
appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  New knowledge, new 
techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical circumstances may provide 
sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not described in the document."  
 
 

167/368



Separator Page

EOC 4007 Compressed_Gas_and_Oxygen_Use

168/368



  
 

Subcategories of Department Manuals 
not selected. 

Policy Number:     EOC 4007 Date Created:  04/01/2010 
Document Owner: Maribel Aguilar (Safety 
Officer/Life Safety Manager) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Board of Directors (EOC/Emergency 
Preparedness) 

Compressed Gas and Oxygen Use 
 
Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
POLICY: 
 
Personnel who use and transport compressed gas and/or oxygen shall be trained in the 
proper handling of cylinders, cylinder trucks, supports, and cylinder - valve protection caps.  
All cylinder storage areas shall be kept locked from access by unauthorized individuals. 
 
COMPRESSED GAS USE: 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 
GENERAL STANDARDS: 
 
1.   Freestanding cylinders must be secured by two restraints or supported in a proper 

cylinder stand or cart in order to reduce the chance of falling. 
 
2.    Valve safety covers shall be left on until pressure regulators are attached. 
 
3.   Containers must be marked clearly with the name of the contents.   
 
4.    Large cylinders exceeding size E shall be transported on hand trucks.  Do not roll or 

drag cylinders.            
        

           5. Tanks with wired-on tags or color code only shall not be accepted. 
 
6. The use of oil, grease or lubricants on valves, regulators or fittings is prohibited. 
 
7. Do not attempt to repair damaged cylinders or to force frozen cylinder valves. 
 
PRESSURE REGULATORS AND NEEDLE VALVES: 
 
Needle valves and regulators are designed specifically for different families of gases.  Use 
only the properly designed fittings. 
 
1. Throats and surfaces of tanks must be clean and tightly fitting.  Do not lubricate. 
 
2. Tighten regulators and valves firmly with the proper sized wrench.  Do not use 

adjustable wrenches or pliers.  Do not force tight fits. 
 
3. Open valves slowly.  Do not stand directly in front of gauges (the gauge face may 

blowout).  Do not force valves that stick. 

169/368



Compressed Gas and Oxygen Use  2 
 
 
4.    Check for leaks at connections. Do not attempt to force an improper fit.  (It may only 

damage a previously undamaged connection and compound the problem). 
 
5.    Valve handles must be left attached to the cylinders. 
 
6. The maximum rate of flow should be set by the high-pressure valve on the cylinder.   

Fine-tuning of flow should be regulated by the needle valve. 
 

7. Shut off cylinder when not in use. 
 
LEAK TESTING: 
 
Cylinders and connections shall be tested by “snoop” or a soap solution.  First test the 
cylinders before regulators are attached and test again after the regulators or gauges are 
attached. 
 
SEGREGATION: 

1. Full and empty containers should be physically segregated from each other in order 
to assist staff in selecting the proper cylinder.  

2. All open and partially used containers should be placed in the empty rack. 
3. Only full unopened cylinders will be placed in the full rack or area.  
 

 
 

EMPTY CYLINDERS: 
 
1. Must be marked empty. 

 
2. Empty or unused cylinders must be returned promptly. 

 
3.   Replace valve safety caps. 
 
 
OXYGEN USE: 
 
Oxygen and other gases are potentially dangerous.  Special safety precautions shall be 
followed at all times while using or storing oxygen. 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 
1. Kaweah Health is a designated “NO SMOKING" facility with signage strategically 

located in order to remind staffs and educate visitors and families. This designation 
prohibits smoking on District grounds at all times. 

 
2. Be sure cylinders are secure on rack and never hang anything on cylinder. 
 
3. Crack valves to clear them before bringing tank into patient's room. 
 
4. Check oxygen supply regularly. 
 
5. Store oxygen cylinders upright and secured. 
 
 

170/368



Compressed Gas and Oxygen Use  3 
 
"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally 
acceptable approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  
Deviations under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  
New knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described in the document."  
 
 

171/368



Separator Page

EOC 6001
Medical_Equipment_Management_Policy_Clinical_Engi

neering_Management_Plan

172/368



 

 
 

Subcategories of Department Manuals 
not selected. 

Policy Number:     EOC 6001 Date Created:  07/01/2009 
Document Owner: Maribel Aguilar (Safety 
Officer/Life Safety Manager) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Board of Directors (EOC/Emergency 
Preparedness) 

Medical Equipment Management Policy 
 

Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
 

I. OBJECTIVES 
EC 02.04.01 – The hospital manages medical equipment risks. 
 
The objectives of the Medical Equipment Management Policy (MEMP) govern Kaweah Health to 
provide an environment that works to ensure medical equipment is safe, reliable, properly 
maintained and efficiently used in the delivery of patient care. Specific goals of the MEMP include 
but are not limited to the following: 

 
o Inventory Management Program 
o Preventive Maintenance Program 
o Corrective Maintenance Program 
o Performance Indicators Reports 
o Annual Evaluation of the Medical Equipment Management Plan (ME Plan) 
o Equipment Selection and Review Process 
o Contract Review and Financial Oversight 

 
The MEMP is inclusive of the below listed policies and others and is defined as the Medical 
Equipment Management Plan (ME Plan): 
 

o EOC 6002    Medical Equipment Defective Repairs Policy 
o EOC 6004    Medical Equipment / Hazardous Device Notification and Recall 

Policy 
o EOC 6009    District Safe Medical Device / Device Tracking and Reporting  
o EOC 6018    Retirement and Deletion of Medical Equipment 
o AP.60           Technology Assessment Process (Administrative Policy Manual) 
o AP41            Quality Improvement Plan  

 
II. SCOPE 

The scope of this ME Plan applies to the operation of Kaweah Delta Health Care District, 
DBA, Kaweah Health, any off-site locations included on its license, for all medical equipment 
used for the benefit of our patients, whether the device is owned, rented, leased or non-
hospital owned. 
Areas included are monitored bi-annually for compliance to the ME Plan through EOC 
Surveillance Rounding at Hospital and Off-Site Locations and is the responsibility of the 
Safety Officer to assess and document compliance with the ME Plan through the structure of 
the EOC Committee. 
 

III. AUTHORITY 
The authority for the Medical Equipment Management Plan (ME Plan) is EC 02.04.01. The 
authority for overseeing and monitoring the Medical Equipment Management Policy and ME 
Plan lies in the Environment of Care Committee (EOC), whose members will ensure activities 
relating to medical equipment management are identified, monitored, evaluated and ensure 
that regulatory activities are monitored and enforced as necessary. 

173/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan
2

IV. ORGANIZATION
The chart below represents the organization of the Management Equipment Management 
Plan (ME Plan) for Medical Equipment at Kaweah Health:

V. RESPONSIBILITIES
Leadership within Kaweah Health may have varying levels of responsibility and work together 
in the management of medical equipment as identified below:

Governing Board: The Board of Directors supports the MEMP and ME Plan by:

o Review and feedback if applicable of the quarterly and annual EOC report.
o Endorsing budget support as applicable to fund and empower implementation 

of the Medical Equipment Management Policy and the Medical Equipment 
Plan.

Medical Care Review Committee: Reviews annual EOC reports and provides feedback as 
applicable.

Quality Council: Reviews annual EOC report, provides direction in the establishment of 
performance monitoring standards relating to medical equipment risks.

Administrative Staff: Provide active representation at EOC meetings and set accountability 
expectations for compliance to the MEMP and its associated parts (ME Plan).

EOC Committee: Members review and approve the quarterly report and oversee any issues 
relating to the MEMP and its associated parts (ME Plan).

Directors and Department Managers: Support the MEMP and its associated parts (ME 
Plan) by:

o Reviewing and correcting deficiencies identified through EOC Surveillance 
Rounds.

o Communicating recommendations from the EOC to staff in a timely manner.
o Developing education plans for staff that ensure compliance with the MEMP 

and its associated parts (ME Plan).
o Supporting all required medical equipment education and training to include a 

disciplinary policy for employees who fail to meet the expectations.
o Serve as a resource for staff on matters of medical equipment usage.

Clinical Engineering Director: The Director of Clinical Engineering is responsible for the 
coordination, liaison, development and establishment of the overall organization and 
management of the MEMP and its associated parts (ME Plan).

174/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 3 
 

o Submits completed reports to the EOC Quarterly or more frequently as 
requested. Reports are to include Compliance to TJC Standards, 
Departmental Process Improvement Goals, Identify MEMP and ME Plan 
compliance issues, safety risks and device recall information that will effect 
operation and safety of medical devices. 

o Submits the Annual evaluation on the effectiveness of the MEMP and its 
associated parts (ME Plan) to the EOC Committee. 

o Works Independently and collaboratively developing departmental and 
organizational equipment management policies and procedures. 

o Ensures departmental clinical equipment management policies and 
procedures are consistent with Kaweah Health Safety, Infection Prevention, 
Risk Management and Facilities Management; reviews as needed but at least 
every three years. 

o Ensures all medical equipment incidents are reported to the appropriate 
authorities/committees/departments/individuals (HH-L-4-012 Occurrence 
Reporting). 

o Monitors Hemodialysis Department to ensure completion of infection 
prevention activities/preventive and corrective maintenance activities are 
completed, recorded and reported. 

Employees: Employees of Kaweah Health are required to adhere to the MEMP and its 
associated parts (ME Plan) by: 

o Completing applicable medical equipment training as assigned. 
o Not using medical devices without ensuring a non-expired Clinical 

Engineering inspection sticker exists on the device in order to promote a safe 
environment. 

o Will report medical equipment failures to their supervisors and Clinical 
Engineering per policy EOC 6002. 

o Will report any observed or suspected unsafe conditions to their supervisor 
as soon as possible upon identifying a medical equipment risk. 

o Will report any medical device with an expired PM Inspection sticker to their 
supervisors and Clinical Engineering per policy EOC 6002. 

Medical Staff: Will support the MEMP and its associated parts (ME Plan) by:  
o Will abide by hospital policies and procedures relating to the use, care and 

reporting of failures, safety concerns and incidents as are related to medical 
equipment. 

 
EC 02.04.01 – EP 01: The hospital solicits input from individuals who operate and 
service equipment when it selects and acquires medical equipment. 
 

Selection and acquisition of medical equipment that is new to the organization: Selection 
and acquisition of medical equipment is a combined effort of the Value Analysis 
Committee (VAC), Clinical Engineering, Materials Management, the department 
personnel using the device(s), Finance, Medical Staff, Vendors and Administration of the 
Hospital as is required. 

o These devices must meet or exceed NFPA 2012 standards as is required. 
o Meet NRTL (UL, TUV …), FDA, NFPA and other regulatory standards as 

apply. 
o Must meet or exceed Manufacturer, Kaweah Health Electrical Safety or other 

regulatory standards as apply. 
o Must be evaluated through VAC prior to purchase. 
o Clinical Engineering will provide VAC with technical evaluations as requested 

to support the evaluation decision. 

EC 02.04.01 – EP 02: The hospital maintains a written inventory of all medical 
equipment 

175/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 4 
 

 
Equipment Inventory: All owned, leased, rented, borrowed, loaned and non-
facility owned medical devices will be evaluated for inclusion in the Medical 
Equipment Plan including all equipment at all sites on the hospital license. 
 
All equipment will be evaluated and assigned to a department for management.  
These departments include; Clinical Engineering, Facilities Engineering, 
Information Systems Services, Clinical Laboratory, Pharmacy.  

 
Medical Devices assigned to the Clinical Engineering department will be included 
in the ME Plan will be assigned a Biomedical ID# and entered into a Medical 
Equipment Database Inventory (MEDI).  The devices shall include but are not 
limited to; any and all Electrical, Electronic, Mechanical, Electro-mechanical, 
Hydraulic medical devices that are used to Treat, Diagnose, Monitor and provide 
Analysis for the care of medical patients by any of the parties listed in the section 
(V. Responsibilities) of this policy. 

 
All equipment that are recorded in the Medical Equipment Database Inventory (MEDI) will 
be: 

o Subject to action by the EOC, RISK MANAGEMENT, MATERIALS 
MANAGEMENT, FDA, Manufacturer and State Regulators including recalls 
and hazard notices issued and tracked by the Risk Management Department. 

o Monitored and addressed if subject to a medical incident. If a device is 
suspected in the death, serious injury or illness of an individual it is required 
per policy EOC 6009 to be reported immediately but not more than 24 hours 
to Risk and Clinical Engineering after the patient is no longer in danger of 
further risk or harm. (EOC 6009 Safe Medical Device Act Tracking and 
Reporting). 

EC 02.04.01 – EP 03: The hospital identifies high-risk medical equipment on the 
inventory for which there is a risk of serious injury or death to a patient or staff 
member should the equipment fail. Note, high-risk equipment includes life-support 
equipment. 

 
All selected equipment included in the MEDI shall be evaluated for risk and be 
assigned to either; 
o EC 02.04.03 – EP 3 Non-High Risk (NHR) 
o EC 02.04.03 – EP 2 High Risk including Life Support (HRiLS) classification of 

medical device. 

All devices included in the MEDI will be assigned a risk number. The Risk number 
is assigned based on a formula applied to all devices. The formula will include will 
provide a weight based evaluation considering multiple factors that account for: 
o Equipment Function 
o Physical Risk 
o Maintenance Requirements 
o Equipment Service Experience 
o Environment of Use 

Medical Devices included in the MEDI with a Risk score equal to or greater than 13 are 
included in the High-Risk including Life-Support (HRiLS) Classification.   
 
Medical Devices included in the MEDI with a Risk score equal to or below 12 are included 
in the Non-High-(NHR) Classification.   
 
 
EC 02.04.01 – EP 04: The hospital identifies the activities and associated 
frequencies, in writing, for maintaining, inspecting, and testing all medical 
equipment on the inventory. These activities and associated frequencies are in 

176/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 5 
 

accordance with manufacturer’s recommendations or with strategies of an 
alternative maintenance (AEM) program. 
 

Note 1: The strategies of an AEM program must not reduce the safety of 
equipment and must be based on accepted standards of practice, such as the 
American National Standards Institute (ANSI)/Association for the Advancement of 
Medical Instrumentation (AAMI) handbook ANSI/AAMI EQ56:2013, 
Recommended practice for a Medical Equipment Management Program. 
 
Note 2: Medical Equipment with activities and associated frequencies in 
accordance with manufacturer’s recommendations must have a 100% completion 
rate. 
 
Note 3: Scheduled maintenance activities for both high-risk and non-high-risk 
medical equipment in an alternative equipment maintenance (AEM) program 
Inventory must have a 100% completion rate. AEM frequency is determined by 
the hospital’s AEM program. 
 

The Clinical Engineering Department is responsible, unless otherwise specified, for Initial 
Inspection, Scheduled Preventive Maintenance, Corrective Maintenance, Retirement 
Inspection/Status, and Incident Management through the recording of records in a 
Computerized Maintenance Management System or other record keeping system. This is 
by way of direct action or management of outside manufacturer, or third party contracted 
services. 
 
The hospital does employ an AEM program. 
 
Scheduled maintenance intervals shall reference the manufacturer’s service guidelines or 
alternative sources to attain the maintenance guidelines (OneSource, Documentation 
Service).  The inspection intervals can and shall be modified as the service history, use 
type, manufacturer recommendations change and are reviewed in coordination with the 
AEM program. 
 
Devices that are Non-Hospital Owned including Rental, Leased and Consignment devices 
can be assigned to other departments for asset management but will still be subject to 
inclusion in the MEDI and are subject to all parts of the MEMP. 
 
EC 02.04.01 – EP 5: The hospital’s activities and frequencies for inspecting, testing, 
and maintaining the following items must be in accordance with manufacturers’ 
recommendations: 
 

o Equipment subject to federal or state law or Medicare Conditions of 
Participation in which, inspecting, testing, and maintaining must be in 
accordance with the manufacturers’ recommendations, or otherwise 
establishes more stringent maintenance requirements. 

o Medical laser devices 
o Imaging and radiologic equipment (whether used for diagnostic or therapeutic 

purposes) 
o New medical equipment with insufficient maintenance history to support the 

use of alternative maintenance strategies 
- NOTE: Maintenance history includes any of the following 

documented evidence: 
 Records provided by the hospital’s contractors 
 Information made public by nationally recognized sources 
 Records of the hospital’s experience over time 

177/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 6 
 

EC 02.04.01 – EP 6: A qualified individual(s) uses written criteria to support the 
determination whether it is safe to permit medical equipment to be maintained in 
an alternate manner that includes the following: 
 

o How the equipment is used, including the seriousness and prevalence of 
harm during normal use 

o Likely consequences of equipment failure or malfunction, including 
seriousness of and prevalence of harm 

o Availability of alternative or backup equipment in the event the equipment 
fails or malfunctions 

o Incident history of identical or similar equipment 
o Maintenance requirements of the equipment 

 For more information on defining staff qualifications, refer to 
Standard HR.01.02.01 

EC 02.04.01 – EP 7: The hospital identifies medical equipment on its inventory that 
is included in an alternative equipment maintenance program (AEM): 
 

o Equipment Identified as included in the AEM will have been reviewed by the 
AEM Committee and be marked in the MEDI as AEM. 

EC 02.01.04 – EP 9: The hospital has written procedures to follow when medical 
equipment fails, including using emergency clinical interventions and backup 
equipment. 

o The hospital follows EOC 6002, Medical Equipment Defective Repairs Policy 
to remediate equipment failures. This includes Red Tagging the machine, 
notifying local management and Clinical Engineering. This includes ensuring 
the patients safety and quickest remediation measures possible. 
 

EC 02.04.01 – EP 10: The hospital identifies quality control and maintenance 
activities to maintain the quality of the diagnostic computed tomography (CT), 
positron emission tomography (PET), magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), and 
nuclear medicine (NM) images produced. The hospital identifies how often these 
activities should be conducted. 
 

o The Radiology Department manages the Radiography equipment and 
maintains contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party 
Service Providers and Contracted Physicists Services to maintain, certify and 
validate proper operation and functionality of the equipment. The Radiology 
department maintains the records to support these activities. 

 
EC 02.04.01 – EP 11: The hospital monitors and reports all incidents in which 
medical equipment is suspected in or attributed to the death, serious injury, or 
serious illness of any individual, as required by the Safe Medical Device Act of 
1990. 
 

o The hospital follows Policy EOC 6009, Safe Medical Device Act/Device 
Tracking and Reporting Policy, in coordination with Department Management, 
Risk Management, Clinical Engineering and Leadership. 

 
 

EC 02.04.03 – EP 1 Before initial use and after major repairs or upgrades of medical 
equipment on the Medical Equipment Database Inventory, the hospital performs 
safety, operational, and functional checks. 
 

178/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 7 
 

o Hospital Staff follow policy “EOC 6004 Initial Equipment” and “EOC 6002 
Equipment Failure” to report new equipment to be used in the patient care 
vicinity. 

EC 02.04.03 – EP 2 The hospital inspects, tests, and maintains all high-risk 
equipment. These activities are documented. 
 
 Note 1: High-risk equipment includes medical equipment for which there 
is a risk of serious injury or even death to a patient or staff member if it should fail, which 
includes life-support equipment 
 
 Note 2: Required activities and associated frequencies for maintaining, 
inspecting, and testing of medical equ8ipment completed in accordance with 
manufacturer’s recommendations must have a 100% completion rate. 
 Note 3: Scheduled maintenance activities for High-Risk medical 
equipment in an Alternative Equipment Maintenance (AEM) inventory must have a 100% 
completion rate. AEM frequency is determined by the hospital’s AEM program. (See also: 
PC 02.01.11,EP 2) 
 
EC 02.04.03 – EP 3 The hospital inspects, tests, and maintains non-high-risk 
equipment identified on the medical equipment inventory. These activities are 
documented. 
 
 Note 1: Scheduled maintenance activities for non-high-risk medical 
equipment in an Alternative Equipment Maintenance (AEM) program inventory must have 
a 100% completion rate. AEM frequency is determined by the hospital’s AEM program. 
 
EC 02.04.03 – EP 4 The hospital conducts performance testing and maintains all 
sterilizers. These activities are documented. (See Also IC.02.02.01, EP 2) 
 
The Clinical Engineering department or contracted vendors maintain the sterilizers for 
manufacturer required preventive maintenance, cleaning and corrective maintenance 
activities. These activities are documented.  Daily testing of the sterilizers is maintained by 
the Sterile Processing Department and activities are documented. 
 
EC 02.04.03 – EP 5 The hospital performs equipment maintenance and chemical 
and biological testing of water used in Hemodialysis. These activities are 
documented. 
 
The hospital’s Hemodialysis technicians perform equipment maintenance and chemical 
and biological testing of water used in Hemodialysis.  These activities are documented 
and presented to the EOC committee quarterly. 
 
EC 02.04.03 – EP 8 Equipment listed for use in oxygen-enriched atmospheres is 
clearly and permanently labeled (withstands cleaning/disinfecting) as follows: 
 

o Oxygen-metering equipment, pressure-reducing regulators, humidifiers, and 
nebulizers are labeled with name of manufacturer or supplier. 

o Oxygen-metering equipment and pressure reducing regulators are labeled 
“OXYGEN-USE NO OIL” 

o Labels on flowmeters, pressure reducing regulators, and oxygen-dispensing 
apparatus designate the gasses for which they are intended. 

o Cylinders and containers are labeled in accordance with Compressed Gas 
Association (CGA) C-7 (for full text, refer to NFPA 99-2012:11 5 3 1) 

o Note: Color coding is not utilized as the primary method of 
determining the cylinder or container contents. 

179/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 8 
 

EC 02.04.03 EP 10 – All occupancies containing hyperbaric facilities comply with 
construction, equipment, administration, and maintenance requirements of NFPA 
99-2012: Chapter 14. 
 
Maintenance of Hyperbaric Chambers is performed by the Manufacturer and a verification 
of services performed annually is recorded by the Clinical Engineering Department. 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 16 – Qualified hospital staff inspect, test, and calibrate Nuclear 
Medicine (NM) Equipment Annually. The results and completion dates are 
documented. 
 
The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and maintains 
contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service Providers and 
Contracted Medical Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate proper operation 
and functionality of the equipment. The Imaging Services department maintains the 
records to support these activities. 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 18 – The hospital maintains the quality of the diagnostic computed 
tomography (CT), positron emission tomography (PET), magnetic resonance 
imaging (MRI), and nuclear medicine (NM) images produced. 
 
The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and maintains 
contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service Providers and 
Contracted Medical Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate proper operation 
and functionality of the equipment. The Imaging Services department maintains the 
records to support these activities. 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 20 – For diagnostic Computed tomography (CT) services: at least 
annually, a diagnostic medical physicist does the following: 
 

- Measures the radiation dose (in the form of volume computed tomography 
dose Index (CTDIvol) produced by each diagnostic CT system for the 
following for CT protocols: adult brain, adult abdomen, pediatric brain and 
pediatric abdomen. If one or more of these protocols is not used by the 
hospital, other commonly used CT protocols may be substituted. 

- Verifies that the radiation dose (In the form of CTDIvol) produced and 
measured for each protocol for each measure tested is within 20 percent of 
the CTDIvol displayed on the CT console. The dates, results and verifications 
of these measurements are documented. 

o Note 1: This element of performance is only applicable for systems 
capable of calculating and displaying radiation doses 

o Note 2: This element of performance does not apply to dental cone 
beam CT radiographic imaging studies performed for diagnosis of 
conditions affecting the maxillofacial region or to obtain guidance for 
the treatment of such conditions. 

o Note 3: Medical physicists are accountable for these activities. They 
may be assisted with the testing and evaluation of equipment 
performance by individuals who have the required training and skills, 
as determined by the physicist. (For more information, refer to 
HR.01.02.01, EP 1; HR.01.02.07, EPs 1 and 2; HR.01.06.01, EP 1; 
LD.03.06.01, EP 4) 

The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and maintains 
contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service Providers and 
Contracted Medical Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate proper operation 
and functionality of the equipment. The Imaging Services department maintains the 
records to support these activities. 
 

180/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 9 
 

EC 02.04.03 EP 21 – For diagnostic computed tomography (CT) services: At least 
annually, a diagnostic medical physicist conducts a performance evaluation of all 
CT Imaging equipment. The evaluation results along with recommendations for 
correcting any problems identified, are documented.  The evaluation includes the 
use of phantoms to assess the following imaging matrix: 
 

- Image uniformity 
- Scout prescription accuracy 
- Alignment light accuracy 
- Table travel accuracy 
- Radiation beam width 
- High-contrast resolution 
- Low-contrast detectability 
- Geometric or distance accuracy 
- Artifact evaluation 

o Note 1: This element of performance does not apply to dental cone 
beam CT radiographic imaging studies performed for diagnosis of 
conditions affecting the maxillofacial region or to obtain guidance for 
the treatment of such conditions. 

o Note 2: Medical physicists are accountable for these activities. They 
may be assisted with the testing and evaluation of equipment 
performance by individuals who have the required training and skills, 
as determined by the physicist. (For more information, refer to 
HR.01.02.01, EP 1; HR.01.02.07, EPs 1 and 2; HR.01.06.01, EP 1; 
LD.03.06.01, EP 4) 

The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and 
maintains contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service 
Providers and Contracted Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate 
proper operation and functionality of the equipment. The Imaging Services 
department maintains the records to support these activities. 
 

EC 02.04.03 EP 22 – At least annually, a diagnostic medical physicist or magnetic 
resonance imaging (MRI) scientist conducts a performance evaluation of all MRI 
imaging equipment. The evaluation results, along with recommendations for 
correcting any problems identified, are documented.  The evaluation includes the 
use of phantoms to assess the following imaging matrix: 
 

- Image uniformity for all radiofrequency (RF) coils used clinically 
- Signal-to-noise ratio (SNR) for all coils used clinically 
- Slice thickness accuracy 
- Slice position accuracy 
- Alignment light accuracy 
- High-contrast resolution 
- Low-contrast resolution (or contrast to noise ratio) 
- Geometric or distance accuracy 
- Magnetic field homogeneity 
- Artifact evaluation 

o Note 2: Medical physicists are accountable for these activities. They 
may be assisted with the testing and evaluation of equipment 
performance by individuals who have the required training and skills, 
as determined by the medical physicist or MRI scientist. ( For more 
information, refer to HR.01.02.01, EP 1; HR.01.02.07, EPs 1 and 2; 
HR.01.06.01, EP 1; LD.03.06.01, EP 4) 

The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and maintains 
contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service Providers and 

181/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 10 
 

Contracted Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate proper operation and 
functionality of the equipment. The Imaging Services department maintains the records to 
support these activities. 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 23 – At least annually, a diagnostic medical physicist or nuclear 
medicine physicist conducts a performance evaluation of all nuclear medicine 
imaging equipment.  The evaluation results, along with recommendations for 
correcting any problems identified, are documented.  The evaluations are 
conducted for all of the image types produced clinically by each NM scanner (for 
example, planar and/or tomographic) and include the use of phantoms to assess 
the following imaging matrix: 

- Image uniformity / system uniformity 
- High-contrast resolution / system spatial resolution 
- Sensitivity 
- Energy resolution 
- Count-rate performance 
- Artifact evaluation 

o Note 1:  The following test is recommended but not required:  
Low contrast resolution or detectability for non-planar acquisitions 
Note 2: The medical physicist or nuclear medicine physicist is 
accountable for these activities.  They may be assisted with the 
testing and evaluation of equipment performance by individuals who 
have the required training and skills, as determined by the medical 
physicist or nuclear medicine physicist. (For more information, refer 
to HR.01.02.01, EP 1; Hr.01.02.07, EPs 1 and 2; HR.01.06.01, EP 1; 
LD 03.06.01, EP 4.) 
 

The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and maintains 
contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service Providers and 
Contracted Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate proper operation and 
functionality of the equipment. The Imaging Services department maintains the records to 
support these activities. 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 24 – At least annually, a diagnostic medical physicist conducts a 
performance evaluation of all positron emission tomography (PET) imaging 
equipment.  The evaluation results, along with recommendations for correcting any 
problems identified, are documented.  The evaluations are conducted for all of the 
image types produced clinically by each PET scanner (for example, planar and/or 
tomographic) and include the use of phantoms to assess the following imaging 
metrics: 

- Image uniformity / system uniformity 
- High-contrast resolution / system spatial resolution 
- Low-contrast resolution or detectability (not applicable for planar acquisitions) 
- Artifact evaluation 

o Note 1: The following tests are recommended, but not required, for 
PET scanner testing: sensitivity, energy resolution and count rate 
performance. 
Note 2: Medical physicists are accountable for these activities.  They 
may be assisted with the testing and evaluation of equipment 
performance by individuals who have the required training and skills, 
as determined by the medical physicist, (For more information, refer 
to HR.01.02.01, EP 1; HR.01.02.07, EPs 1 and 2; HR.01.06.01, EP 1; 
LD 03.06.01, EP 4.) 
 

The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and maintains 
contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service Providers and 
Contracted Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate proper operation and 

182/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 11 
 

functionality of the equipment. The Imaging Services department maintains the records to 
support these activities. 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 25 – For computed tomography (CT) position emission tomography 
(PET), nuclear medicine (NM), or magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) services:  the 
annual performance evaluation conducted by the diagnostic medical physicist or 
MRI scientist (for MRI only) includes testing of image acquisition display monitors 
for maximum and minimum luminance, luminance uniformity, resolution, and 
spatial accuracy. 

o Note 1: This element of performance does not apply to dental cone 
beam CT radiographic imaging studies performed for diagnosis of 
conditions affecting the maxillofacial region or to obtain guidance for 
the treatment of such conditions. 
Note 2: Medical physicist or MRI scientists are accountable for these 
activities.  They may be assisted with the testing and evaluation of 
equipment performance by individuals who have they required 
training and skills, as determined by the physicist or MRI scientist. 
(For more information, refer to HR.01.02.01, EP 1; HR.01.02.07, EPs 
1 and 2; HR.01.06.01, EP 1; LD 03.06.01, EP 4.) 
 

The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and maintains 
contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service Providers and 
Contracted Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate proper operation and 
functionality of the equipment. The Imaging Services department maintains the records to 
support these activities. 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 26 – The hospital performs equipment maintenance on anesthesia 
apparatus.  The apparatus are tested at the final path to patient after any 
adjustment, modification, or repair.  Before the apparatus is returned to service, 
each connection is checked to verify proper gas flow and an oxygen analyzer is 
used to verify oxygen concentration.  Areas designated for servicing of oxygen 
equipment are clean and free of oil, grease, or other flammables. (For full test, refer 
to NFPA 99-2012: 11.4.1.3; 11.5.1.3; 11.6.2.5; 11.6.2.6) 
 
The Clinical Engineering Department or contracted vendor performs equipment 
maintenance on anesthesia apparatus. Testing to the manufacturers’ standards are 
completed throughout the service.  Each connection is tested for proper gas flow and an 
oxygen analyzer is used to verify oxygen concentration. Areas used for servicing of 
oxygen equipment are clean and free of oil, grease or other flammables. 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 27 – The hospital meets NFPA 99-2012: Healthcare Facilities code 
requirements related to electrical equipment in the patient care vicinity. (For full 
text refer to NFPA 99-2012: Chapter 10) 
 
 Note: The hospital meets the applicable provisions of the Health Care 
Facilities Code Tentative Interim Amendment. (TIA) 12-5 
 
EC 02.04.03 EP 34 – For hospitals that provide fluoroscopic services: At least 
annually, a diagnostic medical physicist conducts a performance evaluation of 
fluoroscopic imaging equipment.  The evaluation results, along with 
recommendations for correcting any problems identified, are documented.  The 
evaluation includes an assessment of the following: 
 

- Beam alignment and collimation 
- Tube potential/Kilovolt peak (kV/kVp) accuracy 
- Beam filtration (half-value layer) 
- High-contrast resolution  
- Low-contrast detectability 

183/368



Medical Equipment Management Policy/Clinical Engineering Management Plan 
 12 
 

- Maximum exposure rate in fluoroscopic mode  
- Displayed air-kerma rate and cumulative-air kerma accuracy (when 

applicable)  
o Note 1: Medical physicist conducting performance evaluations may 

be assisted with the testing and evaluation of equipment performance 
by individuals who have the required training and skills, as 
determined by the physicist. 

o Note 2: This element of performance does not apply to fluoroscopy 
equipment used for therapeutic radiation treatment planning or 
delivery. 

The Imaging Services Department manages the Imaging equipment and maintains 
contracts with Original Equipment Manufacturers, Third Party Service Providers and 
Contracted Medical Physicists Services to maintain, certify and validate proper operation 
and functionality of the equipment. The Radiology department maintains the records to 
support these activities.  
 
 

"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally acceptable 
approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  Deviations 
under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  New 
knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described in the document." 
 
 
 

184/368



Separator Page

EOC 6003 Medical_Equipment-
_Health_Care_Device_Modification_Policy

185/368



 

 
 

Subcategories of Department Manuals 
not selected. 

Policy Number:     EOC 6003 Date Created:  04/01/2010 
Document Owner: Maribel Aguilar (Safety 
Officer/Life Safety Manager) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Board of Directors (EOC/Emergency 
Preparedness) 

Medical Equipment- Health Care Device Modification Policy 
 
Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
Given the nature of the environments that medical healthcare devices are subject to operate in, it 
can be readily assumed that not all devices will act in the necessary fashion to meet the needs of 
the Healthcare professional.  There may be times and certain unforeseen circumstances that arise, 
which may require the modification of the device being used, to adapt to the end user's 
preferences.  It is, therefore, necessary to have a standing policy that delineates the procedures 
that shall be followed, without exception. 
 
STANDARD:   
Every patient that visits Kaweah Health has the right to expect the finest quality healthcare that we 
can provide.  These services include providing the most current, up-to-date medical technology that 
we can provide.  They have the right to expect that the equipment used in any treatment they may 
receive shall be in proper operating condition, and be functioning exactly as the device 
manufacturer designed, and that the Healthcare Professional using the device, shall be properly 
trained and fully competent in its operation. 
 
POLICY:   
It shall be the policy of Kaweah Health, that NO MEDICAL HEALTHCARE DEVICE 
MODIFICATIONS SHALL BE CONSIDERED, ATTEMPTED, OR COMPLETED, WITHOUT 
PRIOR, WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE DEVICE MANUFACTURER, AND THE FOOD AND 
DRUG ADMINISTRATION, (where applicable). 

 
PROCEDURES: 

 
     1.  All written requests for Healthcare Device Modifications shall be submitted to all 

positions listed below via e-mail. 
 

 Director of Medical Staff 
 Director of Nursing  
 Director of Materials Management 
 Chairperson of the Safety Committee 
 Director of Risk Management 
 Director of Clinical Engineering 

 
2. The management of the Clinical Engineering Dept. shall review each request, and notify 

the Device Manufacturer, supplying all necessary information included on the initial 
request for modification.   

 
 

186/368



Medical Equipment- Health Care Device Modification Policy 
 2 
 
 3.    Given the nature of each individual request, all requests shall be submitted at   
             least 90 days prior to the expected time that the device is expected to be used   
  in its modified state.  This should provide the necessary time for each request to 
              be routed to the Device Manufacturer, and the Food and Drug Administration,   
  and a reply received. 
 
 4. Documentation of all received requests shall be maintained by the Clinical   

Engineering Department, with copies supplied to all individuals listed in item (1). 
 
 5. All APPROVED modifications shall be noted on the Device Maintenance History log 

in the Medical Equipment Database (MEDB), which is maintained by the Clinical  
  Engineering Department, denoting exactly the modification made, the date 

completed, and the date returned to service.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally 
acceptable approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  
Deviations under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  
New knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described in the document."  
 
 

187/368



Separator Page

EOC 6015
Hospital_Electrical_Safety_Policy_for_Personal_Items

188/368



1 
 

 

 
 

Subcategories of Department Manuals 
not selected. 

Policy Number:     EOC 6015 Date Created:  04/01/2010 
Document Owner: Maribel Aguilar (Safety 
Officer/Life Safety Manager) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Board of Directors (EOC/Emergency 
Preparedness) 

Hospital Electrical Safety Policy for Personal Items 
 

Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
 
 
Policy: 
Kaweah Delta Health Care District herein referred to as Kaweah Health (KH) is committed to providing a 
safe environment for our patients, visitors, and staff members.  To this end, the following policy and 
procedure have been developed.   

 
Kaweah Health reserves the right to remove ANY personal electrical device that, in its opinion, presents a 
significant risk. 
 
Definitions: 
Pertinent 2012 NFPA 99 Definitions:  
• “Patient bed location” is defined in section 3.3.136 as the location of a patient sleeping bed, or the bed or 
procedure table of a critical care area.  
 
• “Patient-care-related electrical equipment” is defined in section 3.3.137 as electrical equipment that is 
intended to be used for diagnostic, therapeutic, or monitoring purposes in the patient care vicinity;  

• “Patient care room” is defined in section 3.3.138 as any room of a health care facility wherein patients 
are intended to be examined or treated. Note that this term replaces the term “patient care area” used in 
the 1999 NFPA 99, but the definition has not changed.  

• “Patient care vicinity” is defined in section 3.3.139 as a space, within a location intended for the 
examination and treatment of patients (i.e., patient care room) extending 6 ft. beyond the normal location 
of the bed, chair, table, treadmill, or other device that supports the patient during examination and 
treatment and extends vertically 7 ft. 6 in. above the floor.  
 
 
Procedure: 
 
1. All Privately Owned Medical Devices or Personal Electrical Items MUST be inspected by the Clinical 

Engineering Department, PRIOR to use, to ensure compliance with the existing Kaweah Health 
Electrical Safety Policy, EOC 1085, when the patient is admitted to a Nursing Unit.  

 
The Clinical Engineering Department On-Call Technician will be notified immediately upon arrival of 
any patient owned personal electrical item, or personal use medical device, (i.e., CPAP, BiPAP, 
Portable Ventilator, etc.).  The patient’s Nurse, Unit Charge Nurse, or HUC, shall notify Clinical 

189/368



Hospital Electrical Safety Policy for Personal Items   
 

Engineering by calling the Hospital PBX Operator and requesting that the Clinical Engineering On-
Call Technician be notified of a Patient Owned incoming device inspection. 

 
Incoming Patient Owned Medical Device requests will receive immediate response when Clinical 
Engineering staff receive notification.  Personal Electrical convenience or entertainment devices, 
such as Gameboy consoles, DVD Players, Radio’s, etc., shall be responded to on the next Medical 
Device call in or within four (4) hours. 

 
All items shall meet the following criteria for approval: 
 
All line powered (AC) devices must have an Underwriter's Laboratories LISTED label or equivelant. 
 
Line powered devices must be in safe condition, without evidence of wear, deterioration, or repair. 
 
The following conditions apply for use: 
 
Personal Owned Medical Device: 

  
o Must be unplugged while not in use. 
o May only be plugged into a wall outlet in the Patient Care Vicinity. 
o May not be plugged into a power strip in the Patient Care Vicinity. 

 
Personal Use Electrical Device: 
 
o Must be unplugged when not in use. 
o May not be plugged in to a power strip in the Patient Care Vicinity. 
o May be plugged into a wall outlet or an approved power tap with UL1364 or 1364A rating in the 

Patient Care Room outside the patient care vicinity. 
 

Power cords for such devices must be in good condition, with no exposed wires, cracked insulation, 
or broken, bent, or missing blades on the power plug. 

 
2. Certain areas of the Hospital shall be restricted from any Personal Use Electrical Devices.  These 

areas shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
 

Intensive Care Units - ICU, NICU, CVICU 
Surgical Rooms - OR, Delivery OR 
Cardiac Cath Lab 
PACU, Flex-Care 
Certain specific Exam/Treatment Rooms of ER 
Cardiology Treatment Areas 
Nuclear Medicine, MRI, Ultrasound and Radiology Treatment Rooms 

 
3. In addition, patient clinical condition may prohibit the use of certain electrical items. Use of any device 

shall be restricted if, in the opinion of the Nurse, or Physician, the patient’s ability to operate the 
device is compromised by medication, physical abilities, or care environment. 

 
Hair dryers, or any device that can produce a spark, shall not be used in areas where oxygen is being 
administered. Wall powered electric shavers shall not be used if the patient is attached to any 
medical device. 

 
4. The Hospital reserves the right to remove, any personal electrical device that,  presents or develops 

a significant risk to the patient, visitor, staff or equipment of Kaweah Delta Health Care District. 
 

190/368



Hospital Electrical Safety Policy for Personal Items   
 

 
 

 
5. The following devices are generally permitted for use: 

 
Small battery-powered devices: Clocks, Radios, MP-3 & CD players, Cell phones and computer 
tablets.  Use of head or earphones is encouraged with these devices. 
    
The above devices should be used in a manner that does not disturb other patients or visitors. 
 
Electric hair dryers or shavers.  (Hair dryers are NOT permitted for use in areas where oxygen 
is being administered.) 
 

6. The following devices are prohibited from use: 
 

Portable televisions, Extension cords, power strips, heating pads, space heaters, heating blankets, 
and any heating device with exposed heating surface. (Ie. Cooking ware, curling irons, hair irons, 
coffeepots, and coffee makers.) 
 
General Mobile Radio Service (GMRS) RF Transmitting Devices Ie. CB-Radios, Walkie-talkies, 
Amateur Radios, FRS Radios etc. 

 
7. PLEASE NOTE:  Kaweah Health reserves the right to refuse to treat a patient who, in the opinion of 

the Nursing Supervisor On-Duty at the time, and in consultation with, and concurrence of, the 
attending physician, presents a safety risk to a visitor, patient, or staff member, by refusing to comply 
with the above policy and procedures.  Continued refusal to comply, and with concurrence of the 
attending physician, will result in notification of the patient’s physician, for potential discharge of the 
patient for Safety Reasons. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally acceptable 
approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  Deviations 
under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  New 
knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described in the document."  
 
 

191/368



Separator Page

EOC 7001 Utilities_Management_Plan

192/368



 

 
 

Subcategories of Department Manuals 
not selected. 

Policy Number:     EOC 7001 Date Created:  07/01/2010 
Document Owner: Maribel Aguilar (Safety 
Officer/Life Safety Manager) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Board of Directors (EOC/Emergency 
Preparedness) 

Utilities Management Plan 
 

Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
 

I. OBJECTIVES 
The objectives of the Management Plan for Utility Equipment at Kaweah Delta Health Care District ,herein 
after referred to as Kaweah Health (KH)are to manage effective, safe, and reliable operations of utility 
equipment that provides a safe, controlled physical environment for the patients, employees, physicians, and 
visitors who enter the premises.   Inherent in utility equipment processes are operational reliability of utility 
equipment, the development of a utility equipment inventory and program, and an inspection and maintenance 
program designed to minimize risks to our patients and the physical environment.  Specific processes in place 
to support the objectives of the utility equipment management plan include the following:   
o Preventive Maintenance 
o Corrective Maintenance 
o Annual maintenance on equipment/systems 
o User/maintainer training  
o Performance indicators 
Annual Evaluation of the  Utilities Management Plan 
  

SCOPE 

The scope of the Utility Management Plan applies to KH with the Director of Facilities Planning, overseeing the 
management of the utility systems, and with broad oversight by the Environment of Care (EOC) Committee. 
With respect to the offsite areas per KH license, the Facilities Planning Director has oversight responsibility for 
the utility system that provides services to the offsite areas. The facility manager, or managers if applicable, 
will have the responsibility of the day-to-day operations relating to utility services, which often means working 
in partnership with a lessor, or building owner if applicable. Utility failure plans are required for each offsite 
area, and are the responsibility of the offsite manager. Utility issues for the offsite areas may be brought to the 
attention of the EOC Committee.  
 
 
 

AUTHORITY 
The authority for the Management Plan for Utility Equipment is EC. 02.05.01. The authority for overseeing 
and monitoring the utility equipment plan and program lies in the EOC Committee, whose members will 
ensure activities relating to utility equipment management are identified, monitored and evaluated, and for 
ensuring that regulatory activities are monitored and enforced as necessary.   
 

ORGANIZATION  
The following represents the organization of the Utilities Management Plan at KH: 

 

193/368



Utilities Management Plan  2 
 

 
Organization –Utilities Management Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

         
 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES 
Leadership within Kaweah   Health   have varying levels of responsibility and work together in the 
management of utility equipment as identified below:   
 

Board of Directors: The Board of Directors supports the Utility Management Plan by: 
 Review and feedback if applicable of the quarterly and annual EOC reports.  
 Endorsing budget support as applicable for capital purchases relating to utility equipment. 

 
Quality Council:  Reviews annual EOC report from the EOC Committee, and provides broad direction in the 
establishment of performance monitoring standards relating to utility equipment risks.   
 
Professional Staff Quality Committee or PROSTAFF:  Reviews annual EOC report from the EOC 
Committee, providing feedback if applicable. 
 
Administrative Staff:  Administrative staff provides active representation on the EOC Committee meetings 
and sets an expectation of accountability for compliance with the Utility Equipment Program   

     
Environment of Care Committee:  EOC Committee members review and approve the quarterly EOC 
reports, which contain a Utility Equipment component, and oversee any issues relating to the overall utility 
equipment program. 

 
Directors and Department Managers:  These individuals support the Utility Management Program by: 

o Reviewing and correcting deficiencies identified through the hazard surveillance process that relate 
to utility equipment risks.    

o Communicating recommendations from the EOC Committee to affected staff in a timely manner. 
o Providing information/in-services to staff that insure compliance with applicable policies of the within 

the Utility Management program.  
o Serving as a resource for staff on matters of utility equipment usage. 

 
Employees:  Employees of Kaweah   Health are required to participate in the Utility Management program 
by:  

o Completing applicable utility equipment training. 
o Reporting utility equipment failures to their supervisor and to Facilities 
o Reporting any observed or suspected unsafe conditions to his or her department manager as soon 

as possible after identification that may pose a utility equipment risk, which include, but are not 

Quality 
 Council 

Board of 
Directors 

Environment of Care 
Committee Director of Facilities Planning 

QCOMM 

Offsite 
Representation 

194/368



Utilities Management Plan  3 
 

limited to:  frayed electrical cords, use of extension cords, overuse of power adaptors, equipment 
brought in by patients, or any loss of utility power.   

 
Medical Staff:  Medical Staff will support the Utility Management Program by abiding by the Kaweah Health’s 
policies and procedures relating to the use of utility equipment 
 
The [organization] manages risks associated with its utility systems. 
EC. 02.05.01-1 
EC.02.06.05-1,2 
 
When planning for new, altered or renovated space that will impact utility systems, KH uses one of the 
following design criteria: 
-State rules and regulations, and  
-Guidelines for Design and Construction of Hospitals and Healthcare Facilities, current edition, published  
 by the American Institute of Architects. 
When the above rules, regulations and guidelines do not meet specific design needs, other reputable 
standards and guidelines are used that provide equivalent design criteria.  When planning for demolition, 
construction or renovation, a pre-construction risk assessment is used that addresses utility requirements that 
affect care, treatment and services. If any utility-related risks are identified during the pre-construction 
assessment, KH will take action to minimize the identified utility risks.   After construction projects are 
completed, the Director Facilities Planning will ensure the acquisition of as-built drawings, and in addition will 
insure that other utility system maps and drawings are updated and current. 
 
KH maintains a written inventory of all operating components of utility systems or maintains a written 
inventory of selected operating components of utility systems based on risk for infection, occupant 
needs, and systems critical to patient care (including all life support systems).  Kaweah Health 
evaluates new types of utility components before initial use to determine whether they should be 
included in the inventory.   
EC.02.05.01-3 through 7 
EC.02.05.05, EPs 1through 6 
 
Written Inventory 
KH maintains a written inventory of utility systems, which includes (but not limited to) the following: 

Water Supply System 
Irrigation Water System 
Domestic Hot Water System 
Hot Water Heat Recovery System 
Water Softening System 
Patio Storm Drain System 
Sewage System 
Basement Sump Pump 
Natural Gas System 
Fuel Oil System 
Steam Boilers and Distribution System 
Condensate Return 
Medical Air System 
Medical Vacuum System 
Medical Oxygen System 
Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning System 
Electrical System 7 Emergency Generators 7 Transfer Switch 
Elevator System 
Nurse Call System 
Kitchen Fire Extinguishing System 
Fire Sprinkler System 
MRI Halon Fire Extinguisher System 
Fire Alarm Monitoring System – API 
Paging System 
Telephone System and Telephones 
Two-Way Radio System 
Pagers 

195/368



Utilities Management Plan  4 
 

ICU/CCU Monitor System 
Master Clock System 
Sterilizers 
ETO Abator System 
Trash Compactor 
Bailer  
 

Any new utility equipment purchased for KH is evaluated for inclusion into the written inventory.   
The utility management program includes equipment that meets the following criteria: 
o Equipment maintains the climatic environment in patient care areas. 
o Equipment that constitutes a risk to patient life support upon failure. 
o Equipment is a part of a building system, which is used for infection control. 
o Equipment that is part of the communication system, which may affect the patient or the 

patient care environment. 
o Equipment is an auxiliary or ancillary part of a system control or interface to patient care 

environment, life support, or infection control. 
 
Inspection and Maintenance Activities 
Documentation of inspection, testing and maintenance demonstrates systems and components performance 
within prescribed limits and adherence to established schedules. The minimum required documentation is 
exception reporting. This documentation lists all items tested and indicates pass or fail. Those items that fail 
have additional documentation of repair and subsequent testing indicating performance within standards.  As 
part of utility system operational plans, planned or preventive maintenance is a key factor in assuring the 
ongoing performance and reliability of utility systems whereby each system is properly identified, operated, 
and maintained. A system is no more reliable than the individual pieces of equipment, or components, within it. 
Each component within a system is evaluated to determine the content and frequency of testing procedures, 
inspections, calibrations, and the servicing and replacement of parts. In the development of preventive 
maintenance programs, a review is made from various sources of information, such as manufacturers 
recommendations, codes, standards, and federal, state, and local laws and regulations. The basic sources of 
information are invaluable as start-up aids; however, over time it is essential that local operating experience be 
factored in to modify the program. Through this process, initial levels of risk are maintained or reduced. 

 
Minimization of Pathogenic Biological Agents 

The Utility Management plan includes processes for activities that will reduce the potential for hospital-
acquired illnesses that could be transmitted through the Utility Systems.   These include policies and or 
procedures relating to: 

o Cooling Towers/Open and Closed Water Systems:  Biological and/or chemical treatment(s) and testing 
or cultures are in place wherein the potential for hospital-acquired illness could occur within Kaweah 
Health’s cooling and heating systems. 

o Domestic Hot and Cold Water Systems:  Periodic biological testing of the hot and cold water systems 
are in effect as part of the utility management program. 

o Equipment Maintenance - HVAC:  A filter change program is in effect to reduce the risks associated with 
air borne contaminants within the major air handling systems. 

o Air Pressure Monitoring/Maintenance:  A program is in place in Facilities that allows for the air pressure 
monitoring, maintenance, and balancing for the following critical areas: surgical operating rooms, critical 
care areas, including ICU, special procedure rooms, isolation rooms and the labor and delivery suites. 

o Construction. Protocol and procedures are in place to coordinate Infection Control and construction 
activities that establishes how an area will be assessed before and during construction for the purpose of 
minimizing the risks associated with air-borne biological contaminants (e.g., aspergillosis). 

 

The Facilities Planning Director/Safety Officer is responsible for the proper and safe functioning of all 
equipment within the facility and the general condition of the facility. Facilities management requires written 
procedures that are developed and specify the action to be taken during the failure of essential equipment and 
major utility services.  The written procedures include a call system for summoning essential personnel and 
outside assistance when required.  The following essential equipment and services are included: Major air 
conditioning equipment, air handling systems (ventilation, filtration, quantitative exchanges, humidity), boilers, 
electrical power services, fire alarm and extinguishing systems, water supply, all waste disposal systems, and 
medical gas and vacuum systems. Qualified engineering consultative advice is available as needed. In the 
event that the in-house personnel cannot correct the problem and restore the operation of the equipment, then 

196/368



Utilities Management Plan  5 
 
Administration, the Facilities Planning Director and Safety Officer, or their designated representative shall 
have full authorization to call in an outside resource to correct the situation. 
 
Kaweah Health maps the distribution of its utility systems 
EC.02.05.01-17 
Layout maps or blueprints for utilities with complicated infrastructures are maintained to enhance 
troubleshooting effectiveness.  Distribution maps are located in Facilities, and are for plumbing, medical gases 
and electrical. 
 
Kaweah Health labels utility system controls to facilitate partial or complete emergency shutdowns. 
EC.02.05.01-9 
Controls for Utility Systems are labeled in an efficient manner.  Most importantly, controls that are located 
remotely from related equipment are clearly labeled.  The label explains the equipment that is controlled and 
the power source panel identification.  Medical gas valves are clearly labeled as to what areas they isolate.  
Other plumbing valves are labeled in correspondence with a master valve list.  

 
Kaweah Health has written procedures for responding to utility system disruptions 
EC.02.05.01-10 
Policies and procedures are in place in Facilities, which identify emergency procedures for utility system 
disruptions or failures.  Systems are in place to mitigate the consequences of a utility failure, such as the 
emergency generators, battery operated equipment, staff interventions in the event equipment fails and the 
use of outside vendors for emergency assistance as may be needed. 
 
Kaweah Health’s procedures address shutting off the malfunctioning system and notifying staff in 
affected areas. 
EC.02.05.01-11 
Staff and employees are notified in affected areas when a partial or total system shutdown is necessary. 
When a utility system must be shutdown, notification is made to Administration, Nursing, and the Department 
Director(s)/managers of the affected department(s), and agencies having jurisdiction if applicable. 
 
Kaweah Health’s  procedures address performing emergency clinical interventions during utility 
systems disruptions. 
EC.02.05.01-12 
In the event of a utility system disruption that impacts the flow of electrical-operated medical equipment, 
clinical interventions are to be provided based upon the scope of practice of the patient care provider, and may 
include such interventions as: 

o Use of portable monitors and ventilators 
o Manual bagging of a patient if the patient is on a ventilator that loses power and does not have a 

battery back-up 
o Battery-operated equipment 
o Manual intravenous administration in the event IV equipment fails, and does not have battery back-up 

 
 
 
Kaweah Health has a reliable emergency electrical power source 
EC.02.05.03-1-16 
KH provides and maintains a reliable emergency power system that is adequately sized, designed and fueled 
as required by the LSC occupancy requirements and the services provided, and supplies emergency power to 
the following areas and systems:  

i. Alarm Systems 
ii. Egress illumination 
iii. Elevator (1) 
iv. Emergency Communication Systems 
v. Exit Sign Illumination 
vi. Blood, Bone and Tissue Storage Units 
vii. Emergency Care Areas (Urgent Care) 
viii. Intensive Care 
ix. Medical Air Compressors 
x. Medical/Surgical Vacuum Systems 
xi. Newborn Nurseries 

197/368



Utilities Management Plan  6 
 

xii. OB Delivery Rooms 
xiii. Operating Rooms 
xiv. Recovery Rooms 
xv. Special Care Units 
xvi. Lighting at emergency generator locations 
xvii. Emergency Rooms 
xviii. Dispensing Cabinets 
xix. Medication Carousels 
xx. Central Medication Robots (if applicable) 
xxi. Medication Refrigerators 
xxii. Medication Freezers 

Kaweah Health inspects, tests, and maintains utility systems.   
Note:  At times, maintenance is performed by an external service, and KH must have access to this 
documentation. 
EC.02.05.05- 2and 4 through 6 

On a regular and consistent basis, inspection, testing, and maintenance is part of a process to assure 
system and component performance. The initial inspection and test are part of the acceptance of new systems 
and components. Ongoing inspection, testing and maintenance increases reliability, systems and components 
life, and user confidence. The intervals for inspection, testing and maintenance are based on the needs of the 
systems and components. The intervals may be less than or more than one year. The exception is the 
required weekly testing of the emergency generators. If an interval greater than one year is selected, it must 
be approved by the EOC committee. The Facilities Planning Director will apply or obtain professional judgment 
to set intervals so known risks, hazards and maintenance needs are managed.  In Facilities a computerized 
maintenance system is used to facilitate the scheduling, inspection, testing, maintenance, monitoring, and 
documentation of equipment for the utilities systems. 

 
Equipment Currently in Inventory: 

o Scheduled maintenance work orders are issued on a monthly basis to Facility’s staff. 
o Maintenance is performed in accordance with the instructions included in the work order. The 

assigned engineer documents the maintenance, including any pertinent observations, on the work 
order. When maintenance and documentation are completed, the engineer returns the work order 
to the Facility’s department. 

o If scheduled maintenance cannot be performed (i.e., parts not available), the reason is 
documented on the work order and returned to Facilities.  There is a system of evaluation for 
equipment not serviced within the scheduled time frame. 

o If systems' equipment must be removed from the user area for more than one day, the engineer 
prepares a corrective maintenance work order. 

o If scheduled maintenance is to be performed by an outside vendor, the Facility Director or 
designee contacts the vendor and instructs the vendor to perform the maintenance as detailed in 
the work order, document the maintenance and any associated work done on the work order. A 
copy of this documentation is maintained in Facilities. 

 
Incoming Equipment: 

o Requests for new equipment are reviewed and approved by the Facilities Planning Director or 
designee for proper safety features, including electrical needs, drainage needs, ventilation needs and 
space consideration as required by manufacturer specifications. 

o After receipt of new equipment, but prior to its installation, it must be inspected, with electrical and 
mechanical tests performed, and determined in conjunction with Clinical Engineering and Facilities 
that it meets all appropriate safety standards. 

o If the equipment fails to pass the required tests and inspection, the engineer will return the equipment 
to Purchasing unless the deficiency is corrected.  The equipment is not assigned an identification 
number until the equipment has passed all the requirements. 

o After passing inspection, and if recommended by manufacturer, the new equipment will be entered on 
the Preventive Maintenance Database.  At this time, the equipment is assigned an identification 
number, and the engineer performing the inspection will install the respective tag with the assigned 
equipment number, and then process the necessary data entry of the specific procedures and 
frequency to be followed during the preventive maintenance as recommended by the manufacturer. 

o If the manufacturer does not recommend preventive maintenance to the equipment, i.e., microwave 
oven, addressograph, the responsible engineer performing the inspection will apply a tag with the date 

198/368



Utilities Management Plan  7 
 

the inspection was performed, and will place the equipment on the Non-Clinical Equipment Inspection 
Log, and will be subject to visual inspection once a year to verify proper operation.   

o In the event that equipment not belonging to Kaweah Health  is brought into KH for use, they must be 
inspected and determined to be safe by the Clinical Engineering Department. This would apply to any 
items brought by patients, visitors or employees (radios, televisions, coffee makers, etc.).  The 
Facilities Planning  Director or designee is authorized to remove any item, which is found to be unsafe 
for use in the District.  This will include any demonstration equipment brought in by any vendor. 
 

Documentation is maintained in the Facilities Department, and includes, but is not  
limited to the following: 
o A current, accurate and separate inventory of utility components identified in this plan 
o Performance and safety testing of each critical component before initial use. 

o Maintenance of critical components of High Risk Utility systems/equipment consistent 
with the maintenance strategies identified in this plan. 

o Maintenance of critical components of infection control utility systems/equipment for 
consistent with the maintenance strategies identified in this plan. 

o Maintenance of critical components of non-high risk  utility systems/equipment on the 
inventory consistent with maintenance strategies identified in this plan. 

 
Kaweah Health inspects, tests and maintains emergency power systems 
EC.02.05.07- 1 through 10 
1.   At 30-day intervals, a functional test is performed of battery-powered lights required for egress for a 

minimum duration of 30 seconds.  The completion date of the test is documented and maintained in 
Facilities.  

2.  Every 12 months, performs a functional test of battery-powered lights required for egress and exit signs 
for a duration of 1 ½ hours.  The completion date of the tests or replacement is documented and 
maintained by  the KH Safety Department. 

3.  SEPSS (Stored Electrical Energy Emergency and Standby Power Systems) testing:  Not applicable. 
4. At least weekly, the hospital inspects the emergency power supply system (EPSS), including all 

associated components and batteries. The results and completion dates of weekly inspections are 
documented-Not applicable.  

5.   The generators are tested monthly by Facilities for at least 30 continuous minutes.  The completion 
date of the tests is documented and kept on file by the KH Safety Department. 

6.  The emergency generator tests are conducted with a dynamic load that is at least 30% of the 
nameplate rating of the generator or meets the manufacturer’s recommended prime movers’ exhaust 
gas temperature.   

7. Monthly, the automatic transfer switches are tested, and the completion date of the tests is  
     documented and maintained by the KH Safety Department. 
8. At least annually, the hospital tests the fuel quality to ASTM standards. The test results and 

completion dates are documented. 
9. At least once every 36 months, each emergency generator is tested for a minimum of 4 continuous 
            hours.  The completion date of the tests is documented and maintained by the KH Safety Department. 
10.       The 36-month emergency generator test uses a dynamic or static load that is at least 30% of the                             
            nameplate rating of the generator or meets the manufacturer’s recommended prime movers’    
            exhaust gas temperature. 

If the required emergency power system test fails, KH will                 
            implement measures to protect patients, visitors and staff until necessary repairs or corrections   
            are completed.  This is the responsibility of Facilities personnel.  If a required emergency power  
            system test fails, Facilities personnel will perform a retest after making the necessary repairs or  
            corrections. 
 
Kaweah Health inspects, tests and maintains medical gas and vacuum systems.   
EC.02.05.09-1 through 14 
Facilities inspects, tests, and maintains critical components of piped medical gas systems, including master 
signal panels, area alarms, automatic pressure switches, shutoff valves, flexile connectors, and outlets.   The 
plan for inspecting, testing and maintaining medical gas and vacuum system includes, but is not limited to: 
o Annual inspection of alarm panel 
o Annual inspection of area alarms 
A routine PM schedule is in place for automatic pressure switches, shutoff valves, flexible connectors and 
outlets (annual testing for patient-care areas, and annual for non-patient care areas). 

199/368



Utilities Management Plan  8 
 
When the systems are installed, modified, or repaired including cross-connections  
testing, piping purity testing and pressure testing, a qualified individual (e.g., a contractor/certified licensed 
technician) insures that the medical gas systems are installed/maintained/repaired.  When the installation is 
completed, or when maintenance or repair work is done, the qualified individual ensures that cross connection 
testing, piping purity testing and pressure testing are included in the process, and that code requirements are 
met.  The systems will be additionally tested (to ensure it is connected properly so that a sufficient volume is 
yielded at each outlet) following periods of construction or if there is evidence that the system has been 
breached. 
 
KH maintains the main supply valve and area shut-off valves of piped medical gas and vacuum systems and 
ensure they are accessible and clearly labeled. To maintain safety in the event of an emergency, a current and 
complete set of documents indicating the distribution of the medical gas systems and control for partial or 
complete shutdown is maintained. The documents include "as-built" drawings, construction or design 
drawings, line or isometric drawings, shop drawings, or any combination of these if they reflect present 
conditions. 

When the hospital has bulk oxygen systems above ground, they are in a locked enclosure (such as a fence) at 
least 10 feet from vehicles and sidewalks. There is permanent signage stating “OXYGEN – NO SMOKING – 
NO OPEN FLAMES.”  
The hospital’s emergency oxygen supply connection is installed in a manner that allows a temporary 
auxiliary source to connect to it.  
 
The hospital tests piped medical gas and vacuum systems for purity, correct gas, and proper pressure 
when these systems are installed, modified, or repaired. The test results and completion dates are 
documented. 
 
The hospital makes main supply valves and area shutoff valves for piped medical gas and vacuum 
systems accessible and clearly identifies what the valves control. 
 
Locations containing only oxygen or medical air have doors labeled "Medical Gases: NO Smoking or 
Open Flame." Locations containing other gases have doors labeled “Positive Pressure Gases: NO 
Smoking or Open Flame. Room May Have Insufficient Oxygen. Open Door and Allow Room to Ventilate 
Before Opening.” 
Ongoing Education for Users and Maintainers 
HR.01.05.03-1 

The Facility’s Education Department and the department managers hold responsibility for coordinating 
and implementing the education and training of the utility equipment users jointly. 
USER EDUCATION: 
Employees will receive a general overview of the Utilities Management Plan at initial and annual orientation.  
Department Directors will provide department specific orientation and education to their employees to insure 
that utility equipment users will be able to describe and/or demonstrate the following items: 

1. Basic operating and safety features for users to follow 
2. Emergency procedures to follow when utility equipment fails. 
3. KH’s process for reporting utility equipment management problems, failures and user errors 

(i.e., they are reported to Facilities, who in turn reports this information to the EOC Committee. 
Maintainer Education 
For the maintainers of utility equipment, thorough training about the capabilities and limitations of equipment is 
made by the manufacturer.  Self-assessment can be used annually, through the competency process, to 
determine the need for additional training.  Training may be provided by: 

 Formal academic courses 
 Seminars, in-service training 
 On-the-job training 
 Service schools 

 
 
Information collection system to monitor conditions of the environment. 

1. Kaweah Health establishes a process(es) for continually monitoring, internally reporting, and   
investigating the following: 

o Utility equipment management problems, failures and user errors 

200/368



Utilities Management Plan  9 
 

 
Through the EOC Committee structure, utility problems, failures and user errors are reported by Facilities, who 
investigate the issue, and provide corrective actions.  Minutes and agendas are kept for each Environment of Care 
meeting and filed in Performance Improvement.  

 
Annual Evaluation of the Utilities Management Plan. 
EC.04.01.01-EP-15 
On an annual basis EOC Committee members evaluate the Utilities Management Plan, as part of a risk 
assessment process.  Validation of the management plan occurs to ensure contents of each plan support ongoing 
activities within KDHCD. Based upon findings, goals and objectives will be determined for the subsequent year.  A 
report will be written and forwarded to the Governing Board.  The annual evaluation will include a review of the 
following: 

o The objectives:  The objective of the Utilities Management plan will be evaluated to determine 
continued relevance for KH (i.e., the following questions will be asked; was the objective 
completed? Did activities support the objective of the plan?   If not, why not?  What is the 
continuing plan?  Will this objective be included in the following year?  Will new objective(s) be 
identified? Will specific goals be developed to support the identified objective?) 

o The scope.   The following indicator will be used to evaluate the effectiveness of the scope of 
the utilities management plan:  the targeted population for the management plan will be 
evaluated (e.g., did the scope of the plan reach applicable employee populations in the off-site 
areas, and throughout KH?) 

o Performance Standards.  Specific performance standards for the Utilities  Management plan 
will be evaluated, with plans for improvement identified.  Performance standards will be 
monitored for achievement.  Thresholds will be set for the performance standard identified.  If 
a threshold is not met an analysis will occur to determine the reasons, and actions will be 
identified to reach the identified threshold in the subsequent quarter.  

o Effectiveness.  The overall effectiveness of the objectives, scope and performance standards 
will be evaluated with recommendations made to continue monitoring, add new indicators if 
applicable or take specific actions for ongoing review. 

 
KDHCD analyzes identified EOC issues. 
EC.04.01.03-EP-2 
EOC issues relating to utility equipment are identified and analyzed through the EOC Committee with 
recommendations made for resolution.  It is the responsibility of the EOC Committee chairperson to establish an 
agenda, set the meetings, coordinate the meeting and ensure follow-up occurs where indicated.  Quarterly 
Environment of Care reports are communicated to Performance Improvement, the Medical Executive Committee 
and the Board of Directors.   

 
 

KDHCD improves its EOC  
EC.04.01.05-EP1 

Performance standards are identified monitored and evaluated that measure effective outcomes in the area of 
utility equipment management.  Performance standards are also identified for Safety, Security, Hazardous 
Materials, Emergency Management, Fire Prevention and Medical equipment management.  The standards are 
approved and monitored by the EOC Committee with appropriate actions and recommendations made.  
Whenever possible, the environment of care is changed in a positive direction by the ongoing monitoring, and 
changes in actions that promote an improved performance.   

 
Patient Safety. 
Periodically there may be an EOC issue that has impact on the safety of our patients relating to utility equipment.  
This may be determined from Sentinel Event surveillance, environmental surveillance, user errors, patient safety 
standards or consequential actions identified through the risk management process.  When a patient-safety issue 
relating to utility equipment emerges, it is the responsibility of the Safety Officer or designee to bring forth the issue 
through the patient safety process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

201/368



Utilities Management Plan  10 
 

 
"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally acceptable 
approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  Deviations under 
appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  New knowledge, new 
techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical circumstances may provide 
sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not described in the document."  
 
 

202/368



Separator Page

EOC 7401 Utilities_Management_Program

203/368



 

 
 

Subcategories of Department Manuals 
not selected. 

Policy Number:     EOC 7401 Date Created:  04/01/2010 
Document Owner: Maribel Aguilar (Safety 
Officer/Life Safety Manager) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Board of Directors (EOC/Emergency 
Preparedness) 

Utilities Management Program 
 
Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
 
POLICY: 
Kaweah Health shall maintain a Utilities Management Program, effectively known as the 
Utilities Management Plan, designed to accurately plan, operate, assess and manage all 
activities with-in the utility systems environment. 
 
The Utilities Management Program shall include equipment that meets the following criteria: 
 
Maintains the climatic environment in Patient care areas. 
Risk potential to Patient life support upon failure. 
Building systems, which are involved with infection control. 
Communication systems which may affect the Patient or the Patient care environment. 
Auxiliary or ancillary part of a system control or interface to Patient care environment, life 
support, or infection control. 
 
The following systems are included in the Utilities Management Program: 
 
Electrical Distribution Panels 
H.V.A.C. Equipment  
Heating and Exhaust Equipment 
Plumbing, Water Heating and Distribution Equipment 
Boiler, Steam  
Medical/Surgical Air and Vacuum Equipment 
Domestic Water 
Sewage Removal Systems 
Alarm Systems 

 
 

The following systems are included in the Utilities Management Program but due to 
complexity of maintenance, will be serviced by District Vendors: 

 
Vertical Transport Systems 
Medical Gas Delivery Equipment, Manifolds, Bulk Oxygen Storage, including   Alarm 
Panels, Valves, Automatic Pressure Switches, Flexible Connectors and Outlets 
Sterilization Equipment 
Automatic Fire Extinguishing Systems 
Emergency Power Equipment including Transfer Switches 
 
 
 

204/368



Utilities Management Program  2 
 
 

 
"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally 
acceptable approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  
Deviations under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  
New knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described in the document."  
 
 

205/368



Separator Page

DM 2225 Lockdown-Security_of_Entry_Doors

206/368



 

 
 

Emergency Preparedness 

Policy Number:     DM 2225 Date Created:  09/01/2011 
Document Owner: Maribel Aguilar (Safety 
Officer/Life Safety Manager) 

Date Approved: Not Approved Yet 

Approvers: Board of Directors (Administration), Board of Directors (EOC/Emergency 
Preparedness) 

Lockdown-Security of Entry Doors 
 
Printed copies are for reference only.  Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 
 
POLICY: 
A facility lockdown will be authorized as indicated for each facility by the Incident 
Commander. In the event an emergency situation requiring the need for facility 
lockdown, all entry doors to the facilities will be secured and monitored to isolate the 
hospital or any Kaweah Health facility from the outside public due to an emergency, 
either internal or external. 
Staff from the labor pool will be assigned to each entry door in order to monitor 
entries and exits through those doors. 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 
Door Monitor Procedures: 
To ensure that the hospital or other facility remains in lockdown, door monitors will 
be assigned toeach of the doors as listed below, or in the case of a labor pool 
shortage, one monitor will be assigned to high traffic doors, in order to ensure that 
no unauthorized access to the facility occurs. 
 
When the labor pool has enough monitors for each door to be monitored, the door 
monitor is to stand on the inside of the door. Once the lockdown commences, no 
one will be allowed entry into the facility, except for the designated emergency 
entrance. 
 
Persons may exit, but no one is allowed to enter. 
When encountering someone seeking entry into the hospital, the door monitor will 
inform that person that the hospital is currently in lockdown and no one is allowed 
entry, except through the Emergency Room Entrance. If the person seeking entry is 
requesting medical attention, the person will be directed to the Emergency 
Department entrance where the person will be admitted for a Medical Screening 
Exam. Assistance will be provided when indicated to move patients who presented 
to an entrance other than the Emergency Department Entrance. 
 
Within the hospital's capabilities at the time of the incident, the Emergency 
Department shall provide Medical Screening Exams (MSE) to all persons presenting 
for medical emergencies. In situations where the safety and security of the hospital 

207/368



Lockdown-Security of Entry Doors  2 
 
may be endangered, special consideration should be made to ensure the securing 
of all access points into and out of the Emergency Department. The MSE can be 
performed in appropriate sites other than the physical plant of the Emergency 
Department as directed by the Hospital Incident Commander should the Emergency 
Department facility become uninhabitable. 
The lockdown will remain in effect until the Incident Commander through PBX 
announces “all clear”. 
 
RESPONSIBLE PARTY      ACTION 
Executive Officer or designee,    1. Order Lockdown procedures 
Incident Commander 
Safety Officer, Security 
Officer, Nursing Administration 
Security Staff      2. Execute lockdown procedures 
Staff Labor Pool      3. Door monitoring assignments 

are made, employees report to 
assigned doors and monitor 
door access.  

 
Door Numbers: (See attached map) 
Downtown Campus 
1) Mineral King Main Entrance Slider Doors 
2) Ambrosia Patio Door 
3) Ambrosia Kitchen Door 
4) Nursing Staff Door (Mineral King) 
5) Food & Nutrition Services Double Doors 
6) Loading Dock Double Doors 
7) Central Logistics ** Assigned to area staff 
8) Surgery Waiting Room West Door ** Assigned to area staff 
9) Surgery Sliding Doors 
10) Ambulatory Surgery Exit Door 
11) Acequia Tower – Southwest Employee Entrance Doors 
12)  Acequia Tower West Staircase 
13) Acequia Tower West Employee Entrance Door / Staircase Exit Door 
14) Acequia Main Entrance Slider Doors 
15) Acequia Tower East Employee Entrance Door / Staircase Exit Door 
16) Acequia Tower East Staircase Exit  
17) Emergency Department Ambulance Entrance Doors 
18) Emergency Department-Security Vestibule Entrance / Exit Doors*** - Assigned 
area staff 
19) Emergency Department- Employee Entrance Door 
 
South Campus: 
1) Urgent Care main entrance 1633 South Court 
2) Urgent Care south door 
3) Urgent Care ambulance Bay 
4) Urgent Care glass door 
5) KATS Main Entrance sliding door 
6) KATS employee entrance south door 
7) TCU and Subacute visitor entrance TCU ambulance bay 

208/368



Lockdown-Security of Entry Doors  3 
 
8) Subacute north east door 
9) Subacute north door 
10) Storage entrance south door 
11) Dietary south door 
 
West Campus Door Numbers: 
Mental Health: 
1) West exterior (4 exit route) doors 2) North entrance Ambulance port doors 
3) Food Services Dining Room (2) exterior doors 
4) Dietary Patio (gate) door 
5) Front (Patient Family Services) entrance door 
6) Main entrance/Lobby door 
7) South exterior (Distribution/Loading zone) door 
8) East exterior(Exit route) door9) North exterior (Gate) door 
Kaweah Dialysis Center 
1) Main entrance/Lobby Automatic Doors 
2) East exterior (Patio/Lounge) door 
3) West entrance (Ambulance) door 
4) North entrance (Employee) door 
5) North Biohazard Door 
6) North Supply Room Door 
Rehabilitation Center: 
1) South entrance (Ambulance port) door 
2) Southeast exterior (exit route) double doors 
3) East exterior (Exit route) door 
4) Front entrance (Cousteau’s Grill) double doors 
5) East side exterior (Cousteau’s Grill) single door 
6) North entrance (Loading Zone door 
7) North exterior (Employee) door 
8) North Exterior (Exit route) door 
9) Front entrance (Outpatient) automatic double doors 
10) Main entrance/Lobby automatic double doors 
Lifestyle Fitness Center 
1) South exterior (Gymnasium) door 
2) West entrance (2nd floor) door 
3) West Entrance (1st floor) Outpatient Rehab doors 
4) Main entrance/Lobby automatic double doors 
5) East Entrance (Employee) door 
6) East entrance (2nd floor) door 
7) South exterior (Lap Pool) door 
8) North Exterior (Hand Center) door 
9) East (Lap Pool) door 
10) East Entrance (Gym) 
Kaweah Health Imaging and Breast Center 
1) West exterior (Lab Draw) door 
2) West entrance (Employee) door 
3) South end exterior (exit route) door 
4) Two South exterior (Exit routes) doors (back courtyard area) 
5) Front Entrance/Main Lobby automatic double doors 
6) North Door exterior (Employee) door Breast Center 

209/368



Lockdown-Security of Entry Doors  4 
 
Sequoia Regional Cancer Center 
1) North exterior (Exit route) door 
2) North exterior (Staff/Lounge Patio) door 
3) Two north exterior (exit route) doors 
4) Main entrance/Lobby automatic double doors 
5) North entrance (Ambulance automatic double doors 
6) East exterior (Exit route) door 
7) East entrance (employee) side door 
8) South exterior (exit route) door 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
"These guidelines, procedures, or policies herein do not represent the only medically or legally 
acceptable approach, but rather are presented with the recognition that acceptable approaches exist.  
Deviations under appropriate circumstances do not represent a breach of a medical standard of care.  
New knowledge, new techniques, clinical or research data, clinical experience, or clinical or bio-ethical 
circumstances may provide sound reasons for alternative approaches, even though they are not 
described in the document."  
 
 

210/368



Separator Page

02.26.2025 rejection of claim letter KKD .Priscilla Wilson

211/368



400 W. Mineral King Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 • (559) 624-2000 • kaweahhealth.org

February 26, 2025

Matthew D. Owdom, Esq.
Owdom Law Firm
734 W. Oak Avenue
Visalia, California 93291

RE: Notice of Rejection of Claim, of Priscilla Wilson v. Kaweah Delta Health Care District 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, the Claim which you presented to Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors, 
received January 16, 2025, as it relates to damages occurring from approximately start of employment in 2018 to 
December 2024 was rejected on its merits by the Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors on February 
26, 2025.

WARNING

Subject to certain exceptions, you have only six (6) months from the date this notice was personally delivered or 
deposited in the mail to file a court action in a municipal or superior court of the State of California on this Claim.  
See Government Code section 945.6.

This time limitation applies only to causes of action arising under California law for which a Claim is mandated by 
the California Government Tort Claims Act, Government Code sections 900 et seq. Other causes of action, 
including those arising under federal law, may have shorter time limitations for filing.

You may seek the advice of an attorney of your choice in connection with this matter.  If you desire to consult with 
an attorney, you should do so immediately.

Sincerely,

Dave Francis
Secretary, Kaweah Delta Health Care District Board of Directors

cc: Rachele Berglund, Attorney at Law

212/368



Se
pa

ra
to

r P
ag

e

PA
 In

iti
at

iv
e 

Fi
na

l

21
3/

36
8



FF
YY

 2
0

2
55

 S
tr

a
te

g
icc

 P
la

n

P
h

ys
ic

ia
n

 A
lig

n
m

en
t

Fe
b

 2
6

, 2
0

2
5

21
4/

36
8



Re
cr

ui
t P

ro
vi

de
rs

  
Ch

am
pi

on
s:

 R
ya

n 
G

at
es

 a
nd

 J
C 

Pa
le

rm
o

W
or

k 
Pl

an
 (T

ac
tic

s)

#
N

am
e

St
ar

t D
at

e
Du

e 
Da

te
A

ss
ig

ne
d 

To
St

at
us

La
st

 C
om

m
en

t

5.
1.

1
De

ve
lo

p 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t O
pt

io
ns

 fo
r P

hy
si

ci
an

s.
07

/0
1/

20
24

01
/3

1/
20

25
Ry

an
 G

at
es

O
ff

 T
ra

ck
1/

10
/2

5 
m

et
 w

ith
 re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

le
ga

l c
ou

ns
el

 te
am

s 
an

d 
fin

al
iz

ed
 a

 d
ra

ft
 c

on
tra

ct
.  

Cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n

on
 a

 fe
w

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

le
m

en
ts

 is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 a
nd

 c
on

tra
ct

 e
xe

cu
tio

n 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
by

 3
/1

/2
5.

5.
1.

2
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

ea
rly

 in
 th

ei
r r

es
id

en
ci

es
, b

ui
ld

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
w

ith
 a

nd
 e

du
ca

te
Ka

w
ea

h 
H

ea
lth

 re
si

de
nt

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t p
ac

ka
ge

s.

07
/0

1/
20

24
06

/3
0/

20
25

JC
 P

al
er

m
o

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Th

e 
Ka

w
ea

h 
H

ea
lth

 R
ec

ru
itm

en
t T

ea
m

 m
et

 w
ith

 th
e 

Ka
w

ea
h 

H
ea

lth
 F

am
ily

 M
ed

ic
in

e
Re

si
de

nt
s 

12
/4

, p
la

nn
in

g 
to

 m
ee

t w
ith

 th
e 

Ka
w

ea
h 

H
ea

lth
 P

sy
ch

ia
tr

y 
Re

si
de

nt
s 

3/
19

, a
nd

 th
e

Si
er

ra
 V

ie
w

 In
te

rn
al

 M
ed

ic
in

e 
Re

si
de

nt
s 

3/
14

.  
O

ut
re

ac
h 

ha
s 

st
ar

te
d 

to
 re

si
de

nc
ie

s 
in

Ba
ke

rs
fie

ld
 a

nd
 F

re
sn

o 
as

 w
el

l.

5.
1.

3
Su

pp
or

t i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 p
hy

si
ci

an
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 w
ith

 s
uc

ce
ss

io
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

jo
in

tly
 e

xp
lo

re
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r l
on

g 
te

rm
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
gr

ow
th

.
07

/0
1/

20
24

06
/3

0/
20

25
JC

 P
al

er
m

o
O

n 
Tr

ac
k

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 m

ee
t w

ith
 a

nd
 d

is
cu

ss
 lo

ng
 a

nd
 s

ho
rt

-te
rm

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 w

ith
 o

ur
 lo

ca
l p

hy
si

ci
an

po
pu

la
tio

n.

5.
1.

4
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
di

re
ct

ly
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l p

hy
si

ci
an

s 
an

d 
m

ed
ic

al
 g

ro
up

s 
to

as
si

st
 in

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t a

nd
 p

la
ce

m
en

t o
f n

ew
 p

hy
si

ci
an

s 
in

 th
ei

r p
ra

ct
ic

es
.

07
/0

1/
20

24
06

/3
0/

20
25

JC
 P

al
er

m
o

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 re

cr
ui

t A
PP

s 
an

d 
Ph

ys
ic

ia
ns

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
ex

pa
nd

ed
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

to
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
ity

.

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

 D
ev

el
op

 a
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r p

hy
si

ci
an

s 
th

at
 w

ill
 a

ss
is

t w
ith

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t o

f p
ro

vi
de

rs
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

co
m

m
un

ity
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 K
aw

ea
h 

H
ea

lth
’s

 g
ro

w
th

.

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

 (O
ut

co
m

es
)

#
N

am
e

St
ar

t D
at

e
Du

e 
Da

te
A

ss
ig

ne
d 

To
St

at
us

La
st

 C
om

m
en

t

5.
1.

4.
1

Re
cr

ui
t 5

 P
rim

ar
y 

Ca
re

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s

07
/0

1/
20

24
06

/3
0/

20
25

JC
 P

al
er

m
o

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
W

e 
ha

ve
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 re

cr
ui

te
d 

a 
lo

ca
l p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 p

hy
si

ci
an

 to
 s

ta
rt

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
 a

 K
aw

ea
h

H
ea

lth
 C

lin
ic

.  
Th

is
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 th
e 

su
m

m
er

. W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 d
is

cu
ss

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

w
ith

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 p
os

tin
g 

Ka
w

ea
h 

H
ea

lth
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 n
at

io
nw

id
e.

5.
1.

4.
2

Re
cr

ui
t 1

5 
Sp

ec
ia

lty
 P

ro
vi

de
rs

07
/0

1/
20

24
06

/3
0/

20
25

JC
 P

al
er

m
o

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Si

nc
e 

Ju
ly

 1
st

 w
e 

ha
ve

 s
ig

ne
d:

 2
 P

ed
ia

tr
ic

 H
os

pi
ta

lis
ts

, 1
 P

sy
ch

ia
tr

is
t, 

1 
De

rm
at

ol
og

is
t, 

1
Pu

lm
on

ol
og

is
t, 

2 
G

en
er

al
 S

ur
ge

on
s,

 a
nd

 1
 C

ar
di

ot
ho

ra
ci

c 
Su

rg
eo

n.

Re
cr

ui
t 1

5 
Sp

ec
ia

lty
 P

ro
vi

de
rs

111

777
777

777
777

777
888

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07
/3

1/
20

24

08
/3

1/
20

24

09
/3

0/
20

24

10
/3

1/
20

24

11
/3

0/
20

24

12
/3

1/
20

24

01
/3

1/
20

25

010

015

Re
cr

ui
t 5

 P
rim

ar
y 

Ca
re

 P
hy

si
ci

an
s

000
000

000
000

000
1 11

111

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et

07
/3

1/
20

24

08
/3

1/
20

24

09
/3

0/
20

24

10
/3

1/
20

24

11
/3

0/
20

24

12
/3

1/
20

24

01
/3

1/
20

25

05

05

FY
20

25
 P

hy
si

ci
an

 A
lig

nm
en

t
Cu

st
om

 D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t

20
25

-0
2-

19
 - 

09
:3

8:
16

AM
 P

ST
1 

of
 2

21
5/

36
8



D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

 D
ev

el
op

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
th

at
 im

pr
ov

e 
al

ig
nm

en
t w

ith
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r c
on

tra
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ffi
lia

te
d 

ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
pr

ac
tic

es
.

W
or

k 
Pl

an
 (T

ac
tic

s)

#
N

am
e

St
ar

t D
at

e
Du

e 
Da

te
A

ss
ig

ne
d 

To
St

at
us

La
st

 C
om

m
en

t

5.
2.

1
En

ga
ge

 lo
ca

l p
hy

si
ci

an
 c

om
m

un
ity

 to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

ei
r m

ed
ic

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

ob
je

ct
iv

es
, c

ha
lle

ng
es

, o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t n
ee

ds
.

07
/0

1/
20

24
06

/3
0/

20
25

Ry
an

 G
at

es
O

n 
Tr

ac
k

Ka
w

ea
h 

H
ea

lth
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 m

ee
t a

nd
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l m

ed
ic

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 to
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
ho

w
 b

es
t t

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
ph

ys
ic

ia
ns

. 

5.
2.

2
De

ve
lo

p 
m

ed
ic

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

su
pp

or
t m

od
el

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

of
 lo

ca
l a

nd
re

gi
on

al
 p

hy
si

ci
an

s 
ba

se
d 

up
on

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

.
07

/0
1/

20
24

06
/3

0/
20

25
Ry

an
 G

at
es

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
M

ee
tin

gs
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 w
ith

 tw
o 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

tra
ns

iti
on

in
g 

to
 a

 w
RV

U
m

od
el

. C
on

ve
rs

at
io

ns
 a

re
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

 w
ith

 F
am

ily
 M

ed
ic

in
e 

Fa
cu

lty
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

so
lo

pr
ac

tic
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

. A
 fa

m
ily

 m
ed

ic
in

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 h

as
 s

ig
ne

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

in
g 

a 
w

RV
U

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
m

od
el

. T
he

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

co
nv

er
sa

tio
ns

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 fa

m
ily

 m
ed

ic
in

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s

un
de

rw
ay

. 

5.
2.

3
Ex

pl
or

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

an
d 

ne
w

 p
hy

si
ci

an
s 

to
 in

ve
st

 in
 a

nd
pr

ac
tic

e 
at

 a
 n

ew
 a

m
bu

la
to

ry
 s

ur
ge

ry
 c

en
te

r a
nd

 c
lin

ic
s.

07
/0

1/
20

24
06

/3
0/

20
25

Ry
an

 G
at

es
O

n 
Tr

ac
k

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 c
on

ve
rs

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l p

hy
si

ci
an

s 
to

 re
fin

e 
ou

r a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 fo
r v

ol
um

es
.  

O
nc

e 
th

is
 e

ff
or

t i
s 

co
m

pl
et

e,
 w

e 
w

ill
 s

ha
re

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 w

ith
 o

ur
 lo

ca
l p

hy
si

ci
an

 p
ar

tn
er

s
an

d 
co

m
e 

to
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
.

5.
2.

4
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 K

ey
 M

ed
ic

al
 G

ro
up

 in
 jo

in
t r

ec
ru

itm
en

t a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r

ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
pr

ac
tic

es
 in

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

ity
.

07
/0

1/
20

24
06

/3
0/

20
25

Ry
an

 G
at

es
O

n 
Tr

ac
k

Ka
w

ea
h 

H
ea

lth
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 m

ee
t w

ith
 a

nd
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 w

ith
 K

ey
 M

ed
ic

al
 G

ro
up

 in
 jo

in
t

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t e

ff
or

ts
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r p
hy

si
ci

an
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 

5.
2.

5
Pr

om
ot

e 
Ka

w
ea

h 
H

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

ia
ns

 th
at

 s
up

po
rt

 th
em

.
07

/0
1/

20
24

06
/3

0/
20

25
Ry

an
 G

at
es

O
n 

Tr
ac

k
Ka

w
ea

h 
H

ea
lth

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
Ka

w
ea

h 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g

ph
ys

ic
ia

ns
.

Ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
Al

ig
nm

en
t a

nd
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Su
pp

or
t 

Ch
am

pi
on

s:
 R

ya
n 

G
at

es
 a

nd
 J

C 
Pa

le
rm

o

FY
20

25
 P

hy
si

ci
an

 A
lig

nm
en

t
Cu

st
om

 D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t

20
25

-0
2-

19
 - 

09
:3

8:
16

AM
 P

ST
2 

of
 2

21
6/

36
8



Separator Page

CFO REPORT TO BOARD 2.26.2025

217/368



C
FO

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t
Ap

ril
 1

8,
 2

02
1

CF
O
Fi
na

nc
ia
lR

ep
or
t

M
on

th
En

di
ng

Ja
nu

ar
y
20

25

4/
15
5

218/368



Su
m
m
ar
y
Pa
ye
rV

ol
um

es
(F
Y2
5
th
ro
ug
h
Ja
nu

ar
y
20

25
)

Pa
tie

nt
Ca
se
s

Pa
tie

nt
Ca
se
s%

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

Pa
tie

nt
Ty
pe

Pa
yo
rG

ro
up

In
pa

tie
nt

M
ed

iC
al
M
an
ag
ed

Ca
re

8,
53
7

8,
73
8

9,
35
9

5,
99
8

29
.6
%

31
.6
%

33
.5
%

35
.2
%

Co
m
m
er
ci
al

6,
76
3

6,
38
4

6,
28
8

3,
59
5

23
.4
%

23
.1
%

22
.5
%

21
.1
%

M
ED

IC
AR

E
6,
52
6

6,
08
3

6,
00
0

3,
51
0

22
.6
%

22
.0
%

21
.5
%

20
.6
%

M
ed

ic
ar
e
M
an
ag
ed

Ca
re

2,
99
0

3,
02
1

3,
45
9

2,
20
4

10
.4
%

10
.9
%

12
.4
%

12
.9
%

M
ED

IC
AL

3,
67
2

3,
05
3

2,
45
4

1,
47
2

12
.7
%

11
.0
%

8.
8%

8.
6%

Ca
sh

Pa
y

21
7

20
9

24
7

20
0

0.
8%

0.
8%

0.
9%

1.
2%

W
or
k
Co

m
p

11
5

90
94

43
0.
4%

0.
3%

0.
3%

0.
3%

Tu
la
re

Co
un

ty
49

58
37

33
0.
2%

0.
2%

0.
1%

0.
2%

In
pa

tie
nt

To
ta
l

28
,8
69

27
,6
36

27
,9
38

17
,0
55

4.
9%

4.
9%

4.
9%

5.
2%

O
ut
pa

tie
nt

Co
m
m
er
ci
al

18
5,
32
0

17
2,
03
5

18
0,
88
7

10
3,
84
2

33
.0
%

32
.3
%

33
.6
%

33
.1
%

M
ed

iC
al
M
an
ag
ed

Ca
re

18
6,
68
6

16
9,
66
8

16
1,
95
4

95
,1
03

33
.2
%

31
.8
%

30
.1
%

30
.3
%

M
ED

IC
AR

E
96
,9
57

94
,4
86

99
,0
25

60
,2
66

17
.3
%

17
.7
%

18
.4
%

19
.2
%

M
ed

ic
ar
e
M
an
ag
ed

Ca
re

51
,1
85

60
,0
67

66
,9
89

39
,8
20

9.
1%

11
.3
%

12
.4
%

12
.7
%

M
ED

IC
AL

23
,9
05

22
,9
60

14
,8
37

6,
40
1

4.
3%

4.
3%

2.
8%

2.
0%

Ca
sh

Pa
y

14
,5
28

9,
78
8

8,
76
3

4,
77
7

2.
6%

1.
8%

1.
6%

1.
5%

W
or
k
Co

m
p

3,
38
8

3,
98
8

6,
13
0

3,
51
5

0.
6%

0.
7%

1.
1%

1.
1%

O
ut
pa

tie
nt

To
ta
l

56
1,
96
9

53
2,
99
2

53
8,
58
5

31
3,
72
4

95
.1
%

95
.1
%

95
.1
%

94
.8
%

Gr
an

d
To

ta
l

59
0,
83
8

56
0,
62
8

56
6,
52
3

33
0,
77
9

10
0.
0%

10
0.
0%

10
0.
0%

10
0.
0%

FI
SC

AL
 Y

EA
R

S

5/
15
5

219/368



Pa
tie

nt
Ty
pe

Pa
ye
rV

ol
um

e
Re

po
rt

(F
Y2
5
th
ro
ug
h
Ja
nu

ar
y
20

25
)

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

In
pa
tie

nt
M
ed

iC
al

12
,2
09

11
,7
91

11
,8
13

7,
47
0

42
.3
%

42
.7
%

42
.3
%

43
.8
%

M
ed

ic
ar
e

9,
51
6

9,
10
4

9,
45
9

5,
71
4

33
.0
%

32
.9
%

33
.9
%

33
.5
%

21
,7
25

20
,8
95

21
,2
72

13
,1
84

75
.3
%

75
.6
%

76
.1
%

77
.3
%

%
of

To
ta
lI
np

at
ie
nt

75
%

76
%

76
%

77
%

O
ut
pa
tie

nt
M
ed

iC
al

21
0,
59
1

19
2,
62
8

17
6,
79
1

10
1,
50
4

37
.5
%

36
.1
%

32
.8
%

32
.4
%

M
ed

ic
ar
e

14
8,
14
2

15
4,
55
3

16
6,
01
4

10
0,
08
6

26
.4
%

29
.0
%

30
.8
%

31
.9
%

35
8,
73
3

34
7,
18
1

34
2,
80
5

20
1,
59
0

63
.8
%

65
.1
%

63
.6
%

64
.3
%

%
of

To
ta
lO

ut
pa
tie

nt
64
%

65
%

64
%

64
%

Pa
tie

nt
Ca
se
s

Pa
tie

nt
Ca
se
s%

6/
15
5

220/368



7/
15
5

221/368



8/
15
5

222/368



9/
15
5

223/368



St
at
ist
ica

lR
es
ul
ts
–
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

Co
m
pa

ris
on

(Ja
n)

A
ct

ua
l R

es
ul

ts
B

ud
ge

t
B

ud
ge

t V
ar

ia
nc

e
Ja

n 
20

24
Ja

n 
20

25
%

 C
ha

ng
e

Ja
n 

20
25

C
ha

ng
e

%
 C

ha
ng

e

Av
er

ag
e 

D
ai

ly
 C

en
su

s
44

4
43

2
(2

.7
%

)
43

2
0 

0.
1%

K
D

H
C

D
 P

at
ie

nt
 D

ay
s:

M
ed

ic
al

 C
en

te
r

9,
65

0
9,

39
7

(2
.6

%
)

9,
21

5
18

2 
2.

0%
Ac

ut
e 

I/P
 P

sy
ch

1,
34

0
1,

07
3

(1
9.

9%
)

1,
40

3
(3

30
)

(2
3.

5%
)

Su
b-

Ac
ut

e
94

5
94

1
(0

.4
%

)
92

0
21

 
2.

3%
R

eh
ab

63
1

71
7

13
.6

%
54

5
17

2 
31

.6
%

TC
S-

O
rth

o
31

3
36

3
16

.0
%

39
8

(3
5)

(8
.8

%
)

N
IC

U
37

3
34

6
(7

.2
%

)
40

0
(5

4)
(1

3.
5%

)
N

ur
se

ry
51

2
55

8
9.

0%
50

0
58

 
11

.6
%

To
ta

l K
D

H
C

D
 P

at
ie

nt
 D

ay
s

13
,7

64
 

13
,3

95
 

(2
.7

%
)

13
,3

81
 

14
 

0.
1%

To
ta

l O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 V

ol
um

e
61

,3
18

 
62

,7
13

 
2.

3%
61

,6
60

 
1,

05
3 

1.
7%

10
/1
55

224/368



St
at
ist
ica

lR
es
ul
ts
–
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

Co
m
pa

ris
on

(Ju
lJ
an

)

A
ct

ua
l R

es
ul

ts
B

ud
ge

t
B

ud
ge

t V
ar

ia
nc

e
FY

TD
20

24
FY

TD
 2

02
5

%
 C

ha
ng

e
FY

TD
 2

02
5

C
ha

ng
e

%
 C

ha
ng

e

Av
er

ag
e 

D
ai

ly
 C

en
su

s
40

5
41

1
1.

6%
41

6
(5

)
(1

.1
%

)

K
D

H
C

D
 P

at
ie

nt
 D

ay
s:

M
ed

ic
al

 C
en

te
r

58
,6

10
60

,8
40

3.
8%

60
,1

45
69

5 
1.

2%
Ac

ut
e 

I/P
 P

sy
ch

9,
17

4
7,

79
9

(1
5.

0%
)

9,
72

9
(1

,9
30

)
(1

9.
8%

)
Su

b-
Ac

ut
e

6,
55

3
6,

46
6

(1
.3

%
)

6,
47

0
(4

)
(0

.1
%

)
R

eh
ab

3,
77

1
4,

19
3

11
.2

%
3,

85
5

33
8 

8.
8%

TC
S-

O
rth

o
2,

39
9

2,
53

1
5.

5%
2,

70
3

(1
72

)
(6

.4
%

)
N

IC
U

2,
94

1
2,

95
6

0.
5%

3,
02

0
(6

4)
(2

.1
%

)
N

ur
se

ry
3,

56
8

3,
66

7
2.

8%
3,

50
0

16
7 

4.
8%

To
ta

l K
D

H
C

D
 P

at
ie

nt
 D

ay
s

87
,0

16
 

88
,4

52
 

1.
7%

89
,4

22
 

(9
70

)
(1

.1
%

)

To
ta

l O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 V

ol
um

e
40

6,
58

3 
41

8,
77

9 
3.

0%
42

7,
64

4 
(8

,8
65

)
(2

.1
%

)

11
/1
55

225/368



12
/1
55

226/368



13
/1
55

227/368



14
/1
55

228/368



15
/1
55

229/368



16
/1
55

230/368



17
/1
55

231/368



18
/1
55

232/368



19
/1
55

233/368



20
/1
55

234/368



21
/1
55

235/368



22
/1
55

236/368



23
/1
55

237/368



24
/1
55

238/368



O
th
er

St
at
ist
ica

lR
es
ul
ts
–
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

Co
m
pa

ris
on

(Ja
n)

B
ud

ge
t

Ja
n 

24
Ja

n 
25

C
ha

ng
e

%
 

C
ha

ng
e

Ja
n 

25
C

ha
ng

e
%

 
C

ha
ng

e

R
ur

al
 H

ea
lth

 C
lin

ic
s 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
ns

 
12

,6
11

14
,2

33
1,

62
2

12
.9

%
12

,8
60

   
  

1,
37

3
10

.7
%

R
H

C
 E

xe
te

r -
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

ns
6,

04
3

6,
91

1
86

8
14

.4
%

6,
50

6
   

   
 

40
5

6.
2%

R
H

C
 L

in
ds

ay
 - 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
ns

1,
97

2
1,

98
5

13
0.

7%
2,

15
3

   
   

 
(1

68
)

(7
.8

%
)

R
H

C
 W

oo
dl

ak
e 

- R
eg

is
tra

tio
ns

1,
15

8
1,

26
3

10
5

9.
1%

55
0

   
   

   
  

71
3

12
9.

6%

R
H

C
 D

in
ub

a 
- R

eg
is

tra
tio

ns
1,

39
6

1,
56

5
16

9
12

.1
%

1,
55

1
   

   
 

14
0.

9%

R
H

C
 T

ul
ar

e 
- R

eg
is

tra
tio

ns
2,

04
2

2,
50

9
46

7
22

.9
%

2,
10

0
   

   
 

40
9

19
.5

%

U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

– 
C

ou
rt 

To
ta

l V
is

its
3,

31
5

2,
84

5
(4

70
)

(1
4.

2%
)

3,
56

9
   

   
 

(7
24

)
(2

0.
3%

)

U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

– 
D

em
ar

ee
 T

ot
al

 V
is

its
2,

42
8

1,
71

9
(7

09
)

(2
9.

2%
)

2,
70

4
   

   
 

(9
85

)
(3

6.
4%

)

K
H

 M
ed

ic
al

 C
lin

ic
 - 

B
en

 M
ad

do
x 

V
is

its
79

6
1,

04
0

24
4

30
.7

%
1,

35
0

   
   

 
(3

10
)

(2
3.

0%
)

K
H

 M
ed

ic
al

 C
lin

ic
 - 

P
la

za
 V

is
its

29
4

27
0

(2
4)

(8
.2

%
)

62
9

   
   

   
  

(3
59

)
(5

7.
1%

)

K
H

 M
ed

ic
al

 W
illo

w
 C

lin
ic

 V
is

its
0

1,
33

8
1,

33
8

0.
0%

66
6

   
   

   
  

67
2

10
1.

0%

K
H

 C
ar

di
ol

og
y 

C
en

te
r V

is
al

ia
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

ns
1,

60
5

1,
51

0
(9

5)
(5

.9
%

)
1,

58
8

   
   

 
(7

8)
(4

.9
%

)

K
H

 M
en

ta
l W

el
ln

es
s 

C
lin

ic
 V

is
its

27
7

29
3

16
5.

8%
39

0
   

   
   

  
(9

7)
(2

4.
9%

)

U
ro

lo
gy

 C
lin

ic
 V

is
its

36
8

22
4

(1
44

)
(3

9.
1%

)
57

0
   

   
   

  
(3

46
)

(6
0.

7%
)

W
ou

nd
 C

ar
e 

V
is

its
95

2
1,

12
9

17
7

18
.6

%
1,

80
0

   
   

 
(6

71
)

(3
7.

3%
)

Ac
tu

al
 R

es
ul

ts
B

ud
ge

t V
ar

ia
nc

e

25
/1
55

239/368



O
th
er

St
at
ist
ica

lR
es
ul
ts
–
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

Co
m
pa

ris
on

(Ju
lJ
an

)
B

ud
ge

t

YT
D

 
Ja

n 
24

YT
D

 
Ja

n 
25

C
ha

ng
e

%
 

C
ha

ng
e

YT
D

 J
an

 
25

C
ha

ng
e

%
 

C
ha

ng
e

R
ur

al
 H

ea
lth

 C
lin

ic
s 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
ns

 
83

,3
24

94
,6

31
11

,3
07

13
.6

%
87

,3
00

   
   

 
7,

33
1

8.
4%

R
H

C
 E

xe
te

r -
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

ns
41

,4
82

45
,1

24
3,

64
2

8.
8%

43
,7

43
   

   
 

1,
38

1
3.

2%

R
H

C
 L

in
ds

ay
 - 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
ns

12
,0

17
13

,0
28

1,
01

1
8.

4%
12

,5
95

   
   

 
43

3
3.

4%

R
H

C
 W

oo
dl

ak
e 

- R
eg

is
tra

tio
ns

7,
63

7
9,

20
3

1,
56

6
20

.5
%

7,
52

7
   

   
   

1,
67

6
22

.3
%

R
H

C
 D

in
ub

a 
- R

eg
is

tra
tio

ns
8,

95
4

10
,6

27
1,

67
3

18
.7

%
9,

83
6

   
   

   
79

1
8.

0%

R
H

C
 T

ul
ar

e 
- R

eg
is

tra
tio

ns
13

,2
34

16
,6

49
3,

41
5

25
.8

%
13

,6
00

   
   

 
3,

04
9

22
.4

%

U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

– 
C

ou
rt 

To
ta

l V
is

its
22

,3
97

17
,0

52
(5

,3
45

)
(2

3.
9%

)
23

,0
88

   
   

 
(6

,0
36

)
(2

6.
1%

)

U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

– 
D

em
ar

ee
 T

ot
al

 V
is

its
15

,3
89

10
,5

23
(4

,8
66

)
(3

1.
6%

)
16

,1
11

   
   

 
(5

,5
88

)
(3

4.
7%

)

K
H

 M
ed

ic
al

 C
lin

ic
 - 

B
en

 M
ad

do
x 

V
is

its
5,

51
3

6,
22

5
71

2
12

.9
%

8,
10

0
   

   
   

(1
,8

75
)

(2
3.

1%
)

K
H

 M
ed

ic
al

 C
lin

ic
 - 

P
la

za
 V

is
its

50
7

1,
91

1
1,

40
4

27
6.

9%
4,

07
3

   
   

   
(2

,1
62

)
(5

3.
1%

)

K
H

 M
ed

ic
al

 W
illo

w
 C

lin
ic

 V
is

its
0

2,
66

6
2,

66
6

0.
0%

3,
58

8
   

   
   

(9
22

)
(2

5.
7%

)

K
H

 C
ar

di
ol

og
y 

C
en

te
r V

is
al

ia
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

ns
10

,0
20

10
,8

48
82

8
8.

3%
10

,6
07

   
   

 
24

1
2.

3%

K
H

 M
en

ta
l W

el
ln

es
s 

C
lin

ic
 V

is
its

1,
86

9
2,

06
5

19
6

10
.5

%
2,

52
0

   
   

   
(4

55
)

(1
8.

1%
)

U
ro

lo
gy

 C
lin

ic
 V

is
its

1,
91

2
2,

10
7

19
5

10
.2

%
3,

79
9

   
   

   
(1

,6
92

)
(4

4.
5%

)

W
ou

nd
 C

ar
e 

V
is

its
7,

10
3

5,
99

4
(1

,1
09

)
(1

5.
6%

)
11

,6
50

   
   

 
(5

,6
56

)
(4

8.
6%

)

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l R

es
ul

ts
B

ud
ge

t V
ar

ia
nc

e 26
/1
55

240/368



O
th
er

St
at
ist
ica

lR
es
ul
ts
–
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

Co
m
pa

ris
on

(Ja
n)

B
ud

ge
t

Ja
n 

24
Ja

n 
25

C
ha

ng
e

%
 

C
ha

ng
e

Ja
n 

25
C

ha
ng

e
%

 
C

ha
ng

e
A

ll O
/P

 R
eh

ab
 S

vc
s 

A
cr

os
s 

D
is

tri
ct

19
,9

45
20

,7
60

81
5

4.
1%

21
,3

03
   

  
(5

43
)

(2
.6

%
)

P
hy

si
ca

l &
 O

th
er

 T
he

ra
py

 U
ni

ts
 (I

/P
 &

 O
/P

)
18

,5
90

18
,9

71
38

1
2.

0%
19

,6
33

   
  

(6
62

)
(3

.4
%

)

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

C
T 

- A
ll A

re
as

4,
57

4
4,

65
3

79
1.

7%
4,

55
9

   
   

 
94

2.
1%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

M
R

I -
 A

ll A
re

as
87

2
89

3
21

2.
4%

86
4

   
   

   
  

29
3.

4%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

U
ltr

as
ou

nd
 - 

A
ll A

re
as

2,
69

6
3,

07
7

38
1

14
.1

%
2,

63
9

   
   

 
43

8
16

.6
%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

D
ia

gn
os

tic
 R

ad
io

lo
gy

10
,4

98
10

,1
16

(3
82

)
(3

.6
%

)
9,

87
2

   
   

 
24

4
2.

5%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 –

 M
ai

n 
C

am
pu

s
15

,9
68

15
,7

49
(2

19
)

(1
.4

%
)

15
,3

37
   

  
41

2
2.

7%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

U
ltr

as
ou

nd
 - 

M
ai

n 
C

am
pu

s
2,

08
2

2,
38

9
30

7
14

.7
%

2,
02

5
   

   
 

36
4

18
.0

%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- D
ia

gn
os

tic
 R

ad
io

lo
gy

1,
18

8
1,

36
8

18
0

15
.2

%
1,

13
4

   
   

 
23

4
20

.6
%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- C
T 

S
ca

n
46

8
50

7
39

8.
3%

44
5

   
   

   
  

62
14

.1
%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- M
R

I
40

2
42

7
25

6.
2%

40
4

   
   

   
  

23
5.

7%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- U
ltr

as
ou

nd
61

4
68

8
74

12
.1

%
61

4
   

   
   

  
74

12
.1

%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- B
re

as
t C

en
te

r
1,

73
8

1,
53

5
(2

03
)

(1
1.

7%
)

1,
69

4
   

   
 

(1
59

)
(9

.4
%

)

M
ed

 O
nc

 V
is

al
ia

 T
re

at
m

en
ts

1,
34

9
1,

07
2

(2
77

)
(2

0.
5%

)
1,

38
9

   
   

 
(3

17
)

(2
2.

8%
)

R
ad

 O
nc

 V
is

al
ia

 T
re

at
m

en
ts

1,
61

2
1,

22
2

(3
90

)
(2

4.
2%

)
1,

98
2

   
   

 
(7

60
)

(3
8.

3%
)

R
ad

 O
nc

 H
an

fo
rd

 T
re

at
m

en
ts

26
8

17
6

(9
2)

(3
4.

3%
)

38
4

   
   

   
  

(2
08

)
(5

4.
2%

)

Ac
tu

al
 R

es
ul

ts
B

ud
ge

t V
ar

ia
nc

e

27
/1
55

241/368



O
th
er

St
at
ist
ica

lR
es
ul
ts
–
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

Co
m
pa

ris
on

(Ju
lJ
an

)
B

ud
ge

t
YT

D
 

Ja
n 

24
YT

D
 

Ja
n 

25
C

ha
ng

e
%

 
C

ha
ng

e
YT

D
 J

an
 

25
C

ha
ng

e
%

 
C

ha
ng

e
A

ll O
/P

 R
eh

ab
 S

vc
s 

A
cr

os
s 

D
is

tri
ct

13
7,

53
8

14
3,

90
1

6,
36

3
4.

6%
14

7,
31

0
   

 
(3

,4
09

)
(2

.3
%

)

P
hy

si
ca

l &
 O

th
er

 T
he

ra
py

 U
ni

ts
 (I

/P
 &

 O
/P

)
11

9,
93

8
12

9,
42

6
9,

48
8

7.
9%

13
7,

57
3

   
 

(8
,1

47
)

(5
.9

%
)

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

C
T 

- A
ll A

re
as

31
,5

40
32

,2
77

73
7

2.
3%

31
,7

43
   

   
 

53
4

1.
7%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

M
R

I -
 A

ll A
re

as
5,

81
9

6,
13

8
31

9
5.

5%
6,

04
5

   
   

   
93

1.
5%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

U
ltr

as
ou

nd
 - 

A
ll A

re
as

18
,2

47
21

,1
86

2,
93

9
16

.1
%

18
,3

68
   

   
 

2,
81

8
15

.3
%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

D
ia

gn
os

tic
 R

ad
io

lo
gy

67
,0

04
67

,2
47

24
3

0.
4%

66
,9

82
   

   
 

26
5

0.
4%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 –

 M
ai

n 
C

am
pu

s
10

5,
24

4
10

7,
72

2
2,

47
8

2.
4%

10
5,

35
3

   
 

2,
36

9
2.

2%

R
ad

io
lo

gy
 - 

U
ltr

as
ou

nd
 - 

M
ai

n 
C

am
pu

s
14

,1
87

16
,5

36
2,

34
9

16
.6

%
14

,2
49

   
   

 
2,

28
7

16
.0

%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- D
ia

gn
os

tic
 R

ad
io

lo
gy

7,
54

0
8,

08
8

54
8

7.
3%

7,
57

5
   

   
   

51
3

6.
8%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- C
T 

S
ca

n
3,

22
4

3,
39

3
16

9
5.

2%
3,

28
8

   
   

   
10

5
3.

2%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- M
R

I
2,

54
2

2,
92

4
38

2
15

.0
%

2,
80

4
   

   
   

12
0

4.
3%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- U
ltr

as
ou

nd
4,

06
0

4,
65

0
59

0
14

.5
%

4,
11

9
   

   
   

53
1

12
.9

%

W
es

t C
am

pu
s 

- B
re

as
t C

en
te

r
11

,8
98

11
,7

64
(1

34
)

(1
.1

%
)

11
,9

38
   

   
 

(1
74

)
(1

.5
%

)

M
ed

 O
nc

 V
is

al
ia

 T
re

at
m

en
ts

9,
11

6
7,

32
9

(1
,7

87
)

(1
9.

6%
)

9,
38

8
   

   
   

(2
,0

59
)

(2
1.

9%
)

R
ad

 O
nc

 V
is

al
ia

 T
re

at
m

en
ts

10
,3

86
10

,2
08

(1
78

)
(1

.7
%

)
13

,5
82

   
   

 
(3

,3
74

)
(2

4.
8%

)

R
ad

 O
nc

 H
an

fo
rd

 T
re

at
m

en
ts

1,
73

3
1,

69
6

(3
7)

(2
.1

%
)

2,
95

8
   

   
   

(1
,2

62
)

(4
2.

7%
)

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l R

es
ul

ts
B

ud
ge

t V
ar

ia
nc

e 28
/1
55

242/368



O
th
er

St
at
ist
ica

lR
es
ul
ts
–
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

Co
m
pa

ris
on

(Ja
n)

B
ud

ge
t

Ja
n 

24
Ja

n 
25

C
ha

ng
e

%
 

C
ha

ng
e

Ja
n 

25
C

ha
ng

e
%

 
C

ha
ng

e

E
D

 - 
A

vg
 T

re
at

ed
 P

er
 D

ay
25

9
27

0
11

4.
2%

22
9

   
   

   
  

41
17

.9
%

S
ur

ge
ry

 (I
P

 &
 O

P
) –

 1
00

 M
in

 U
ni

ts
92

1
80

5
(1

16
)

(1
2.

6%
)

85
1

   
   

   
  

(4
6)

(5
.4

%
)

E
nd

os
co

py
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s
64

0
55

4
(8

6)
(1

3.
4%

)
40

0
   

   
   

  
15

4
38

.5
%

C
at

h 
La

b 
(IP

 &
 O

P
) -

 1
00

 M
in

 U
ni

ts
32

4
37

6
52

16
.0

%
34

5
   

   
   

  
31

9.
0%

C
ar

di
ac

 S
ur

ge
ry

 C
as

es
28

37
9

32
.1

%
31

   
   

   
   

 
6

19
.4

%

D
el

iv
er

ie
s

40
0

41
4

14
3.

5%
38

7
   

   
   

  
27

7.
0%

C
lin

ic
al

 L
ab

26
0,

13
5

27
1,

84
9

11
,7

14
4.

5%
24

7,
64

1
   

24
,2

08
9.

8%

R
ef

er
en

ce
 L

ab
6,

00
5

6,
24

9
24

4
4.

1%
5,

54
4

   
   

 
70

5
12

.7
%

D
ia

lys
is

 C
en

te
r -

 V
is

al
ia

 V
is

its
1,

56
7

1,
46

8
(9

9)
(6

.3
%

)
1,

75
7

   
   

 
(2

89
)

(1
6.

4%
)

In
fu

si
on

 C
en

te
r -

 U
ni

ts
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

42
5

38
5

(4
0)

(9
.4

%
)

57
2

   
   

   
  

(1
87

)
(3

2.
7%

)

H
os

pi
ce

 D
ay

s
3,

25
8

3,
60

6
34

8
10

.7
%

3,
82

4
   

   
 

(2
18

)
(5

.7
%

)

H
om

e 
H

ea
lth

 V
is

its
3,

03
2

2,
72

9
(3

03
)

(1
0.

0%
)

3,
21

5
   

   
 

(4
86

)
(1

5.
1%

)

H
om

e 
In

fu
si

on
 D

ay
s

20
,7

60
20

,1
59

(6
01

)
(2

.9
%

)
23

,3
09

   
  

(3
,1

50
)

(1
3.

5%
)

Ac
tu

al
 R

es
ul

ts
B

ud
ge

t V
ar

ia
nc

e

29
/1
55

243/368



O
th
er

St
at
ist
ica

lR
es
ul
ts
–
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

Co
m
pa

ris
on

(Ju
lJ
an

)
B

ud
ge

t
YT

D
 

Ja
n 

24
YT

D
 

Ja
n 

25
C

ha
ng

e
%

 
C

ha
ng

e
YT

D
 J

an
 

25
C

ha
ng

e
%

 
C

ha
ng

e

E
D

 - 
A

vg
 T

re
at

ed
 P

er
 D

ay
26

0
25

8
(2

)
(0

.9
%

)
23

0
   

   
   

   
28

12
.1

%

S
ur

ge
ry

 (I
P

 &
 O

P
) –

 1
00

 M
in

 U
ni

ts
6,

71
5

5,
70

5
(1

,0
10

)
(1

5.
0%

)
5,

93
2

   
   

   
(2

27
)

(3
.8

%
)

E
nd

os
co

py
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s
4,

40
1

3,
96

2
(4

39
)

(1
0.

0%
)

3,
58

1
   

   
   

38
1

10
.6

%

C
at

h 
La

b 
(IP

 &
 O

P
) -

 1
00

 M
in

 U
ni

ts
2,

35
7

2,
44

1
84

3.
6%

2,
19

8
   

   
   

24
3

11
.1

%

C
ar

di
ac

 S
ur

ge
ry

 C
as

es
20

0
19

2
(8

)
(4

.0
%

)
23

8
   

   
   

   
(4

6)
(1

9.
3%

)

D
el

iv
er

ie
s

2,
80

6
2,

93
2

12
6

4.
5%

2,
82

0
   

   
   

11
2

4.
0%

C
lin

ic
al

 L
ab

1,
66

0,
11

2
1,

73
5,

96
3

75
,8

51
4.

6%
1,

70
8,

91
4

 
27

,0
49

1.
6%

R
ef

er
en

ce
 L

ab
39

,7
79

46
,0

47
6,

26
8

15
.8

%
39

,9
13

   
   

 
6,

13
4

15
.4

%

D
ia

lys
is

 C
en

te
r -

 V
is

al
ia

 V
is

its
10

,6
11

10
,5

17
(9

4)
(0

.9
%

)
12

,2
99

   
   

 
(1

,7
82

)
(1

4.
5%

)

In
fu

si
on

 C
en

te
r -

 U
ni

ts
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

2,
71

9
3,

01
6

29
7

10
.9

%
3,

48
0

   
   

   
(4

64
)

(1
3.

3%
)

H
os

pi
ce

 D
ay

s
25

,6
45

24
,6

37
(1

,0
08

)
(3

.9
%

)
26

,5
40

   
   

 
(1

,9
03

)
(7

.2
%

)

H
om

e 
H

ea
lth

 V
is

its
21

,6
04

19
,8

89
(1

,7
15

)
(7

.9
%

)
22

,4
74

   
   

 
(2

,5
85

)
(1

1.
5%

)

H
om

e 
In

fu
si

on
 D

ay
s

15
8,

19
2

15
3,

46
4

(4
,7

28
)

(3
.0

%
)

15
7,

86
2

   
 

(4
,3

98
)

(2
.8

%
)

YT
D

 A
ct

ua
l R

es
ul

ts
B

ud
ge

t V
ar

ia
nc

e 30
/1
55

244/368



Ja
nu

ar
y
Fi
na

nc
ia
lS
um

m
ar
y
(0
00

’s)

Bu
dg
et

Ja
n
20
25

Ac
tu
al

Ja
n
20
25

$
Ch

an
ge

%
Ch

an
ge

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
N
et

Pa
tie

nt
Se
rv
ic
e
Re

ve
nu

e
$5
5,
05
7

$6
1,
89
5

$6
,8
38

11
.0
%

O
th
er

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$2
0,
48
6

$1
8,
04
2

($
2,
44
3)

13
.5
%

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$7
5,
54
2

$7
9,
93
8

$4
,3
95

5.
5%

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

Em
pl
oy
m
en

tE
xp
en

se
s

$3
8,
63
9

$3
9,
85
9

$1
,2
20

3.
1%

O
th
er

Ex
pe

ns
es

$3
6,
30
4

$3
6,
63
0

$3
26

0.
9%

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

$7
4,
94
3

$7
6,
48
9

$1
,5
46

2.
0%

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n

$5
99

$3
,4
48

$2
,8
49

St
im

ul
us
/F
EM

A
$0

$0
$0

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n
af
te
rS
tim

ul
us
/F
EM

A
$5
99

$3
,4
48

$2
,8
49

N
on

op
er
at
in
g
Re

ve
nu

e
(L
os
s)

$6
58

$8
45

$1
88

Ex
ce
ss
M
ar
gi
n

$1
,2
57

$4
,2
93

$3
,0
37

Co
m
pa
ris
on

to
Bu

dg
et

M
on

th
of

Ja
nu

ar
y

31
/1
55

245/368



Ye
ar

to
Da

te
Fi
na

nc
ia
lS
um

m
ar
y
(0
00

’s)

Bu
dg
et

YT
D

Ja
n
20
25

Ac
tu
al
YT
D

Ja
n
20
25

$
Ch

an
ge

%
Ch

an
ge

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
N
et

Pa
tie

nt
Se
rv
ic
e
Re

ve
nu

e
$3
72
,4
51

$3
81
,5
38

$9
,0
88

2.
4%

O
th
er

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$1
41
,6
16

$1
36
,5
82

($
5,
03
4)

3.
7%

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$5
14
,0
66

$5
18
,1
20

$4
,0
54

0.
8%

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

Em
pl
oy
m
en

tE
xp
en

se
s

$2
69
,9
45

$2
80
,6
16

$1
0,
67
1

3.
8%

O
th
er

Ex
pe

ns
es

$2
61
,9
45

$2
53
,8
61

($
8,
08
4)

3.
2%

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

$5
31
,8
90

$5
34
,4
77

$2
,5
86

0.
5%

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n

($
17
,8
24
)

($
16
,3
57
)

$1
,4
68

St
im

ul
us
/F
EM

A
$0

$4
7,
72
2

$4
7,
72
2

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n
af
te
rS
tim

ul
us
/F
EM

A
($
17
,8
24
)

$3
1,
36
5

$4
9,
19
0

N
on

op
er
at
in
g
Re

ve
nu

e
(L
os
s)

$4
,6
10

$9
,8
26

$5
,2
16

Ex
ce
ss
M
ar
gi
n

($
13
,2
14
)

$4
1,
19
1

$5
4,
40
6

Co
m
pa
ris
on

to
Bu

dg
et

YT
D
Ja
nu

ar
y

32
/1
55

246/368



Ja
nu

ar
y
Fi
na

nc
ia
lC
om

pa
ris
on

(0
00

’s)

Bu
dg
et

Ja
n

20
25

Ac
tu
al

Ja
n
20
25

$
Ch

an
ge

%
Ch

an
ge

Ac
tu
al

Ja
n
20
24

Ac
tu
al

Ja
n

20
25

$
Ch

an
ge

%
Ch

an
ge

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
N
et

Pa
tie

nt
Se
rv
ic
e
Re

ve
nu

e
$5
5,
05
7

$6
1,
89
5

$6
,8
38

11
.0
%

$4
9,
47
2

$6
1,
89
5

$1
2,
42
3

20
.1
%

Su
pp

le
m
en

ta
lG

ov
't
Pr
og
ra
m
s

$7
,7
44

$2
,7
17

($
5,
02
7)

18
5.
0%

$8
,7
80

$2
,7
17

($
6,
06
2)

22
3.
1%

Pr
im

e
Pr
og
ra
m

$7
92

$5
,5
51

$4
,7
59

85
.7
%

$2
,4
59

$5
,5
51

$3
,0
92

55
.7
%

Pr
em

iu
m
Re

ve
nu

e
$7
,5
47

$5
,5
00

($
2,
04
7)

37
.2
%

$6
,7
54

$5
,5
00

($
1,
25
4)

22
.8
%

M
an
ag
em

en
tS
er
vi
ce
sR

ev
en

ue
$0

$0
$0

0.
0%

$3
,7
56

$0
($
3,
75
6)

0.
0%

O
th
er

Re
ve
nu

e
$4
,4
03

$4
,2
74

($
12
9)

3.
0%

$2
,6
30

$4
,2
74

$1
,6
44

38
.5
%

O
th
er

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$2
0,
48
6

$1
8,
04
2

($
2,
44
3)

13
.5
%

$2
4,
37
9

$1
8,
04
2

($
6,
33
6)

35
.1
%

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$7
5,
54
2

$7
9,
93
8

$4
,3
95

5.
5%

$7
3,
85
1

$7
9,
93
8

$6
,0
86

7.
6%

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

Sa
la
rie

s&
W
ag
es

$3
2,
30
8

$3
2,
47
8

$1
71

0.
5%

$2
9,
70
5

$3
2,
47
8

$2
,7
73

8.
5%

Co
nt
ra
ct
La
bo

r
$1
,2
02

$2
,4
87

$1
,2
86

51
.7
%

$1
,7
80

$2
,4
87

$7
07

28
.4
%

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

$5
,1
30

$4
,8
94

($
23
6)

4.
8%

$6
,1
60

$4
,8
94

($
1,
26
6)

25
.9
%

To
ta
lE
m
pl
oy
m
en

tE
xp
en

se
s

$3
8,
63
9

$3
9,
85
9

$1
,2
20

3.
1%

$3
7,
64
5

$3
9,
85
9

$2
,2
14

5.
6%

M
ed

ic
al
&
O
th
er

Su
pp

lie
s

$1
4,
19
7

$1
4,
32
5

$1
28

0.
9%

$1
4,
98
0

$1
4,
32
5

($
65
5)

4.
6%

Ph
ys
ic
ia
n
Fe
es

$7
,2
53

$6
,4
99

($
75
4)

11
.6
%

$7
,5
58

$6
,4
99

($
1,
05
9)

16
.3
%

Pu
rc
ha
se
d
Se
rv
ic
es

$1
,8
19

$1
,7
89

($
30
)

1.
7%

$1
,7
09

$1
,7
89

$8
0

4.
5%

Re
pa
irs

&
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

$2
,0
81

$2
,2
03

$1
22

5.
5%

$2
,9
64

$2
,2
03

($
76
2)

34
.6
%

Ut
ili
tie

s
$8
33

$1
,0
99

$2
66

24
.2
%

$8
31

$1
,0
99

$2
68

24
.4
%

Re
nt
s&

Le
as
es

$1
54

$1
63

$9
5.
7%

$1
40

$1
63

$2
3

14
.1
%

De
pr
ec
ia
tio

n
&
Am

or
tiz
at
io
n

$3
,3
02

$3
,1
13

($
18
9)

6.
1%

$2
,8
90

$3
,1
13

$2
23

7.
2%

In
te
re
st
Ex
pe

ns
e

$6
08

$6
46

$3
8

5.
8%

$6
03

$6
46

$4
3

6.
6%

O
th
er

Ex
pe

ns
e

$2
,2
91

$2
,0
37

($
25
4)

12
.5
%

$1
,3
15

$2
,0
37

$7
22

35
.4
%

Hu
m
an
a
Ca
p
Pl
an

Ex
pe

ns
es

$3
,7
66

$4
,7
56

$9
89

20
.8
%

$2
,7
51

$4
,7
56

$2
,0
05

42
.2
%

To
ta
lO

th
er

Ex
pe

ns
es

$3
6,
30
4

$3
6,
63
0

$3
26

0.
9%

$3
5,
74
2

$3
6,
63
0

$8
88

2.
4%

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

$7
4,
94
3

$7
6,
48
9

$1
,5
46

2.
0%

$7
3,
38
8

$7
6,
48
9

$3
,1
02

4.
1%

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n

$5
99

$3
,4
48

$2
,8
49

$4
64

$3
,4
48

$2
,9
85

St
im

ul
us
/F
EM

A
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n
af
te
rS
tim

ul
us
/F
EM

A
$5
99

$3
,4
48

$2
,8
49

$4
64

$3
,4
48

$2
,9
85

N
on

op
er
at
in
g
Re

ve
nu

e
(L
os
s)

$6
58

$8
45

$1
88

$9
69

$8
45

($
12
4)

Ex
ce
ss
M
ar
gi
n

$1
,2
57

$4
,2
93

$3
,0
37

$1
,4
32

$4
,2
93

$2
,8
61

Co
m
pa
ris
on

to
Bu

dg
et

M
on

th
of

Ja
nu

ar
y

Co
m
pa
ris
on

to
Pr
io
rY

ea
r

M
on

th
of

Ja
nu

ar
y

33
/1
55

247/368



Ye
ar

to
Da

te
:J
ul
y
th
ro
ug

h
Ja
nu

ar
y
Fi
na

nc
ia
lC
om

pa
ris
on

(0
00

’s)

Bu
dg
et

YT
D

Ja
n
20
25

Ac
tu
al
YT
D

Ja
n
20
25

$
Ch

an
ge

%
Ch

an
ge

Ac
tu
al
YT
D

Ja
n
20
24

Ac
tu
al
YT
D

Ja
n
20
25

$
Ch

an
ge

%
Ch

an
ge

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
N
et

Pa
tie

nt
Se
rv
ic
e
Re

ve
nu

e
$3
72
,4
51

$3
81
,5
38

$9
,0
88

2.
4%

$3
36
,0
33

$3
81
,5
38

$4
5,
50
5

11
.9
%

Su
pp

le
m
en

ta
lG

ov
't
Pr
og
ra
m
s

$5
2,
38
6

$4
8,
57
2

($
3,
81
4)

7.
9%

$4
7,
89
7

$4
8,
57
2

$6
75

1.
4%

Pr
im

e
Pr
og
ra
m

$5
,5
43

$1
0,
30
2

$4
,7
59

46
.2
%

$7
,3
89

$1
0,
30
2

$2
,9
13

28
.3
%

Pr
em

iu
m
Re

ve
nu

e
$5
2,
83
0

$4
9,
02
1

($
3,
80
9)

7.
8%

$5
1,
96
8

$4
9,
02
1

($
2,
94
7)

6.
0%

M
an
ag
em

en
tS
er
vi
ce
sR

ev
en

ue
$0

$0
$0

0.
0%

$2
3,
11
3

$0
($
23
,1
13
)

0.
0%

O
th
er

Re
ve
nu

e
$3
0,
85
6

$2
8,
68
7

($
2,
17
0)

7.
6%

$2
2,
83
7

$2
8,
68
7

$5
,8
49

20
.4
%

O
th
er

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$1
41
,6
16

$1
36
,5
82

($
5,
03
4)

3.
7%

$1
53
,2
05

$1
36
,5
82

($
16
,6
23
)

12
.2
%

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$5
14
,0
66

$5
18
,1
20

$4
,0
54

0.
8%

$4
89
,2
38

$5
18
,1
20

$2
8,
88
2

5.
6%

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

Sa
la
rie

s&
W
ag
es

$2
21
,3
84

$2
24
,0
51

$2
,6
67

1.
2%

$1
99
,6
31

$2
24
,0
51

$2
4,
41
9

10
.9
%

Co
nt
ra
ct
La
bo

r
$9
,3
65

$1
1,
19
8

$1
,8
33

16
.4
%

$1
3,
28
0

$1
1,
19
8

($
2,
08
2)

18
.6
%

Em
pl
oy
ee

Be
ne

fit
s

$3
9,
19
7

$4
5,
36
7

$6
,1
70

13
.6
%

$4
6,
93
4

$4
5,
36
7

($
1,
56
7)

3.
5%

To
ta
lE
m
pl
oy
m
en

tE
xp
en

se
s

$2
69
,9
45

$2
80
,6
16

$1
0,
67
1

3.
8%

$2
59
,8
46

$2
80
,6
16

$2
0,
77
0

7.
4%

M
ed

ic
al
&
O
th
er

Su
pp

lie
s

$1
07
,3
26

$9
7,
74
8

($
9,
57
8)

9.
8%

$9
2,
40
7

$9
7,
74
8

$5
,3
41

5.
5%

Ph
ys
ic
ia
n
Fe
es

$5
0,
36
2

$5
0,
37
6

$1
4

0.
0%

$4
6,
43
8

$5
0,
37
6

$3
,9
38

7.
8%

Pu
rc
ha
se
d
Se
rv
ic
es

$1
2,
60
2

$1
1,
74
3

($
85
8)

7.
3%

$1
1,
21
3

$1
1,
74
3

$5
30

4.
5%

Re
pa
irs

&
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce

$1
4,
54
9

$1
4,
91
3

$3
64

2.
4%

$1
6,
27
8

$1
4,
91
3

($
1,
36
5)

9.
2%

Ut
ili
tie

s
$6
,7
52

$6
,7
61

$9
0.
1%

$6
,2
94

$6
,7
61

$4
67

6.
9%

Re
nt
s&

Le
as
es

$1
,0
76

$9
71

($
10
5)

10
.8
%

$1
,0
61

$9
71

($
90
)

9.
3%

De
pr
ec
ia
tio

n
&
Am

or
tiz
at
io
n

$2
3,
11
2

$2
2,
21
4

($
89
9)

4.
0%

$1
9,
76
0

$2
2,
21
4

$2
,4
54

11
.0
%

In
te
re
st
Ex
pe

ns
e

$4
,2
19

$4
,1
87

($
32
)

0.
8%

$4
,2
09

$4
,1
87

($
21
)

0.
5%

O
th
er

Ex
pe

ns
e

$1
5,
82
6

$1
4,
39
7

($
1,
42
9)

9.
9%

$1
3,
30
1

$1
4,
39
7

$1
,0
96

7.
6%

Hu
m
an
a
Ca
p
Pl
an

Ex
pe

ns
es

$2
6,
12
1

$3
0,
55
0

$4
,4
29

14
.5
%

$2
4,
10
8

$3
0,
55
0

$6
,4
43

21
.1
%

To
ta
lO

th
er

Ex
pe

ns
es

$2
61
,9
45

$2
53
,8
61

($
8,
08
4)

3.
2%

$2
35
,0
68

$2
53
,8
61

$1
8,
79
3

7.
4%

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

$5
31
,8
90

$5
34
,4
77

$2
,5
86

0.
5%

$4
94
,9
14

$5
34
,4
77

$3
9,
56
3

7.
4%

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n

($
17
,8
24
)

($
16
,3
57
)

$1
,4
68

($
5,
67
5)

($
16
,3
57
)

($
10
,6
81
)

St
im

ul
us
/F
EM

A
$0

$4
7,
72
2

$4
7,
72
2

$3
,2
20

$4
7,
72
2

$4
4,
50
2

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n
af
te
rS
tim

ul
us
/F
EM

A
($
17
,8
24
)

$3
1,
36
5

$4
9,
19
0

($
2,
45
5)

$3
1,
36
5

$3
3,
82
1

N
on

op
er
at
in
g
Re

ve
nu

e
(L
os
s)

$4
,6
10

$9
,8
26

$5
,2
16

$9
,1
15

$9
,8
26

$7
11

Ex
ce
ss
M
ar
gi
n

($
13
,2
14
)

$4
1,
19
1

$5
4,
40
6

$6
,6
59

$4
1,
19
1

$3
4,
53
2

Co
m
pa
ris
on

to
Bu

dg
et

YT
D
Ja
nu

ar
y

Co
m
pa
ris
on

to
Pr
io
rY

ea
r

YT
D
Ja
nu

ar
y

34
/1
55

248/368



Bu
dg
et

an
d
Ac

tu
al
Fi
sc
al
Ye
ar

20
25

:T
re
nd

ed
O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n
(0
00

’s) 35
/1
55

249/368



Ju
ly
20

24
–
Ja
nu

ar
y
20

25
:T
re
nd

ed
Fi
na

nc
ia
lI
nf
or
m
at
io
n
(0
00

’s)
Ju
l2

4
Au

g
24

Se
p
24

O
ct

24
N
ov

24
De

c
24

Ja
n
25

FY
20
25

Pa
tie

nt
Se
rv
ic
e
Re

ve
nu

e
$5
0,
86
6

$5
3,
45
0

$5
1,
64
8

$5
6,
15
7

$5
4,
49
6

$5
3,
02
6

$6
1,
89
5

$3
81
,5
38

O
th
er

Re
ve
nu

e
$1
9,
48
7

$2
0,
02
4

$1
9,
14
2

$2
0,
24
2

$1
9,
86
8

$1
9,
77
8

$1
8,
04
2

$1
36
,5
82

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Re

ve
nu

e
$7
0,
35
3

$7
3,
47
4

$7
0,
79
0

$7
6,
39
8

$7
4,
36
4

$7
2,
80
4

$7
9,
93
8

$5
18
,1
20

Em
pl
oy
ee

Ex
pe

ns
e

$3
8,
26
4

$3
9,
05
8

$3
7,
67
1

$4
1,
49
4

$4
1,
05
1

$4
3,
21
9

$3
9,
85
9

$2
80
,6
16

O
th
er

O
pe

ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
e

$3
5,
81
1

$3
7,
90
8

$3
5,
47
7

$3
7,
29
4

$3
4,
87
2

$3
5,
86
8

$3
6,
63
0

$2
53
,8
61

To
ta
lO

pe
ra
tin

g
Ex
pe

ns
es

$7
4,
07
5

$7
6,
96
5

$7
3,
14
8

$7
8,
78
8

$7
5,
92
3

$7
9,
08
7

$7
6,
48
9

$5
34
,4
77

N
et

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n

($
3,
72
2)

($
3,
49
2)

($
2,
35
8)

($
2,
39
0)

($
1,
55
9)

($
6,
28
3)

$3
,4
48

($
16
,3
57
)

St
im

ul
us
/F
EM

A
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$4
7,
72
2

$0
$4
7,
72
2

N
on

O
pe

ra
tin

g
In
co
m
e

$1
,1
90

$8
96

$4
,7
20

$1
,3
71

$9
05

($
10
1)

$8
45

$9
,8
26

Ex
ce
ss
M
ar
gi
n

($
2,
53
3)

($
2,
59
6)

$2
,3
62

($
1,
01
9)

($
65
4)

$4
1,
33
8

$4
,2
93

$4
1,
19
1

Pr
of
ita

bi
lit
y

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n
%

(5
.3
%
)

(4
.8
%
)

(3
.3
%
)

(3
.1
%
)

(2
.1
%
)

(8
.6
%
)

4.
3%

(3
.2
%
)

O
pe

ra
tin

g
M
ar
gi
n
%
ex
cl
.I
nt

(4
.4
%
)

(4
.0
%
)

(2
.5
%
)

(2
.4
%
)

(1
.3
%
)

(7
.8
%
)

5.
1%

(2
.3
%
)

O
pe

ra
tin

g
EB
ID
A

$4
6

$2
39

$1
,4
57

$1
,3
48

$2
,2
93

($
2,
54
6)

$7
,2
07

$1
0,
04
5

O
pe

ra
tin

g
EB
ID
A
M
ar
gi
n

0.
1%

0.
3%

2.
1%

1.
8%

3.
1%

(3
.5
%
)

9.
0%

1.
9%

Liq
ui
di
ty
In
di
ca
to
rs

Da
y'
sC

as
h
on

Ha
nd

97
.4

89
.8

91
.9

88
.4

78
.9

74
.6

78
.3

78
.3

Da
y'
si
n
Ac
co
un

ts
Re

ce
iv
ea
bl
e

64
.0

68
.5

71
.0

68
.3

66
.9

65
.8

72
.5

72
.5

Un
re
st
ric
te
d
Fu
nd

s(
00
0'
s)

$2
19
,8
00

$2
09
,6
41

$2
14
,3
03

$2
07
,5
07

$1
87
,0
57

$1
77
,9
33

$1
91
,2
81

$1
91
,2
81

De
bt

&
Ot
he
rI
nd

ica
to
rs

De
bt

Se
rv
ic
e
Co

ve
ra
ge

(M
AD

S
0.
70

0.
50

1.
40

1.
80

1.
50

3.
20

3.
70

3.
70

Di
sc
ha
rg
es

(M
on

th
ly
)

2,
49
8

2,
44
7

2,
44
0

2,
38
8

2,
24
0

2,
33
9

2,
49
0

2,
40
6

Ad
jD

is
ch
ar
ge
s(
Ca
se

m
ix
ad
j)

8,
45
5

8,
21
5

7,
77
9

8,
44
1

7,
76
0

7,
72
4

8,
79
0

57
,1
63

Ad
ju
st
ed

pa
tie

nt
Da

ys
(M

o.
)

26
,0
23

26
,4
19

26
,4
19

26
,6
93

25
,4
92

26
,5
38

27
,7
97

27
,7
97

Co
st
/A
dj
Di
sc
ha
rg
e

$8
.8

$9
.4

$9
.4

$9
.3

$9
.8

$1
0.
2

$8
.7

$9
.4

Co
m
pe

ns
at
io
n
Ra
tio

75
%

73
%

73
%

74
%

75
%

82
%

64
%

74
%

37
/1
55

250/368



M
on

th
of

Ja
nu

ar
y

Bu
dg
et

Va
ria

nc
es

•
N
et

Pa
tie

nt
Se
rv
ic
e
Re

ve
nu

e:
Th
e
$6

.8
M

fa
vo
ra
bl
e
va
ria

nc
e
in
Ja
nu

ar
y
re
su
lte

d
fro

m
th
e

m
ix
an
d
ac
ui
ty

of
ou

rp
at
ie
nt
s.

•
Su
pp

le
m
en

ta
lG

ov
’t
Pr
og
ra
m
s:
Th
e
un

fa
vo
ra
bl
e
va
ria

nc
e
of

$4
.0
M

is
du

e
to

re
co
rd
in
g
an

ad
di
tio

na
lr
es
er
ve

re
la
te
d
to

ou
rM

ed
iC

al
DS

H
fu
nd

in
g.

•
Pr
im

e
Pr
og
ra
m

Re
ve
nu

e:
Th
e
Pr
im

e
re
ve
nu

e
w
as

po
sit
iv
el
y
im

pa
ct
ed

by
re
co
rd
in
g
$4

.8
M

of
ad
di
tio

na
lu
ne
xp
ec
te
d
Q
IP
re
ve
nu

e
re
la
te
d
to

FY
23

.
•

Pr
em

iu
m

Re
ve
nu

e:
Du

e
to

a
de

cr
ea
se

in
en

ro
llm

en
ti
n
ou

rM
ed

ica
re

m
an
ag
ed

ca
re

pl
an

in
Ja
nu

ar
y,
w
e
ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

a
$2

.0
M

un
fa
vo
ra
bl
e
va
ria

nc
e.

•
Co

nt
ra
ct
La
bo

r:
Th
e
un

fa
vo
ra
bl
e
va
ria

nc
e
of

$1
.3
M

is
du

e
to

an
un

ex
pe

ct
ed

in
cr
ea
se

in
th
e

ne
ed

of
co
nt
ra
ct
la
bo

rp
rim

ar
ily

in
IC
CU

an
d
th
e
ED

.
•

Hu
m
an

a
Ca

p
Ex
pe

ns
es
:T
he

un
fa
vo
ra
bl
e
va
ria

nc
e
of

$9
89

K
is
du

e
to

hi
gh
er

th
an

an
tic
ip
at
ed

th
ird

pa
rt
y
ex
pe

ns
es
.

38
/1
55

251/368



To
ta
lF
TE
s(
in
clu

de
sC

on
tr
ac
tL
ab
or
)

39
/1
55

252/368



Co
nt
ra
ct
La
bo

rF
ul
lT
im

e
Eq
ui
va
le
nt
s(
FT
Es
)

40
/1
55

253/368



Co
nt
ra
ct
La
bo

rE
xp
en

se

41
/1
55

254/368



To
ta
lP
ay
ro
ll:

ex
clu

de
sc

on
tr
ac
tl
ab
or

an
d
PT
O
ca
sh

ou
t

42
/1
55

255/368



Pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
M
ea
su
re

:W
or
ke
d
Ho

ur
s/
Ad

j.
Pa
tie

nt
Da

ys 43
/1
55

256/368



O
ve
rt
im

e
as

a
%
of

Pr
od

uc
tiv
e
Ho

ur
s

44
/1
55

257/368



Av
er
ag
e
Le
ng
th

of
St
ay

ve
rs
us

Na
tio

na
lA
ve
ra
ge

(G
M
LO

S)

45
/1
55

258/368



Av
er
ag
e
Le
ng
th

of
St
ay

ve
rs
us

Na
tio

na
lA
ve
ra
ge

(G
M
LO

S)

46
/1
55

259/368



Av
er
ag
e
Le
ng
th

of
St
ay

Di
st
rib

ut
io
n

47
/1
55

260/368



Le
ng
th

of
St
ay

Di
st
rib

ut
io
n

48
/1
55

261/368



M
on

th
ly
Di
sc
ha
rg
es

of
O
bs
er
va
tio

n
Pa
tie

nt
sb

y
th
ei
rL
en

gt
h
of

St
ay 49

/1
55

262/368



Tr
en

de
d
Liq

ui
di
ty

Ra
tio

s

50
/1
55

263/368



R
at

io
 A

na
ly

si
s 

R
ep

or
t Ju

ne
 30

,
Cu

rre
nt

Pr
io

r
20

24
M

on
th

M
on

th
Au

di
te

d
M

ed
ian

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

Va
lu

e
Va

lu
e

Va
lu

e
Aa

A
Ba

a
LI

QU
ID

IT
Y 

RA
TI

OS
    

Cu
rre

nt 
Ra

tio
 (x

)
3.

0
3.

3
2.

3
1.

7
1.8

1.
7

    
Ac

co
un

ts 
Re

ce
iva

ble
 (d

ay
s)

70
.6

65
.3

61
.9

47
.8

47
.7

47
.8

    
Ca

sh
 O

n H
an

d 
(d

ay
s)

80
.3

74
.6

10
5.

1
27

3.
9

18
8.4

13
4.

1
    

Cu
sh

ion
 R

ati
o 

(x)
8.

9
8.

3
10

.7
44

.7
24

.2
16

.6
    

Av
er

ag
e 

Pa
ym

en
t P

er
iod

 (d
ay

s)
50

.4
48

.0
58

.6
70

.9
62

.7
64

.0

CA
PI

TA
L 

ST
RU

CT
UR

E 
RA

TI
OS

    
Ca

sh
-to

-D
eb

t
89

.7
%

83
.4

%
10

6.
3%

27
1.

7%
16

4.5
%

13
1.

0%
    

De
bt

-T
o-

Ca
pit

ali
za

tio
n

31
.9

%
32

.1
%

34
.5

%
22

.5
%

31
.1%

35
.0

%
    

De
bt

-to
-C

as
h F

low
 (x

)
2.

7
3.

1
3.

4
2.

4
3.6

6.
9

    
De

bt
 S

er
vic

e 
Co

ve
ra

ge
4.

7
4.

1
3.

7
6.

7
4.5

2.
1

    
Ma

xim
um

 A
nn

ua
l D

eb
t S

er
vic

e 
Co

ve
ra

ge
 (x

)
3.

7
3.

2
2.

9
6.

8
3.8

1.
9

    
Ag

e 
Of

 P
lan

t (
ye

ar
s)

14
.0

13
.9

13
.3

11
.1

12
.8

13
.9

PR
OF

IT
AB

IL
IT

Y 
RA

TI
OS

    
Op

er
ati

ng
 M

ar
gin

(3
.2

%
)

(4
.5

%
)

0.
8%

2.
1%

0.5
%

(2
.3

%
)

    
Ex

ce
ss

 M
ar

gin
7.

2%
7.

5%
2.

4%
5.

5%
2.7

%
(.9

%
)

    
Op

er
ati

ng
 C

as
h F

low
 M

ar
gin

1.
9%

0.
6%

6.
1%

6.
7%

5.5
%

3.
0%

    
Re

tur
n o

n A
ss

et
s

7.
8%

8.
2%

2.
4%

3.
9%

2.4
%

(.7
%

)

20
23

 M
oo

dy
's

51
/1
55

264/368



C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 (0

00
’s

)
Ja
n
25

Ju
n
24

(A
ud

ite
d)

AS
SE
TS

AN
D
DE

FE
RR

ED
O
UT

FL
O
W
S

CU
RR

EN
T
AS

SE
TS

Ca
sh

an
d
ca
sh

eq
ui
va
le
nt
s

$
4,
67

4
$

19
,4
12

Cu
rr
en

tP
or
tio

n
of

Bo
ar
d
de

sig
na
te
d
an
d
tr
us
te
d
as
se
ts

20
,1
39

14
,9
44

Ac
co
un

ts
re
ce
iv
ab
le
:

Ne
tp

at
ie
nt

ac
co
un

ts
14
4,
09
2

13
3,
80
6

O
th
er

re
ce
iv
ab
le
s

86
,8
34

25
,0
23

23
0,
92
6

15
8,
82
9

In
ve
nt
or
ie
s

14
,0
86

13
,7
38

M
ed

ica
re

an
d
M
ed

iC
al
se
tt
le
m
en

ts
86

,4
46

82
,7
55

Pr
ep

ai
d
ex
pe

ns
es

9,
66

7
8,
40

3
To
ta
lc
ur
re
nt

as
se
ts

36
5,
93
9

29
8,
08
2

NO
N
CU

RR
EN

T
CA

SH
AN

D
IN
VE

ST
M
EN

TS
le
ss
cu
rr
en

tp
or
tio

n
Bo

ar
d
de

sig
na
te
d
ca
sh

an
d
as
se
ts

17
9,
29
1

21
0,
51
8

Re
ve
nu

e
bo

nd
as
se
ts
he

ld
in
tr
us
t

22
,8
48

19
,3
26

As
se
ts
in
se
lf
in
su
ra
nc
e
tr
us
tf
un

d
70

6
82

7
To
ta
ln
on

cu
rr
en

tc
as
h
an
d
in
ve
st
m
en

ts
20

2,
84
5

23
0,
67
1

IN
TA

N
GI
BL
E
RI
GH

T
TO

US
E
LE
AS

E,
13

,1
02

10
,4
64

ne
to

fa
cc
um

ul
at
ed

am
or
tiz
at
io
n

IN
TA

N
GI
BL
E
RI
GH

T
TO

US
E
SB

IT
A,

9,
88

2
12
,1
53

ne
to

fa
cc
um

ul
at
ed

am
or
tiz
at
io
n

CA
PI
TA

LA
SS
ET
S

La
nd

14
,5
41

17
,5
42

Bu
ild
in
gs

an
d
im

pr
ov
em

en
ts

42
8,
89
4

42
8,
20
9

Eq
ui
pm

en
t

33
6,
20
6

33
4,
31
6

Co
ns
tr
uc
tio

n
in
pr
og
re
ss

25
,0
20

22
,7
57

80
4,
66
1

80
2,
82
5

Le
ss
ac
cu
m
ul
at
ed

de
pr
ec
ia
tio

n
52
8,
08
6

51
2,
14
8

27
6,
57
5

29
0,
67
6

O
TH

ER
AS

SE
TS

Pr
op

er
ty

no
tu

se
d
in
op

er
at
io
ns

8,
17
3

4,
48

7
He

al
th

re
la
te
d
in
ve
st
m
en

ts
2,
45

4
2,
67

6
O
th
er

17
,3
66

17
,1
20

To
ta
lo
th
er

as
se
ts

27
,9
94

24
,2
83

To
ta
la
ss
et
s

89
6,
33
6

86
6,
32
9

DE
FE
RR

ED
O
UT

FL
O
W
S

14
,5
10

15
,2
83

To
ta
l a
ss
et
sa

nd
de

fe
rr
ed

ou
tfl
ow

s
$

91
0,
84
7

$
88

1,
61
1

52
/1
55

265/368



C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 (0

00
’s

)
Ja
n
25

Ju
n
24

LI
AB

IL
IT
IE
S
AN

D
N
ET

AS
SE
TS

CU
RR

EN
T
LI
AB

IL
IT
IE
S

Ac
co
un

ts
pa
ya
bl
e
an
d
ac
cr
ue

d
ex
pe

ns
es

$
32

,5
09

$
41

,0
96

Ac
cr
ue

d
pa
yr
ol
la
nd

re
la
te
d
lia
bi
lit
ie
s

66
,4
60

62
,3
82

SB
IT
A
lia
bi
lit
y,
cu
rr
en

tp
or
tio

n
3,
53
9

4,
14

6
Le
as
e
lia
bi
ilt
y,
cu
rr
en

tp
or
tio

n
2,
86
9

2,
24

8
Bo

nd
sp

ay
ab
le
,c
ur
re
nt

po
rt
io
n

12
,7
54

12
,5
85

No
te
sp

ay
ab
le
,c
ur
re
nt

po
rt
io
n

1,
92
1

9,
85

0
To
ta
lc
ur
re
nt

lia
bi
lit
ie
s

12
0,
05
2

13
2,
30
6

LE
AS

E
LI
AB

IL
IT
Y,
ne

to
fc
ur
re
nt

po
rt
io
n

10
,4
84

8,
47

7
SB

IT
A
LI
AB

IL
IT
Y,
ne

to
fc
ur
re
nt

po
rt
io
n

4,
44

8
5,
84

6

LO
NG

TE
RM

DE
BT

,l
es
sc

ur
re
nt

po
rt
io
n

Bo
nd

sp
ay
ab
le

21
2,
28
6

21
4,
71
3

No
te
sp

ay
ab
le

18
,8
29

20
,7
50

To
ta
ll
on

g
te
rm

de
bt

23
1,
11
5

23
5,
46
3

N
ET

PE
N
SI
O
N
LI
AB

IL
IT
Y

21
,5
34

21
,2
26

O
TH

ER
LO

NG
TE
RM

LI
AB

IL
IT
IE
S

38
,8
14

36
,2
56

To
ta
ll
ia
bi
lit
ie
s

42
6,
44
8

43
9,
57
4

N
ET

AS
SE
TS

In
ve
st
ed

in
ca
pi
ta
la
ss
et
s,
ne

to
fr
el
at
ed

de
bt

59
,1
56

66
,1
12

Re
st
ric
te
d

61
,7
91

52
,7
33

Un
re
st
ric
te
d

35
9,
53
6

32
3,
19
2

To
ta
ln
et

po
sit
io
n

48
4,
39
9

44
2,
03
7

To
ta
ll
ia
bi
lit
ie
sa

nd
ne

tp
os
iti
on

$
91

0,
84
7

$
88

1,
61
1

53
/1
55

266/368



Maturity Investment G/L
Board designated funds Date Yield Type Account Amount Total

LAIF 4.37 Various 11,955,175           
CAMP 4.55 CAMP 33,691,604           
Allspring 3.99 Money market 377,832                
PFM 3.99 Money market 417,347            
Allspring 17-Jan-30 4.95 MTN-C Adobe Inc 900,000            
PFM 17-Jan-30 4.95 MTN-C Adobe Inc 285,000                
Allspring 7-Mar-25 2.13 MTN-C Deere John Mtn 550,000                
American Business Bank 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD American Business Bank 235,500                
CalPrivate Bank 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD CalPrivate Bank 235,500                
Citizens National Bank of Texas 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD Citizens National Bank of Texas 235,500                
Community Bank of the Day 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD Community Bank of the Day 203,034                
East West Bank 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD East West Bank 235,500                
Farmers Bank and Trust Compan 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD Farmers Bank and Trust Company 235,500                
Frontier Bank of Texas 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD Frontier Bank of Texas 235,500                
Optus Bank 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD Optus Bank 198,863                
Poppy Bank 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD Poppy Bank 235,500                
Republic Bank 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD Republic Bank 206,240                
St. Louis Bank 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD St. Louis Bank 235,500                
Willamette Valley Bank 20-Mar-25 4.50 CD Willamette Valley Bank 235,500                
Optus Bank 27-Mar-25 4.50 CD Optus Bank 22,383                  
Western Alliance - CDARS 31-Mar-25 4.50 CD Western Alliance 250,000                
Allspring 1-Apr-25 0.88 Municipal Bay Area Toll 250,000            
Allspring 1-May-25 0.74 Municipal San Diego County 300,000                
Allspring 15-May-25 2.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 980,000                
PFM 15-May-25 0.93 Municipal University Calf Ca 185,000            
Allspring 1-Jun-25 0.92 Municipal Connecticut ST 400,000                
Allspring 17-Jun-25 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency FNMA 2,000,000             
Allspring 30-Jun-25 0.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 350,000                
Allspring 21-Jul-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 1,500,000             
Allspring 1-Aug-25 2.17 Municipal Santa Cruz Ca 400,000                
PFM 1-Aug-25 0.85 Municipal San Juan Ca 190,000            
Allspring 25-Aug-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency FNMA 1,500,000             
PFM 25-Aug-25 3.75 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 259,680                
Allspring 4-Sep-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency FHLB 525,000                
Allspring 23-Sep-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 750,000                
Allspring 29-Oct-25 0.55 MTN-C Procter Gamble Co 1,300,000             
Allspring 31-Oct-25 0.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 770,000                
Allspring 30-Nov-25 0.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 2,550,000             
Allspring 6-Feb-26 1.75 MTN-C State Street Corp 1,000,000             
PFM 15-Feb-26 1.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000         
PFM 28-Feb-26 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000         
Allspring 31-Mar-26 0.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 675,000                
PFM 31-Mar-26 0.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000         
PFM 2-Apr-26 3.38 MTN-C Bank of America 250,000                
PFM 19-Apr-26 3.50 MTN-C Bank of America 295,000                
Allspring 21-Apr-26 4.75 MTN-C Morgan Stanley 1,000,000         
Allspring 25-Apr-26 3.91 MTN-C Wells Fargo co 800,000                
PFM 30-Apr-26 0.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000             
PFM 15-May-26 3.30 MTN-C IBM Corp 410,000            
PFM 28-May-26 1.20 MTN-C Astrazeneca LP 265,000            
PFM 31-May-26 0.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000         
PFM 31-May-26 2.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,200,000         
PFM 15-Jun-26 0.55 ABS Carmax Auto Owner 63,155                  
Allspring 18-Jun-26 1.13 MTN-C Toyota Motor 1,400,000             
Allspring 30-Jun-26 0.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,850,000         
PFM 30-Jun-26 0.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 990,000                
Allspring 1-Jul-26 1.89 Municipal Anaheim Ca Pub 1,000,000             
PFM 1-Jul-26 1.46 Municipal Los Angeles Ca 270,000            
PFM 7-Jul-26 5.25 ABS American Honda Mtn 145,000                
PFM 8-Jul-26 3.05 MTN-C Walmart INC 205,000                
PFM 17-Jul-26 5.08 MTN-C Cooperatieve CD 400,000                
PFM 20-Jul-26 3.73 ABS Honda Auto Rec Own 60,021                  
PFM 31-Jul-26 0.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 880,000                
PFM 31-Aug-26 0.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 800,000                
PFM 14-Sep-26 1.15 MTN-C Caterpillar Finl Mtn 220,000                
PFM 18-Sep-26 5.61 MTN-C Natixis Ny 405,000                
Allspring 30-Sep-26 0.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 2,210,000             
PFM 30-Sep-26 0.88 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000             
Allspring 31-Oct-26 1.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 800,000                
PFM 1-Nov-26 4.76 Municipal California St Univ 125,000                
PFM 4-Nov-26 1.65 MTN-C American Express Co 445,000                
PFM 13-Nov-26 5.60 MTN-C National Rural Mtn 160,000                
Allspring 30-Nov-26 1.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 2,000,000             
Allspring 4-Dec-26 5.49 MTN-C Citibank N A 1,000,000         
PFM 11-Jan-27 1.70 MTN-C Deere John Mtn 220,000                
Allspring 15-Jan-27 1.95 MTN-C Target Corp 900,000                
PFM 26-Feb-27 4.80 MTN-C Cisco Sys 260,000                
PFM 15-Mar-27 5.90 MTN-C Daimler Trucks 325,000                
PFM 18-Mar-27 4.99 MTN-C State Street Corp 335,000                
PFM 25-Mar-27 3.22 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 575,000                
PFM 30-Mar-27 5.39 MTN-C Hormel Food Corp 115,000                
PFM 15-Apr-27 3.97 ABS Carmax Auto Owner 338,054                
PFM 15-Apr-27 2.50 MTN-C Home Depot Inc 220,000                
Allspring 30-Apr-27 2.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 970,000                
PFM 30-Apr-27 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 250,000                
PFM 30-Apr-27 2.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 800,000                
PFM 13-May-27 5.00 MTN-C Paccar Financial Mtn 95,000                  
PFM 15-May-27 2.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 925,000                
PFM 15-May-27 1.70 MTN-C IBM Corp 230,000                
PFM 15-May-27 3.70 MTN-C Unitedhealth Group 85,000                  
PFM 17-May-27 3.66 ABS Capital One Prime 168,161                
Allspring 21-May-27 5.41 MTN-C Goldman Sachs 1,100,000         
Allspring 15-Jul-27 3.68 Municipal Massachusetts St 1,000,000             
PFM 26-Jul-27 4.60 MTN-C Blackrock Funding 185,000                
PFM 30-Jul-27 4.65 MTN-C Honeywell 185,000                
Allspring 1-Aug-27 3.46 Municipal Alameda Cnty Ca 500,000                
Allspring 6-Aug-27 4.45 MTN-C Paccar Financial Mtn 900,000            
PFM 15-Aug-27 2.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 190,000                
PFM 31-Aug-27 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,140,000             
Allspring 15-Sep-27 5.93 MTN-C Bank of America 1,100,000         
Allspring 1-Oct-27 4.66 Municipal San Francisco Ca 1,000,000         
PFM 8-Oct-27 4.35 MTN-C Toyota Motor 130,000                
PFM 31-Oct-27 0.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000             
Allspring 15-Nov-27 4.60 MTN-C Caterpillar Finl Mtn 1,000,000         

KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

January 31, 2025

54/155267/368



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

January 31, 2025

Allspring 15-Nov-27 5.49 ABS Nissan  Auto Lease 500,000            
PFM 15-Nov-27 4.51 ABS Mercedes Benz Auto 151,079                
PFM 17-Nov-27 5.02 MTN-C Bp Cap Mkts Amer 310,000                
PFM 15-Jan-28 4.10 MTN-C Mastercard 130,000                
Allspring 18-Jan-28 5.66 ABS Mercedes Benz Auto 1,000,000         
PFM 24-Jan-28 4.90 MTN-C Wells Fargo MTN 145,000                
PFM 7-Feb-28 3.44 MTN-C Bank New York Mellon Mtn 300,000                
Allspring 16-Feb-28 4.47 MTN-C GM Finl Consumer 1,000,000         
PFM 18-Feb-28 5.41 ABS Honda Auto 350,000                
PFM 25-Feb-28 5.47 ABS BMW Vehicle Owner 95,000                  
PFM 29-Feb-28 1.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000             
PFM 17-Apr-28 5.48 ABS Hyundai Auto 115,000                
Allspring 22-Apr-28 5.57 MTN-C JP Morgan 1,100,000         
PFM 30-Apr-28 3.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 750,000                
PFM 30-Apr-28 1.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 600,000                
PFM 15-May-28 5.46 ABS Ally Auto Rec 195,000                
PFM 15-May-28 4.87 MTN-C American Express Co 150,000                
PFM 15-May-28 4.79 MTN-C Bank of America 180,000                
PFM 15-May-28 5.23 MTN-C Ford CR Auto Owner 160,000                
PFM 26-May-28 5.50 MTN-C Morgan Stanley 280,000                
PFM 31-May-28 3.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000             
PFM 16-Jun-28 5.45 ABS GM Finl con Auto Rec 110,000                
PFM 25-Jun-28 4.82 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 530,000                
PFM 25-Jun-28 4.78 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 435,162                
PFM 30-Jun-28 4.00 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000             
PFM 14-Jul-28 4.95 MTN-C John Deere Mtn 120,000                
PFM 25-Jul-28 4.18 U.S. Govt Agency FNMA 515,817                
Allspring 1-Aug-28 5.75 Municipal San Diego County 1,000,000         
PFM 15-Aug-28 5.69 MTN-C Harley Davidson 500,000                
PFM 15-Aug-28 5.53 ABS Fifth Third Auto 385,000                
PFM 25-Aug-28 4.74 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 545,000                
PFM 25-Aug-28 4.65 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 545,000                
PFM 15-Sep-28 5.23 MTN-C American Express 445,000                
PFM 15-Sep-28 5.16 MTN-C Chase Issuance Trust 435,000                
PFM 25-Sep-28 4.85 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 410,000                
PFM 25-Sep-28 4.80 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 535,000                
PFM 29-Sep-28 5.80 MTN-C Citibank N A 535,000                
PFM 30-Sep-28 4.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 500,000                
Allspring 25-Oct-28 5.80 MTN-C Bank New York Mtn 1,000,000         
PFM 25-Oct-28 5.07 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 200,000                
PFM 25-Oct-28 4.86 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 300,000                
PFM 31-Oct-28 1.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,500,000             
PFM 31-Oct-28 1.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 775,000                
Allspring 15-Nov-28 4.98 MTN-C Bank of America 394,000            
PFM 25-Nov-28 5.00 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 280,000                
PFM 25-Dec-28 4.57 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 325,000                
PFM 25-Dec-28 4.72 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 315,000                
PFM 31-Dec-28 3.75 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,200,000             
PFM 31-Dec-28 1.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 500,000                
PFM 12-Jan-29 5.02 MTN-C Morgan Stanley 250,000                
PFM 16-Jan-29 4.60 MTN-C Chase Issuance Trust 490,000                
PFM 24-Jan-29 4.92 MTN-C JP Morgan 140,000                
PFM 31-Jan-29 4.60 MTN-C Paccar Financial Mtn 160,000                
PFM 8-Feb-29 4.60 MTN-C Air products 295,000                
PFM 8-Feb-29 4.60 MTN-C Texas Instrs 370,000                
PFM 15-Feb-29 4.94 MTN-C Wells Fargo Card 560,000                
PFM 20-Feb-29 4.90 MTN-C Cummins INC 195,000                
PFM 22-Feb-29 4.90 MTN-C Bristol Myers Squibb 200,000                
Allspring 26-Feb-29 5.18 ABS BMW Vehicle Owner 1,100,000         
PFM 26-Feb-29 4.85 MTN-C Cisco Sys 225,000                
PFM 26-Feb-29 4.85 MTN-C Astrazeneca 165,000                
PFM 28-Feb-29 4.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 750,000                
PFM 14-Mar-29 4.70 MTN-C Blackrock Funding 50,000                  
PFM 14-Mar-29 4.70 MTN-C Blackrock Funding 220,000                
Allspring 15-Mar-29 5.20 ABS John Deere Owner 1,000,000         
Allspring 15-Mar-29 5.38 ABS Hyundai Auto Rec 1,000,000         
PFM 25-Mar-29 5.18 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 315,000                
Allspring 31-Mar-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000         
PFM 31-Mar-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 225,000                
PFM 4-Apr-29 4.80 MTN-C Adobe Inc 225,000                
Allspring 15-Apr-29 5.10 MTN-C Ford CR Auto Owner 1,000,000         
PFM 15-Apr-29 5.10 MTN-C Ford CR Auto Owner 415,000                
PFM 15-May-29 4.42 ABS Hyundai Auto Rec 195,000                
PFM 25-May-29 4.72 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 460,000                
Allspring 31-May-29 4.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000         
Allspring 15-Jun-29 5.15 MTN-C National Rural Mtn 850,000            
Allspring 20-Jun-29 5.98 MTN-C Verizon Master Trust 1,000,000         
Allspring 25-Jun-29 4.75 MTN-C Home Depot Inc 500,000            
PFM 25-Jun-29 4.64 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 200,000                
PFM 25-Jun-29 4.75 MTN-C Home Depot Inc 95,000                  
PFM 30-Jun-29 3.25 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 2,030,000             
PFM 15-Jul-29 4.76 MTN-C Ford CR Auto Owner 360,000                
Allspring 16-Jul-29 4.65 MTN-C American Express 1,025,000         
PFM 17-Jul-29 4.50 MTN-C Pepsico inc 280,000                
PFM 25-Jul-29 4.54 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 515,000                
PFM 25-Jul-29 4.62 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 410,000                
Allspring 31-Jul-29 4.00 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 500,000            
PFM 31-Jul-29 4.00 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 750,000                
PFM 6-Aug-29 4.84 MTN-C Citibank N A 295,000                
PFM 9-Aug-29 4.55 MTN-C Toyota Motor 195,000                
PFM 14-Aug-29 4.20 MTN-C Eli Lilly Co 65,000                  
PFM 16-Aug-29 4.27 ABS GM Finl con Auto Rec 155,000                
PFM 18-Aug-29 4.64 MTN-C Toyota Auto 260,000                
PFM 31-Aug-29 3.63 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 750,000                
PFM 18-Sep-29 3.80 MTN-C Novartis Capital 365,000                
PFM 25-Sep-29 4.79 U.S. Govt Agency FHLMC 345,000                
Allspring 30-Sep-29 3.50 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 950,000            
PFM 4-Oct-29 4.05 MTN-C Accenture Capital 195,000                
Allspring 31-Oct-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000         
PFM 31-Oct-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,200,000             
Allspring 30-Nov-29 4.13 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,700,000         
PFM 17-Dec-29 4.78 ABS Mercedes Benz Auto 255,000                
Allspring 31-Dec-29 4.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000         
Allspring 31-Dec-29 4.38 U.S. Govt Agency US Treasury Bill 1,000,000         
PFM 1-May-27 5.41 MTN-C Goldman Sachs 220,000                

166,767,109$        

55/155268/368



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

January 31, 2025

Maturity Investment G/L  
Date Yield Type Account Amount Total

Self-insurance trust

Wells Fargo Bank Money  market 110900 967,173                
Wells Fargo Bank Fixed income - L/T 152300 748,756                

1,715,929              
2015A revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 1,271,069             

1,271,069              
2015B revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 715,156                

715,156                 
2017C revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 3,736,255             

3,736,255              
2020 revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 676,907                

676,907                 
2022 revenue bonds
US Bank Principal/Interest payment fund 142110 1,719,891             

1,719,891              
2014 general obligation bonds

CAMP Interest Payment fund 152440 3,737,382             
3,737,382              

Master Reserve fund
US Bank 142102 (368,772)               
US Bank 142103 23,216,821           

22,848,049            
Operations

Wells Fargo Bank 0.16 Checking 100100 100100 (3,304,706)            
Wells Fargo Bank 0.16 Checking 100500 100500 6,753,158             

3,448,452             
Payroll

Wells Fargo Bank 0.16 Checking 100200 (202,860)               
Wells Fargo Bank 0.16 Checking Flexible Spending 100300 1,024,248             
Wells Fargo Bank 0.16 Checking HSA 100300 15,905                  
Wells Fargo Bank Checking Resident Fund 100300 -                        
Bancorp Checking Bancorp 100300 -                        

837,293                
4,285,745              

Total investments 207,473,492$        

56/155269/368



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

January 31, 2025

Kaweah Delta Medical Foundation

Wells Fargo Bank Checking 100100 8,818$                   

Sequoia Regional Cancer Center

Wells Fargo Bank Checking 100500 (34,163)                 
(34,163)$                

Kaweah Delta Hospital Foundation

Central Valley Community Checking Investments 100100 312,752                
Various S/T Investments 142200 5,175,418             
Various L/T Investments 142300 13,330,559           
Various Unrealized G/L 142400 3,053,913             

21,872,641$          

Summary of board designated funds:

Plant fund:

Uncommitted plant funds 113,610,953$                               142100
Committed for capital 18,991,533                                   142100

132,602,486

GO Bond reserve - L/T 1,992,658 142100

401k Matching 10,993,670 142100

Cost report settlement - current 2,135,384        142104
Cost report settlement - L/T 1,312,727        142100

3,448,111

Development fund/Memorial fund 104,184 112300

Workers compensation - current 5,180,000        112900
Workers compensation - L/T 12,446,000      113900

17,626,000

166,767,109$                               

Total Trust Surplus                                  
Investments     % Accounts Funds %    

Investment summary by institution:

Bancorp -$                                              0.0% -                        0.0%
Cal Trust -                                                0.0% -                        0.0%
CAMP 33,691,604                                   16.2% 33,691,604           19.7%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)            11,955,175                                   5.8% 11,955,175           7.0%
CAMP -  GOB Tax Rev 3,737,382                                     1.8% 3,737,382        -                        0.0%
Allspring 59,226,832                                   28.5% 1,715,929        57,510,903           33.6%
PFM 58,893,477                                   28.4% 58,893,477           34.4%
Western Alliance 250,000                                        250,000                0.1%
American Business Bank 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
CalPrivate Bank 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
Citizens National Bank of Texas 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
Community Bank of the Day 203,034                                        203,034                0.1%
East West Bank 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
Farmers Bank and Trust Company 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
Frontier Bank of Texas 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
Optus Bank 221,247                                        221,247                0.1%
Poppy Bank 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
Republic Bank 206,240                                        206,240                0.1%
St. Louis Bank 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
Willamette Valley Bank 235,500                                        235,500                0.1%
Wells Fargo Bank 6,001,674                                     2.9% 6,001,674             3.5%
Signature Bank -                                                0.0% -                   -                        0.0%
US Bank 30,967,327                                   14.9% 30,967,327      -                        0.0%

                 Total investments 207,473,492$                               100.0% 36,420,638$    171,052,854         100.0%

57/155270/368



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

January 31, 2025

Investment
Investment summary of surplus funds by type: Limitations

Negotiable and other certificates of deposit 3,000,021$                                   51,316,000              (30%)
Checking accounts 4,285,745                                     
Local Agency Investment Fund   (LAIF) 11,955,175                                   75,000,000           
CAMP 33,691,604                                   
Medium-term notes  (corporate)   (MTN-C) 36,524,000                                   51,316,000              (30%)
U.S. government agency 66,800,659                                   
Municipal securities 6,620,000                                     
Money market accounts 795,179                                        34,211,000              (20%)
Commercial paper -                                                42,763,000              (25%)
Asset Backed Securties 7,380,471                                     34,211,000              (20%)
Supra-National Agency -                                                51,316,000              (30%)

171,052,854$                               

Return on investment:

       Current month 4.25%

       Year-to-date 3.73%
 

       Prospective 3.45%

       LAIF  (year-to-date) 4.50%

       Budget 2.82%

Fair market value disclosure for the quarter ended Dec 31, 2024 (District only): Quarter-to-date Year-to-date

          Difference between fair value of investments and amortized cost  (balance sheet effect) N/A (1,578,431)            

          Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments  (income statement effect) (686,000)$        2,518,575             

Investment summary of CDs:
American Business Bank 235,500$                                      
CalPrivate Bank 235,500
Citizens National Bank of Texas 235,500
Community Bank of the Day 203,034
East West Bank 235,500
Farmers Bank and Trust Company 235,500
Frontier Bank of Texas 235,500
Poppy Bank 235,500
Republic Bank 206,240
St. Louis Bank 235,500
Willamette Valley Bank 235,500
Optus Bank 221,247
Western Alliance 250,000

3,000,021$                                   

Investment summary of asset backed securities:
Ally Auto Rec 195,000$                                      
American Honda Mtn 145,000                                        
BMW Vehicle Owner 1,195,000
Fifth Third Auto 385,000
Capital One Prime 168,161
Carmax Auto Owner 401,209
GM Finl con Auto Rec 265,000
Honda Auto 350,000
Honda Auto Rec Own 60,021
Hyundai Auto 115,000
Hyundai Auto Rec 1,195,000
John Deere Owner 1,000,000
Mercedes Benz Auto 1,406,079
Nissan  Auto Lease 500,000

7,380,471$                                   

58/155271/368



KAWEAH DELTA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF FUNDS

January 31, 2025

Investment summary of medium-term notes  (corporate):
Accenture Capital 195,000$                                      
Adobe Inc 1,410,000                                     
American Express 1,470,000
American Express Co 595,000
Air products 295,000
Astrazeneca 165,000
Astrazeneca LP 265,000
Bank of America 2,219,000
Bank New York Mellon Mtn 300,000
Bank New York Mtn 1,000,000
Blackrock Funding 455,000
Bp Cap Mkts Amer 310,000
Bristol Myers Squibb 200,000
Chase Issuance Trust 925,000
Caterpillar Finl Mtn 1,220,000
Cisco Sys 485,000
Citibank N A 1,830,000
Cooperatieve CD 400,000
Cummins INC 195,000
Daimler Trucks 325,000
Deere John Mtn 770,000
Eli Lilly Co 65,000
Ford CR Auto Owner 1,935,000
GM Finl Consumer 1,000,000
Goldman Sachs 1,320,000
Harley Davidson 500,000
Home Depot Inc 815,000
Honeywell 185,000
Hormel Food Corp 115,000
IBM Corp 640,000
John Deere Mtn 120,000
JP Morgan 1,240,000
Mastercard 130,000
Morgan Stanley 1,530,000
National Rural Mtn 1,010,000
Natixis Ny 405,000
Novartis Capital 365,000
Paccar Financial Mtn 1,155,000
Pepsico inc 280,000
Procter Gamble Co 1,300,000
State Street Corp 1,335,000
Target Corp 900,000
Texas Instrs 370,000
Toyota Auto 260,000
Toyota Motor 1,725,000
Unitedhealth Group 85,000
Verizon Master Trust 1,000,000
Walmart INC 205,000
Wells Fargo Mtn 145,000
Wells Fargo Card 560,000
Wells Fargo co 800,000

36,524,000$                                 

Investment summary of U.S. government agency:
Federal National Mortgage Association  (FNMA) 4,015,817$                                   
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 525,000
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 9,749,842
US Treasury Bill 52,510,000

66,800,659$                                 

Investment summary of municipal securities:
Alameda Cnty Ca 500,000$                                      
Anaheim Ca Pub 1,000,000                                     
Bay Area Toll 250,000                                        
California St Univ 125,000                                        
Connecticut ST 400,000                                        
Los Angeles Ca 270,000                                        
Massachusetts St 1,000,000                                     
San Diego County 1,300,000                                     
San Francisco Ca 1,000,000                                     
San Juan Ca 190,000                                        
Santa Cruz Ca 400,000                                        
University Calf Ca 185,000                                        

6,620,000$                                   

59/155272/368



St
at

ist
ica

l R
ep

or
t

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
25

60
/1
55

273/368



61
/1
55

274/368



62
/1
55

275/368



63
/1
55

276/368



64
/1
55

277/368



65
/1
55

278/368



66
/1
55

279/368



67
/1
55

280/368



68
/1
55

281/368



69
/1
55

282/368



70
/1
55

283/368



71
/1
55

284/368



72
/1
55

285/368



73
/1
55

286/368



74
/1
55

287/368



75
/1
55

288/368



76
/1
55

289/368



77
/1
55

290/368



78
/1
55

291/368



79
/1
55

292/368



80
/1
55

293/368



81
/1
55

294/368



82
/1
55

295/368



83
/1
55

296/368



84
/1
55

297/368



85
/1
55

298/368



86
/1
55

299/368



87
/1
55

300/368



88
/1
55

301/368



89
/1
55

302/368



90
/1
55

303/368



91
/1
55

304/368



92
/1
55

305/368



93
/1
55

306/368



94
/1
55

307/368



95
/1
55

308/368



96
/1
55

309/368



97
/1
55

310/368



98
/1
55

311/368



99
/1
55

312/368



10
0/
15
5

313/368



10
1/
15
5

314/368



10
2/
15
5

315/368



10
3/
15
5

316/368



10
4/
15
5

317/368



10
5/
15
5

318/368



10
6/
15
5

319/368



10
7/
15
5

320/368



10
8/
15
5

321/368



10
9/
15
5

322/368



11
0/
15
5

323/368



11
1/
15
5

324/368



11
2/
15
5

325/368



11
3/
15
5

326/368



11
4/
15
5

327/368



11
5/
15
5

328/368



11
6/
15
5

329/368



11
7/
15
5

330/368



11
8/
15
5

331/368



11
9/
15
5

332/368



12
0/
15
5

333/368



12
1/
15
5

334/368



12
2/
15
5

335/368



12
3/
15
5

336/368



12
4/
15
5

337/368



12
5/
15
5

338/368



12
6/
15
5

339/368



12
7/
15
5

340/368



12
8/
15
5

341/368



12
9/
15
5

342/368



13
0/
15
5

343/368



13
1/
15
5

344/368



13
2/
15
5

345/368



13
3/
15
5

346/368



13
4/
15
5

347/368



13
5/
15
5

348/368



13
6/
15
5

349/368



13
7/
15
5

350/368



13
8/
15
5

351/368



13
9/
15
5

352/368



14
0/
15
5

353/368



14
1/
15
5

354/368



14
2/
15
5

355/368



14
3/
15
5

356/368



14
4/
15
5

357/368



14
5/
15
5

358/368



14
6/
15
5

359/368



14
7/
15
5

360/368



14
8/
15
5

361/368



14
9/
15
5

362/368



15
0/
15
5

363/368



15
1/
15
5

364/368



15
2/
15
5

365/368



15
3/
15
5

366/368



15
4/
15
5

367/368



15
5/
15
5

368/368


